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IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

This Registration Document (the "Registration Document") has been prepared by 3t Global Bidco Plc, a public limited company incorporated under the laws 
of England and Wales (the "Issuer", and together with its subsidiaries and parent companies, the "Group") to comply with the Norwegian Securities Trading 
Act of 29 June 2007 no. 75, as amended (the "Norwegian Securities Trading Act") and related secondary legislation, including Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 
of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or admitted to 
trading on a regulated market, and repealing Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended, and as implemented in Norway in accordance with Section 7-1 of the 
Norwegian Securities Trading Act (the "EU Prospectus Regulation"). This Registration Document has been prepared solely in the English language. This 
Registration Document has been approved by the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (Nw.: Finanstilsynet) (the "Norwegian FSA"), as competent 
authority under the EU Prospectus Regulation. The Norwegian FSA only approves this Registration Document as meeting the standards of completeness, 
comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the EU Prospectus Regulation, and such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the issuer 
or the quality of the securities that are the subject of this Registration Document. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing 
in the securities.  

This Registration Document together with the securities note dated 14 May 2025 (the "Securities note") constitutes the prospectus (the "Prospectus"). 

For definitions of capitalized terms used throughout this Registration Document, see Section 10 "Definitions and Glossary". 

Unless otherwise indicated, the information contained herein is current as at the date hereof and is subject to change, completion and amendment without 
notice. In accordance with Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation, significant new factors, material mistakes or material inaccuracies relating to the information 
included in this Registration Document, which may affect the assessment of bonds issued by the Issuer (the "Bonds" as defined herein) and which arises or 
is noted between the time of approval of this Registration Document by the Norwegian FSA and the Listing (as defined herein), will be mentioned in a 
supplement to this Registration Document without undue delay. Neither the publication nor distribution of this Registration Document shall under any 
circumstances imply that there has been no change in the Group's affairs or that the information herein is correct as at any date subsequent to the date of 
this Registration Document. 

All inquiries relating to this Registration Document should be directed to the Issuer. No person is authorized to give information or to make any representation 
on behalf of the Group in connection with the Bonds. If any such information is given or made, it must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the 
Issuer, the Group or any of their affiliates, advisors or selling agents.  

The distribution of this Registration Document may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. This Registration Document does not constitute 
an offer of, or an invitation to purchase, subscribe or sell any of the Bonds in any jurisdiction, and no Bonds or other securities are being offered 
or sold pursuant it. The distribution of this Registration Document and the offer and sale of the Bonds may in certain jurisdictions be restricted 
by law. The Issuer has not registered the Bonds under the U.S. Securities Act and does not expect to do so in the future. The Bonds may not be 
offered or sold in the United States or to U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act), except for pursuant to an exemption 
from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state securities law, or pursuant to an effective registration statement. 
Neither this Registration Document nor any other material pertaining to the securities of the Issuer may be distributed or published in any 
jurisdiction except under circumstances that will result in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and the Bonds may not be transferred 
or resold except as permitted under applicable securities laws and regulations. Persons in possession of this Registration Document are required 
to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. Investors should be aware that they may be required to bear the financial risks 
of an investment in the Bonds for an indefinite period of time. Any failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of applicable 
securities laws.  

This Registration Document shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Norwegian law. The courts of Norway, with Oslo District Court as legal 
venue, shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute which may arise out of or in connection with this Registration Document.  

All Sections of the Registration Document should be read in context with the information included in Section 3 "General Information". 

Investing in the Issuer involves a significant degree of risk. Prospective investors should read the entire Registration Document and, in particular, consider 
Section 1 "Risk Factors" and Section 3 "General Information" when considering an investment in the Issuer.   



Page 3 of 31 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1 RISK FACTORS ....................................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Risks associated with the Group, its business, and the industry in which it 
operates ................................................................................................................................... 5 

1.2 Risks related to the Group's financial position ......................................................................... 8 

1.3 Risks relating to laws, regulation, and litigation ....................................................................... 8 

2 RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT ............................................... 10 

3 GENERAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................... 11 

3.1 Approval of the Registration Document ................................................................................. 11 

3.2 Other important investor information ...................................................................................... 11 

3.3 Presentation of financial and other information ...................................................................... 11 

3.4 Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements ......................................................... 13 

4 BUSINESS OF THE GROUP ................................................................................................. 15 

4.1 Introduction to the Group's business ...................................................................................... 15 

4.2 History and important events ................................................................................................. 16 

4.3 Material contracts ................................................................................................................... 17 

4.4 Legal and arbitrational proceedings ....................................................................................... 17 

5 SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ....................................................... 18 

5.1 The Issuer and Guarantors .................................................................................................... 18 

5.2 Selected historical financial information ................................................................................. 18 

6 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW AND RECENT DEVELOPMENTS ................................................. 23 

6.1 General overview and recent developments .......................................................................... 23 

6.2 Significant changes in the financial position of the Group ..................................................... 23 

6.3 Significant changes in the financial performance of the Group ............................................. 23 

6.4 Recent events relevant to the evaluation of the solvency of the Issuer and 
the Guarantors ....................................................................................................................... 23 

7 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT ................................................................... 24 

7.1 Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 24 

7.2 The Issuer .............................................................................................................................. 24 

7.3 The Guarantors ...................................................................................................................... 26 

7.4 Conflict of interests etc. .......................................................................................................... 27 

8 CORPORATE INFORMATION .............................................................................................. 28 

8.1 Corporate information............................................................................................................. 28 

8.2 Legal structure ........................................................................................................................ 29 

8.3 Major shareholders ................................................................................................................. 29 

8.4 Share capital .......................................................................................................................... 29 

9 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ............................................................................................... 30 



Page 4 of 31 

 

 

9.1 Independent auditors and advisors ........................................................................................ 30 

9.2 Documents available .............................................................................................................. 30 

10 DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY ........................................................................................... 31 

 

APPENDICES TO THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 

 

APPENDIX 1 Group structure chart 

APPENDIX 2 Articles of Association of 3t Global Bidco Plc 

APPENDIX 3 Articles of Association of Transforming Training with Technology Limited (TTT) 

APPENDIX 4 Articles of Association of Drilling Systems UK Limited 

APPENDIX 5 Articles of Association of 3T Training Services Limited 

APPENDIX 6 Financial Statements for 3t Global Bidco Plc for the years 2024 and 2023 

APPENDIX 7 Financial Statements for Transforming Training with Technology Limited (TTT) for the years 
2024 and 2023 

APPENDIX 8 Financial Statements for Drilling Systems UK Limited for the years 2024 and 2023 

APPENDIX 9 Financial Statements for 3T Training Services Limited for the years 2024 and 2023 

  

 

 



Page 5 of 31 

 

 

1 RISK FACTORS 

Investing in the Bonds involves a significant degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider the risk factors and 
uncertainties described below, as well as the information contained in Section 1 "Risk Factors" of the Securities Note, 
together with all other information contained in this Registration Document, including the financial information presented in 
Section 3.3.1 "Historical Financial Information" below and related notes elsewhere in the Registration Document and 
appended hereto, before deciding to invest in the Bonds. The risks and uncertainties described in this Section 1 are the 
principal known risks and uncertainties faced by the Group as of the date hereof that the Issuer believes are the material 
risks relevant to an investment in the Bonds. An investment is suitable only for investors who understand the risks 
associated with this type of investment and who can afford to lose all or part of their investment.  

The risk factors included in this Section 1 are presented in a limited number of categories, where each risk factor is sought 
to be placed in the most appropriate category based on the nature of the risk it represents. While the most material risk 
factor in each category is set out first, the remaining risk factors in each section are not ranked in order of materiality or 
probability of occurrence. The absence of negative past experience associated with a given risk factor does not mean that 
the risk factor is not genuine or poses a potential threat to the Group. If any of the following risks were to materialize, 
individually or together with other circumstances, they could have a material adverse effect on the Group and/or its 
business, results of operations, cash flows, financial condition and/or prospects, which may cause a decline in the value 
and trading price of the Bonds, resulting in loss of all or part of an investment in the Bonds. Additional factors of which the 
Issuer is currently unaware or which it currently deems not to be risks, may also have corresponding negative effects. 

The information in this Section 1 is as of the date of this Registration Document. 

1.1 Risks associated with the Group, its business, and the industry in which it operates 

1.1.1 Effects of a material slowdown in the energy sector on the demand of the Group's services 

The Group's business is exposed to fluctuations in the oil and gas industries since a substantial number of the Group's 
customers operate in these industries and such fluctuations could have consequential effects on the Group's business. In 
2024, approximately 50% of the Group’s training revenue by course type is derived from the oil and gas focused products 
and courses. In terms of end customers to the training business, around 20% are drillers or operators. The demand for the 
Group's products and services depends on, inter alia, the level of new capital investment and operating expenditures by 
its customers. The level of capital and operating expenditures by the customers depends, in turn, on general economic 
conditions, market price for oil and gas, availability of credit, economic conditions within their respective industries and 
expectations of future market behavior. Adverse changes in the economy or in the customers' investment patterns may 
have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, earnings and financial position. 

1.1.2 The Group is subject to competition 

The Group operates in a market where the participants compete by price, location, quality and range of services, and 
service offering availability in a generally commoditized market, with small differences between the service providers. At a 
global level, competitors include Rely On, Maersk Training, and FMTC. There is a risk that an increase in competition will 
lead to pricing pressure, as well as increased pressure to differentiate through innovation as well as quality, within the 
industry as a whole which could impact the Group's ability to attract new customers, as well as retaining current customers. 

The Group's ability to compete also depends on the Group's ability to have global relations with its customers, anticipate 
future market changes and trends and to rapidly react to existing and future market needs. If the Group fails to meet the 
competition from new and existing competitors or fails to react to market changes or trends, there is a risk that this will 
have an adverse effect on the Group's business, earnings and financial position. 

1.1.3 The Group could be adversely affected if it fails to keep pace with technological changes 

The Group is dependent on up-to-date simulation and learning technology. The Group develops its own simulation 
software, which in turn is built certain standard third party tool sets. There is a risk that new solutions within simulation, 
learning or other relevant technologies (including immersive technologies) will be developed, and that the Group will be 
unable to implement these technologies or adapt its service range and business model in time to exploit the benefits of 
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new or existing technologies, in particular in regards to updating or replacing simulation software which the Group has 
developed. There is also a risk of future new technologies making the Group’s services less competitive and more difficult 
to sell. Every such failure may have a negative impact on the Group’s position in the market and in turn have a negative 
impact on the Group’s operations, financial position and earnings, and the performance of the Issuer under the Bonds. 

The expenses associated with keeping up with technological developments may be high and subject to factors that are 
fully or partly beyond the Group’s control. The amount of future operating expenses and requirements for capital and the 
time at which they are needed may also differ considerably from current estimates. Inability to finance these expenses and 
requirements for capital may have a negative impact on the Group’s operations, financial position and earnings, and the 
performance of the Issuer under the Bonds. 

1.1.4 Risks related to the Group's licenses to operate 

The Group depends on the audited status of its training standards with accrediting bodies such as OPITO, Global Wind 
Organization (GWO),  Engineering Construction Industry Training Board (ECITB), for the Training division, with IADC and 
IWCF (regulatory bodies) for simulator standards. Maintaining such status and/or meeting new requirements from relevant 
accrediting bodies are considered essential to ensure continuity of the Group’s operations. Awarding body certification 
runs on a 3 year certification cycle with annual monitoring audits conducted by the awarding bodies to ensure ongoing 
compliance. As of the date of this Registration Document, the Group possesses the necessary accreditations to conduct 
business with its current offerings, and no accreditations are due to expire during 2025, with the annual audits which have 
been completed being successful.   

For each of the individual course accreditations, each training center location is approved at both center and course level, 
with annual monitoring audits undertaken. Accrediting bodies visit sites on a regular basis where they review both business 
management processes and instructors to ensure compliance with standards, such audits can be unannounced. If the 
Group fails to maintain accredited status or meet new requirements from accrediting bodies, it could adversely affect the 
continuity of the Group’s operations. 

1.1.5 Risks relating to cybercrime and IT breakdown 

The Group depends on computer systems to provide parts of its principal service lines and manage critical business 
processes, including administrative and financial functions. Extensive downtime of network servers, power losses, physical 
or electronic security breaches, fraud, identity theft, process failures, malicious employee acts or other failure or interruption 
of these systems could have a negative effect on the Group's operations. In addition, the Group's business may be 
materially adversely affected by the increasing risk of computer hacking, attacks by IT-viruses, distributed denial of service 
attacks and other forms of cybercrime. For instance, the Group relies on a booking system that manages all its course 
bookings. Failure of the Group's information technology systems, like the booking system, could cause transaction errors 
and loss of customers and could have an adverse effect on the Group's business, earnings, and financial position as well 
as its future prospects.  

1.1.6 Dependency on key employees, availability of relevant labour and employee related matters 

To a significant degree, the Group's success is dependent on its ability to hire, retain and develop quality employees 
throughout the organization. Since some of the Group's facilities are located in smaller/remote locations, it is important for 
the Group to be seen as an attractive employer. If the Group is unable to attract, retain and motivate qualified employees 
at all levels, and loses key employees, particularly to competitors, it could have an adverse effect on the Group's operations, 
earnings, and financial position. 

As the Group employs employees in the UK, USA, Guyana, UAE, Saudi Arabia and Egypt, there are demanding 
requirements for the Group to comply with many different labour regulations and requirements from the employees 
regarding pensions, salaries, work hours, and holidays. In particular the UAE, Saudi Arabia and Egypt are considered by 
the Group to be countries which pose the biggest challenge in terms of compliance. Should the Group not comply with 
demands from employees there is a risk that strikes, and other actions are arranged, which may negatively affect the Group 
and its activities. A breach of the labour regulations or requirements could also result in sanctions, additional costs, and 
negative publicity. Further, the Group and its advisors may have made erroneous estimates of the requirements, 
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interpretation and application of laws, provisions, and judicial practice. In addition, such laws, provisions, and practice may 
be changed, potentially with retroactive effect.  

1.1.7 Customer risks 

The Group’s top 5 customers accounted for approximately 18% of total revenues in 2024. The Group enters into a range 
of different contract types dependent upon the nature of the services being provided, including license agreements (delivery 
of technology based services on a licensed basis, typically with fixed terms and fees), maintenance agreements (contracts 
to provide ongoing support and maintenance for technology based products), training management contracts (where a 
management service is provided on a term basis for a determined fee). The loss of a significant customer contract or the 
insolvency of a significant customer could result in an adverse effect on the Group’s operations, financial position, and 
results. Furthermore, the Group is exposed to the risk of not being able to collect all its trade receivables from its customers. 
Although parts of the Group's income is based on short payment terms and advance payment by customers, there is 
always a risk that customers will not have the financial ability or willingness to meet their obligations. Customer 
bankruptcies or other elements that may delay or complicate collection of receivables will impact the Group's cash flow 
and liquidity. Furthermore, some of the contracts that the Group enters into imply that portions of the revenue are 
contingent, for instance in training management contracts entered on a call-off basis, whereby the majority of the Group's 
revenue under the relevant contract depends on whether the customer chooses to order the services on one or more 
occasions after the contract execution. If one of the Group's major customers under such a contract chooses not to order 
the services, or orders a minimal amount, this can have an adverse effect on the Group's business, earnings, and financial 
position. The Group's commercial success is dependent on its reputation among its customers, and if any major customers 
of the Group chooses not to continue to order services, it could entail a less favorable reputation, in particular if its due to 
the Group not being able to deliver the services in a satisfactory way (for instance by losing a license, see Section 1.1.4, 
or not being able to adapting to technical changes, see Section 1.1.3). Unfavorable reputation could thus further impact 
the Group’s financial performance and affect its future cash flows.  

1.1.8 Risk of safety incidents 

The Group has policies, procedures, and systems to safeguard delegate and employee safety and aims to follow best 
practices for safety. However, certain parts of the Group’s operations within training inherently entails certain risks for 
delegates and/or Group employees, such as in-water survival training, lifeboat launching and certain fire safety exercises. 
The consequences of safety incidents could be severe, including injury or loss of life, which in turn could entail the Group 
losing accreditation and being subjected to fines from public authorities, negatively affect the reputation of the business, 
and the financial performance of the Group's business and cause the Group to incur significant liability. 

1.1.9 The Group may not be able to adequately protect its intellectual property 

The Issuer holds copyright, patents and other intellectual property rights for software, its website, simulation technology, 
course material and related components, like intellectual property rights for drilling simulator software, crane software and 
well intervention software. Failure to adequately protect the Group's intellectual property rights could lead to unauthorized 
use or replication of its software and related technologies, resulting in a loss of competitive advantage. This may negatively 
affect the Group's financial performance through diminished revenue, increased legal costs, and reduced market share.  

1.1.10 Risks related to the Group's acquisition strategy 

The Group has acquired a number of companies and businesses as part of its growth strategy and digital transformation 
in the recent years, and further acquisitions are permitted under the Bond Terms. Examples in 2024 are the acquisition of 
AllStop! (which has since been renamed 3t Training Services Inc.), and GTSC in the Middle East. 

There is a risk that acquisitions of companies or operations outside the Group will present certain financial, managerial, 
and operational risks. Acquisitions are always exposed to a number of risks and considerable uncertainty with respect to 
ownership, other rights, assets, liabilities, licenses and permits, claims, legal proceedings, restrictions imposed by 
competition law, financial resources, environmental and other aspects. There is also a risk that an acquisition will lead to 
difficulties when integrating or separating businesses from existing operations and challenges presented by acquisitions 
which do not achieve sales levels and profitability that justify the investments made by the Group. The Group has so far 
not encountered challenges related to integration or materialized risks associated with the acquisitions (e.g. claims). 
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However, given that most acquisitions have occurred in the last five years, with the latest completed as recently as 2024, 
there remains latent risk of issues for the acquired companies. This applies, for example, in relation to tax claims, 
intellectual property rights, or disputes that may originate from the period before the Group acquired the company, but 
which manifests several years later. 

If the relevant acquisition targets are not successfully integrated, or other transactional risks as mentioned above 
materialize, there is a risk that the Group's business, financial condition, and results of operations will be adversely affected.  

1.2 Risks related to the Group's financial position  

1.2.1 Currency risk 

The Group reports in GBP but has other currencies as functional currencies, primarily USD, and conducts its purchases 
and sales in different currencies. As exchange rates fluctuate, these fluctuations lead to a translation exposure as the 
transactions made in currencies other than the reporting currency need to be recalculated into the reporting currency. 

There is a risk that this could result in a reduced value of the Group's local monetary assets and generate local currency 
losses. Further, in the case where the GBP appreciates in value against, inter alia, primarily the USD, then that may lead 
to an adverse effect on the Group's earnings and financial position as well as its future prospects and earnings. 

1.3 Risks relating to laws, regulation, and litigation 

1.3.1 Risk related to taxes and charges   

The Group conducts its business in accordance with its interpretation of applicable tax regulations, including the applicable 
tax rates, and applicable requirements and decisions. However, the Group's and its advisors' interpretation of applicable 
laws, provisions and judicial practice could prove to be incorrect. Further, such laws, provisions and practice may be 
changed, potentially with retroactive effect. There is a risk that changes in legislation or practice or a tax authority's 
challenge of the Group's interpretation of applicable laws will lead to an increase in the Group's tax liabilities and/or lead 
to sanctions by the tax authorities, resulting in adverse effects on the Group's business, earnings, and financial position. 

Further, the Group operates in the UK, USA, UAE, Saudi Arabia, Guyana and Egypt,  where increasingly complex tax laws 
and different laws that may apply. The amounts of taxes, duty and tariffs the Group pays in these jurisdictions may depend 
on a variety of factors including changes in laws or their interpretation by the relevant authorities, which could have a 
material adverse effect on the Group’s liquidity and results of operations. In addition, those authorities could review the 
Group’s tax returns and impose additional taxes and penalties, which could be material. 

1.3.2 New legislation and changes of industry standards 

The Group currently has local operations in UK, USA, UAE, Saudi Arabia, Guyana and Egypt. Consequently, the Group is 
affected by various legislations, regulations and standards, including, inter alia, tax regulations, employment legislation, 
environmental regulations, service liability regulations and global international industry standards with regards to safety 
and security, and geopolitical and social conditions in certain sectors of relevant markets. Amendments of laws, regulations 
and standards, leading to stricter requirements and changed conditions regarding safety and health or environment, or a 
development to a stricter implementation and application by the authorities of existing laws and regulations may have 
several negative implications for the Group. In addition, customers may demand the Group to comply with new standards 
in the future. Such changes may require that the Group makes further investments, with increased costs and other 
commitments for the Group as a result. Such changes may also imply that certain of the Group's services may become 
obsolete and could also limit or obstruct the Group's business.  

1.3.3 Compliance with laws and regulations, risks related to corrupt practices 

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption and anti-bribery and with international 
sanctions regimes. Certain jurisdictions in which the Group has operations have a low score on the Transparency 
International Corruption Perception Index, which implies that these markets are perceived as jurisdictions where there is a 
higher risk of corruption. For example, the Group has operations in Egypt through the acquisition of GTSC, which is now 
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a key market for the Group, and Guyana providing training services through the joint venture with EnerMech Ltd and certain 
local partners. In Egypt, the Group faces challenges due to strict regulatory frameworks and the necessity for direct 
interaction with governmental entities, which demand consistent monitoring to ensure compliance and prevent corrupt 
practices. In Guyana, the Group contends with a regulatory environment where standards can vary significantly, requiring 
precise management to adhere to anti-corruption laws and maintain lawful operations. Out of 180 countries, Egypt is 
ranked in 130th position and Guyana is ranked in 92th position in the Transparency International Corruptions Perceptions 
Index 2024. 

Any claims related to corruption or related to any failure to comply with applicable legislation or regulation may result in 
severe reputational damage, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group's ability to conduct its business and 
its results of operations, financial condition, and/or prospects. 
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2 RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 

3t Global Bidco Plc accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Registration Document. The Issuer confirms 
that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, to the best of its knowledge, the information contained 
in this Registration Document is in accordance with the facts and that the Registration Document makes no omission likely 
to affect its import. 

14 May 2025 

3t Global Bidco Plc
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3 GENERAL INFORMATION 

3.1 Approval of the Registration Document 

This Registration Document has on 14 May 2025 been approved by the Norwegian FSA as competent authority under the 
EU Prospectus Regulation. The Norwegian FSA only approves this Registration Document as meeting the standards of 
completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the EU Prospectus Regulation, and such approval should 
not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer that is the subject of this Registration Document.  

The Registration Document is valid for a period of 12 months from the date of approval by the Norwegian FSA. 

3.2 Other important investor information 

The Issuer has furnished the information in this Registration Document. No representation or warranty, express or implied, 
is made by any of the Issuer's advisors as to the accuracy, completeness or verification of the information set forth herein, 
and nothing contained in this Registration Document is, or shall be relied upon, as a promise or representation in this 
respect, whether as to the past or the future. Neither the Issuer nor any of their respective affiliates, representatives or 
advisors are making any representation to any offeree or purchaser of Bonds regarding the legality of an investment in the 
Bonds.  

The information contained herein is current as of the date hereof and is subject to change, completion and amendment 
without notice. In accordance with Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation, significant new factors, material mistakes or 
material inaccuracies relating to the information included in this Registration Document, which may affect the assessment 
of the Bonds and which arise or are noted between the time of approval of this Registration Document by the Norwegian 
FSA and the Listing, will be mentioned in a supplement to this Registration Document without undue delay. Except as 
required by applicable law and stock exchange rules, the Issuer does not undertake any duty to update the information in 
this Registration Document. Neither the publication nor distribution of this Registration Document shall under any 
circumstance imply that there has not been any change in the Group's affairs or that the information herein is correct as of 
any date subsequent to the date of this Registration Document. 

No person is authorized to give information or to make any representation concerning the Group other than as contained 
in this Registration Document. If any such information is given or made, it must not be relied upon as having been 
authorized by the Issuer or by any of its affiliates, representatives, or advisers. Each investor should consult with his or her 
own advisors as to the legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects of a purchase of the Bonds. 

Investing in the Bonds involves a significant degree of risk. See Section 1 "Risk Factors" beginning on page 5. 

3.3 Presentation of financial and other information 

3.3.1 Historical financial information 

3.3.1.1 Financial information of the Issuer 

The Issuer has in this Registration Document included the following financial statements: 

1) Audited standalone financial statements for the period from its incorporation on 14 March 2024 to 31 December 
2024 (the "Issuer Standalone Financial Statements"), prepared and audited in accordance with FRS 102, UK 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("UK GAAP").  
 

2) Audited consolidated financial statements for the Issuer for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 
including comparatives for 2023 (the "Issuer Financial Statements"), prepared in accordance with UK GAAP 
and accounting for the group reorganization by applying the application of merger accounting. The application of 
merger accounting results in the financial statements including a consolidated balance sheet, consolidated 
income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flow for the 
year ended 31 December 2024 and comparatives to 31 December 2023, and include a company balance sheet 
from the audit of incorporation to 31 December 2024.     
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The Issuer was incorporated on 14 March 2024 and functions solely as an intermediate holding company of the Group, 
which sole purpose has been to be the issuer of the Bonds. Operations are carried out through operating subsidiaries. 

In connection with the Listing, the Issuer will be transitioning to International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as 
adopted by the EU with effect from the accounting year 2025. See section 5.2.3.5 for a narrative description of the 
differences between the two accounting standards. Also, the Issuer Financial Statements include certain non-audited 
financial information that presents the material impacts of the UK GAAP transition to IFRS, cf. pages 49-53 in the Issuer 
Financial Statements. This is included to inform potential investors of the changes that will occur when the Issuer adopts 
IFRS for the year ended 31 December 2025. 

Under the terms of the Bonds, the Issuer will be preparing both consolidated and standalone financial statements moving 
forward. 

3.3.1.2 Financial information of the Guarantors 

The Guarantors' (as defined below) statements included in this Registration Document comprise the following financial 
statements: 

1) Transforming Training with Technology Limited (TTT); audited consolidated financial statements for the years 
2023 and 2024, prepared and audited in accordance with UK GAAP.  
 

2) Drilling Systems UK Limited; audited stand-alone financial statements for the year 2024 with comparable numbers 
for 2023, prepared and audited in accordance with UK GAAP. 
 

3) 3T Training Services Limited; audited stand-alone financial statements for the year 2024 with comparable 
numbers for 2023, prepared and audited in accordance with UK GAAP. 
 

The companies listed above are hereinafter individually referred to as a "Guarantor" and collectively as the "Guarantors". 

The financial statements of the Guarantors are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Guarantor Financial 
Statements". The Guarantor Financial Statements and the Issuer Financial Statements are hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the "Financial Information". 

3.3.2 Industry and market data 

In this Registration Document, the Issuer has used industry and market data from independent industry publications and 
market research.  

Unless otherwise indicated in the Registration Document, the basis for any statements regarding the Issuer's or the Group's 
competitive positions in the future is based on the Issuer's own assessment and knowledge of the potential market in which 
the Issuer and the Group may operate. The relevant information and data is sourced herein as "Company Information".  

The Issuer confirms that where information has been sourced from a third party, such information has been accurately 
reproduced and that as far as the Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, 
no facts have been omitted that would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. Where information 
sourced from third parties has been presented, the source of such information has been identified. However, source 
references to websites shall not be deemed as incorporated by reference to this Registration Document. The Issuer does 
not intend and does not assume any obligations to update industry or market data set forth in this Registration Document. 

The Issuer confirms that no statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in this Registration 
Document. 

Industry publications or reports generally state that the information they contain has been obtained from sources believed 
to be reliable, but the accuracy and completeness of such information is not guaranteed. The Issuer has not independently 
verified and cannot give any assurances as to the accuracy of market data contained in this Registration Document that 
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was extracted from these industry publications or reports and reproduced herein. Market data and statistics are inherently 
predictive and subject to uncertainty and not necessarily reflective of actual market conditions. Such statistics are based 
on market research, which itself is based on sampling and subjective judgements by both the researchers and the 
respondents, including judgements about what types of products and transactions should be included in the relevant 
market. 

The Issuer cautions prospective investors not to place undue reliance on the data. Unless otherwise indicated in the 
Registration Document, any statements regarding the Group's competitive position are based on the Issuer's own 
assessment and knowledge of the market in which it operates. 

As a result, prospective investors should be aware that statistics, data, statements and other information relating to 
markets, market sizes, market shares, market positions and other industry data in this Registration Document (and 
projections, assumptions and estimates based on such information) may not be reliable indicators of the Issuer's future 
performance and the future performance of the industry in which it operates. Such indicators are necessarily subject to a 
significant degree of uncertainty and risk due to the limitations described above and to a variety of other factors, including 
those described in Section 1 "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Registration Document. 

3.3.3 Currencies  

In this Registration Document, all references to "GBP" are to the lawful currency of the United Kingdom. The Financial 
Information has been prepared and audited with GBP as presentation currency. 

3.3.4 Rounding 

Certain figures included in this Registration Document have been subject to rounding adjustments (by rounding to the 
nearest whole number or decimal or fraction, as the case may be). Accordingly, figures shown for the same category 
presented in different tables may vary slightly. As a result of rounding adjustments, the figures presented may not add up 
to the total amount presented. 

3.4 Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements 

This Registration Document includes forward-looking statements that reflect the Issuer's current views with respect to 
future events and financial and operational performance. These forward-looking statements may be identified by the use 
of forward-looking terminology, such as the terms "anticipates", "assumes", "believes", "can", "could", "estimates", 
"expects", "forecasts", "intends", "may", "might", "plans", "should", "projects", "will", "would" or, in each case, their negative, 
or other variations or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements are not historic facts. They appear in 
Section 4 "Business of the Group" and Section 1 "Risk Factors" in this Registration Document, and include statements 
regarding the Issuer's intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, financial strength and 
position of the Group, operating results, liquidity, prospects, growth, the implementation of strategic initiatives, as well as 
other statements relating to the Group's future business development and financial performance, and the industry in which 
the Group operates, such as, but not limited to, statements relating to: 

● the Group's strategy, outlook and growth prospects; 

● the Group's operational and financial objectives, including statements as to the Issuer's medium or long-term 
growth and margin; 

● the competitive nature of the business in which the Group operates and the competitive pressure and competitive 
environment in general; 

● earnings, cash flow and other expected financial results and conditions; 

● the expected growth and other developments of the industries which the Group operates; 

● the Group's planned investments; 
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● forecasts; and 

● the Group's liquidity, capital resources, capital expenditures, and access to funding. 

Prospective investors are cautioned that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that 
the Group's actual financial position, operating results and liquidity, and the development of the industry and potential 
market in which the Group may operate in the future, may differ materially from those made in, or suggested by, the 
forward-looking statements contained in this Registration Document. The Issuer cannot guarantee that the intentions, 
beliefs or current expectations upon which its forward-looking statements are based will occur. 

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve, and are subject to, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions as they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Because of 
these known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, the outcome may differ materially from those set out in 
the forward-looking statements. Should one or more of these risks and uncertainties materialize, or should any underlying 
assumption prove to be incorrect, the Issuer's business, actual financial condition, cash flows or results of operations could 
differ materially from that described herein as anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. 

The risks that are currently known to the Issuer and which could affect the Group's future results and could cause results 
to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements are discussed in Section 1 "Risk Factors". 

The information contained in this Registration Document, including the information set out under Section 1 "Risk Factors", 
identifies additional factors that could affect the Group's financial position, operating results, cash flows, liquidity and 
performance. Prospective investors in the Bonds are urged to read all Sections of this Registration Document and, in 
particular, Section 1 "Risk Factors", for a more complete discussion of the factors that could affect the Group's future 
performance and the industry in which the Group operates when considering an investment in the Issuer. 

These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date on which they are made. The Issuer undertakes no obligation 
to publicly update or publicly revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events 
or otherwise. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Issuer or to persons acting on 
the Issuer's behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements referred to above and contained 
elsewhere in this Registration Document.
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4 BUSINESS OF THE GROUP 

This Section provides an overview of the Group's business as of the date of this Registration Document. The following 
discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect the Group's plans and estimates, see Section 3.4 "Cautionary 
note regarding forward-looking statements" above, and should be read in conjunction with other parts of this Registration 
Document, in particular, Section 1 "Risk Factors". 

4.1 Introduction to the Group's business  

4.1.1 Introduction 

The Group is a global provider of technology-enabled learning and safety training for energy, construction, industrials and 
other safety critical industries. 3t’s solutions range from regulatory driven compliance training and accreditations to tailored 
digital competence programs and fully outsourced multi-year managed services. 

Formed in 2017 through the merger of Drilling Systems Ltd and Advanced Industrial Solutions Limited (now known as 3t 
Training Services Limited), the Group today operates across 60 countries and is represented by a diverse workforce of 
over 17 nationalities, with offices and training centres located in the UK, North and South America, and the Middle East. 3t 
is the number one UK training provider to energy and industrial sectors and a major player globally.  

The Group is pursuing a growth strategy focusing on broadening its offering, expanding in adjacent sectors, deepening its 
digital offering and internationalisation. Since its formation, 3t has made multiple strategic acquisitions and during 2024 
has made strategic acquisitions to expand its international presence in attractive markets through the acquisition of US 
based ALL STOP!, Inc (which has since been renamed 3t Training Services Inc.) ("AllStop!") and Gulf Technical and 
Safety Training Centre LLC ("GTSC") in the Middle East.  

4.1.2 Principal activities 

The Group is a UK headquartered provider of tech-enabled learning and safety training for the energy, maritime, 
construction, industrials and other safety critical industries. 3t’s solutions range from regulatory driven compliance training 
and accreditations to tailored digital competence programs and fully outsourced multi-year managed services. 3t has 
actively invested in the development of its digital offering, including simulation, e-learning, immersive technologies and 
digital twins. 3t’s service offering includes: 

• Training: A provider of regulatory driven training, accreditations and safety courses, along with tech-enabled 
outsourcing solutions and bespoke workforce solutions. 

• Simulation: A developer and manufacturer of simulation learning technology to enhance safety and efficiency 
within the offshore energy sector. 

• Digital: Online learning platforms and technologies to accompany Training and Simulation services. 

3t seeks to ensure that clients remain continuously trained and compliant with the latest regulations in safety-critical 
industries. Through a combination of practical training, simulations, and digital services, 3t offers a blended learning 
experience that integrates both hands-on and digitally enhanced learning, maximizing the effectiveness of the training for 
delegates. The business is organized into the following three units: 

• 3t Training Services 
• 3t Drilling Systems 
• 3t Digital 

3t Training Services 

3t Training Services specializes in providing high-quality learning experiences through state-of-the-art training centres 
strategically located across the UK, US, and the Middle East. These include: (i) six locations in the UK, (ii) international 
joint ventures with EnerMech in Qatar and Guyana, (iii) three sites in the Middle East through the recent acquisition of 
GTSC, located in the UAE, Saudi Arabia, and Egypt, and (iv) two sites in the USA, located in Houma and Houston, following 
the AllStop! acquisition. 
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The 3t Training Services offering comprises a comprehensive portfolio of over 600 mandatory and optional skills, 
competency and safety courses endorsed by the some of the world’s leading trade associations, including OPITO, Global 
Wind Organisation (GWO), Industrial Rope Access Trade Association (IRATA), Engineering Construction Industry Training 
Board (ECITB), City & Guilds and the Institution of Occupational Safety and Health (IOSH). 

3t Drilling Systems  

3t Drilling Systems is a deep learning technology for the oil & gas industry with a range of highly advanced simulators. 
These enable workers to expand their knowledge and hone their skills and build safety critical competence in a safe, 
immersive and engaging environment. Available on-site, in the cloud or at one the Group's customer training centres, the 
simulators emulate drilling, well control, well intervention and crane operations in real time. 

3t Digital 

3t Digital is a connected platform of cloud-based software and technology, offering a range of highly configurable software 
solutions to effectively manage employees' compliance, competency, and learning. The Group's workforce training 
software streamlines selection, deploying the best-qualified workers for the job. Additionally, 3t Digital provides a portfolio 
of learning technologies for workforces operating in high hazard environments, including eLearning, Virtual Reality and 
blended learning programmes. 

4.2 History and important events 

4.2.1 Development of the Issuer and the Group 

3t Group was formed in 2017 through the initial merger of AIS and Drilling Systems. Subsequently, acquisitions of Neutron 
VR and Survivex (2018), Petrofac’s UK training operations (2021), Manchester based UCT (2023), USA based All Stop! 
and Middle East based GTSC (2024) helped expand the Group’s training footprint.  

In 2022 3t establishes an international joint venture with EnerMech delivering diversified training in Guyana. The 3t Group 
has been created through strategic acquisitions, with a focus on providing both physical and virtual training services in the 
UK, the Middle East and North and South America. 

4.2.2 Historic key milestones 

The table below shows the Group's key milestones from its incorporation and up to the date of this Registration Document: 

Date Main Events 

1988 Drilling Systems founded, headquartered in Bournemouth, UK. 

2011 AIS founded in Newcastle, UK. 

2015 Bluewater acquires Drilling Systems to accelerate product roll-out and international expansion 
strategy. 

2017 The Group was formed through a merger of Drilling Systems with AIS. 

2018 The Group acquires Neutron VR, a niche virtual reality and software specialist, to strengthen its 
technological capabilities and diversify client base outside energy, and Survivex, a leading offshore 
training provider based in Aberdeen. 

2020 Launch of Transform (now 3t Digital) specialising on cutting edge learning, training and competence 
software and technologies. 

2021 The Group acquires Petrofac UK Training – expanding its position within energy, renewables and 
marine training sectors in the UK enlarging its training business. 
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Date Main Events 

2022 The Group establishes a strategic international joint venture with EnerMech for diversified training 
delivery in Guyana and Qatar. 

2022 The Group acquires UCT, an electrical infrastructure and gas training provider in the UK. 

2024 Expanding footprint in the MENA region through the acquisition of GTSC and Allstop!, local players in 
safety training. 

 

4.3 Material contracts 

Neither the Issuer nor the rest of the Group have entered into any material contract outside the ordinary course of business, 
which could result in the Group being under an obligation or an entitlement that is material to their ability to meet their 
obligations to secure holders in respect of the Bonds. 

4.4 Legal and arbitrational proceedings 

Neither the Issuer, nor any of the Guarantors or any other company in the Group is, or has been, during the course of the 
preceding 12 months, involved in any legal, governmental or arbitration proceedings which may have, or has had in the 
recent past, significant effects on the Issuer's and/or the Group's financial position or profitability, and neither the Issuer 
nor any Guarantor are aware of any such proceedings which are pending or threatened. 
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5 SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

5.1 The Issuer and Guarantors 

5.1.1 Introduction, basis for preparation  

The selected financial information included in this Section has been derived from the Issuer Financial Statements and the 
Guarantor Financial Statements, being audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 
December 2024 with comparable numbers for 2023.  

For further information about the basis of preparation of the financial statements, see section 3.3. 

5.1.2 Summary of accounting policies and principles 

For a description of accounting policies, see note 2 in the Issuer Financial Statements. The same accounting principles 
have been applied in the Guarantor Financial Statements.  

5.1.3 Independent auditors 

The Issuer's and the Guarantors' independent auditor is BDO LLP ("BDO"), as detailed in section 9.1.1.  

The Financial Information has been audited by BDO in accordance with UK GAAP, and the audit reports are included in 
the Financial Information as attached to this Prospectus.  

BDO has not audited, reviewed, or produced any report on any other information provided in this Registration Document. 

5.2 Selected historical financial information  

5.2.1 Income statement 

The table below sets out selected data from the Issuer's consolidated income statement as derived from the Issuer 
Financial Statements as of and for the year ended 31 December 2024 with comparable numbers for 2023.  

(in £ thousands) Year ended 31 December                                                        Year ended 31 December 

 2024 
(audited) 

2023 
(audited) 

Operating Revenue and Other Income    

Revenue 67 383 60 346 

Share of profits in joint ventures 382  450 

Other operating income  221 348 

Total Revenue and Other Income 67 986 61 144 

Operating expenses   

Cost of sales  (32 052) (30 224) 

Administrative expenses  (33 062) (30 964) 

Total Operating Expenses (65 114) (61 188) 

 

 

  

Operating profit / (loss) (EBIT) 2 871 (45) 
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(in £ thousands) Year ended 31 December                                                        Year ended 31 December 

 2024 
(audited) 

2023 
(audited) 

Interest receivable and similar income   372  0 

Interest payable and similar expenses (15 936) (11 437) 

Net Financial Items (+Income/-Expense) (15 563) (11 437) 

Net income before taxes (12 692) (11 482) 

Taxation 384 1 026 

Net Income (+profit/-loss) (12 308) (10 456) 

Currency translation differences 195 (59) 

Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year (12 113) (10 515) 

 

5.2.2 Statement of financial position 

The table below sets out selected data from the Issuer's statement of financial position as derived from the Issuer Financial 
Statements as of and for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.  

(in £ thousands) As of 31 December As of 31 December 

 2024 
(audited) 

2023 
(audited) 

FIXED ASSETS   

Intangible assets  77 521  54 403 

Tangible assets  12 712  11 976 

Investments 832  450  

Total Fixed Assets 91 065  66 830  

   

CURRENT ASSETS   

Stocks 1 654  1 678  

Debtors 34 438  23 760  

Cash at bank 4 490  1 810 

Total Current Assets 40 581  27 248 

   

CREDITORS   

Amounts falling due within one year (21 528)  (20 473)  

   

NET CURRENT ASSETS 19 053 6 775 
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TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

110 118  73 605 

   

CREDITORS   

Amounts falling due after more than one 
year 

(178 169)  (130 272) 

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES  (5 394)  (4 664)  

NET LIABILITES (73 445)  (61 332)  

   

CAPITAL AND RESERVES   

Called up share capital  525 525 

Profit and loss account  (73 970)  (61 857)  

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  (73 445)  (61 332)  

 

5.2.3 Historical financial information for the Issuer and Guarantors 

5.2.3.1 3t Global Bidco Plc 

The audited financial statements of 3t Global Bidco Plc, prepared on the basis of merger accounting principles, as of and 
for the years ended 31 December 2024 with comparable numbers for 2023 (including audited standalone financial 
statements for the period from the Issuer's incorporation 14 March 2024 to 31 December 2024)  have been prepared in 
accordance with UK GAAP and have been audited by BDO. These financial statements, including the balance sheet, 
income statement, a summary of accounting principles, and notes, can be found in Appendix 6. 

The page references refer to the pages in the annual report and not the pages of this document. 

Annual Financial Statements As of and for the year ended 31 December 2024 As of and for the year ended 31 December 2023 

Balance sheet Pages 18-19 Pages 18-19 

Income statement  Pages 16-17  Pages 16-17 

Summary of accounting principles  Pages 24-32  Pages 24-32 

Notes  Pages 23-48 Pages 23-24 

Audit report  Pages 12-15 Pages 12-15 

 

5.2.3.2 Transforming Training with Technology Limited 

The audited financial statements of Transforming Training with Technology Limited as of and for the years ended 31 
December 2024 with comparable numbers for 2023 have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and have been 
audited by BDO. These financial statements, including the balance sheet, income statement, a summary of accounting 
principles, and notes, can be found in Appendix 7. 

The page references refer to the pages in the annual report and not the pages of this document. 
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Annual Financial Statements As of and for the year ended 31 December 2024 As of and for the year ended 31 December 2023 

Balance sheet Pages 17-18 Pages 14-15 

Income statement  Pages 15-16  Pages 12-13 

Summary of accounting principles  Pages 23-30  Pages 20-28 

Notes  Pages 22-47 Pages 19-20  

Audit report  Pages 11-14 Pages 8-11 

 

5.2.3.3 3t Training Services Limited 

The audited financial statements of 3t Training Services Limited as of and for the years ended 31 December 2024 with 
comparable numbers for 2023 have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and have been audited by BDO. These 
financial statements, including the balance sheet, income statement, a summary of accounting principles, and notes, can 
be found in Appendix 8. 

The page references refer to the pages in the annual report and not the pages of this document. 

Annual Financial Statements As of and for the year ended 31 December 2024 As of and for the year ended 31 December 2023 

Balance sheet Page 12 Page 12 

Income statement  Page 11 Page 11 

Summary of accounting principles  Pages 14-18  Pages 14-18  

Notes  Pages 14-25 Pages 14-25 

Audit report  Page 7-10 Page 7-10 

 

5.2.3.4 Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited 

The audited financial statements of Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited as of and for the years ended 31 December 2024 with 
comparable numbers for 2023 have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and have been audited by BDO. These 
financial statements, including the balance sheet, income statement, a summary of accounting principles, and notes, can 
be found in Appendix 9. 

The page references refer to the pages in the annual report and not the pages of this document. 

Annual Financial Statements As of and for the year ended 31 December 2024 As of and for the year ended 31 December 2023 

Balance sheet Page 12 Page 12 

Income statement  Page 11 Page 11 

Summary of accounting principles  Pages 14-19  Pages 14-19  

Notes  Pages 14-26 Pages 14-26 

Audit report  Pages 7-10 Pages 7-10 
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5.2.3.5 Further elaboration on the application of UK GAAP 

The Guarantor Financial Statements, the Issuer Standalone Financial Statements and the Issuer Financial Statements 
have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102, UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP, as defined 
herein) and have been audited by BDO. These financial statements are thus not prepared in accordance with IFRS and 
there may be material differences in the financial information had IFRS been applied to the historical financial information. 

UK GAAP differs from IFRS in a number of areas, and more specifically, the material difference is that neither the 
Guarantor's or the Issuer has implemented IFRS 16. As a result, office lease is treated as operating expenses rather than 
being capitalized as a right-of-use asset. 
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6 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW AND RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

This Section on financial overview should be read together with the Financial Information and related notes included 
therein.  

This Section should also be read together with Section 3 "General Information" and Section 4 "Business of the Group". 
This review contains forward-looking statements. These statements do not constitute historical facts, but are rather based 
on the Group's current expectations, estimates, assumptions and projections about the Group's industry, business, 
strategy, and future financial results. Actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-
looking statements because of a number of factors, including those discussed in Section 1 "Risk Factors" of this 
Registration Document, as well as other Sections of this Registration Document. 

6.1 General overview and recent developments 

There have been no material adverse changes in the prospects of the Issuer, the Guarantors or the Group since the date 
of its last published audited financial statements. 

6.2 Significant changes in the financial position of the Group  

There has been no significant change in the financial position of the Group since 31 December 2024 (being the end of the 
last financial period for which financial information has been published). 

6.3 Significant changes in the financial performance of the Group 

There have been no significant changes in the financial performance of the Group since 31 December 2024 (being the end 
of the last financial period for which financial information has been published) and until the date of this Registration 
Document. 

6.4 Recent events relevant to the evaluation of the solvency of the Issuer and the Guarantors 

There have been no recent events particular to the Issuer or the Group that to a material extent are relevant for the 
evaluation of the solvency of the Issuer or any of the Guarantors. 
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7 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT 

7.1 Introduction 

The general meeting is the highest decision-making authority of the Issuer. All shareholders of the Issuer are entitled to 
attend and vote at the general meetings and to table draft resolutions for items to be included on the agenda for a general 
meeting. 

The overall management of the Issuer is vested with its board of directors (the "Board of Directors", each a "Board 
Member") and the Group's executive management (the "Management"). In accordance with UK law, the Board of Directors 
is responsible for, among other things, supervising the general and day-to-day management of the Issuer's business 
ensuring proper organization, preparing plans and budgets for its activities ensuring that the Issuer's activities, accounts, 
and assets management are subject to adequate controls and undertaking investigations necessary to perform its duties. 

The Management is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Issuer's operations in accordance with UK law and 
instructions set out by the Board of Directors. 

7.2 The Issuer 

7.2.1 The Board of Directors 

7.2.1.1 Overview and composition of the Board of Directors 

The current Board of Directors of the Issuer consists of three Board Members, and the names and positions of the Board 
Members as at the date of this Registration Document are set out in the table below. The Issuer's registered address at 
Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, Dorset, BH23 6EW, England, serves as 
the business address for the members of the Board of Directors in relation to their directorship in the Issuer.  

Name Position 

Kevin Franklin Director 

Martin Boden Director 

Martin Somerville Director 

 

7.2.1.2 Indications of the Board Members' other principal activities performed outside of the Group  

Set out below are indications of each of the Board Member's significant principal activities performed outside the Issuer 
where relevant for the business of the Group, including the names of companies and partnerships of which a Board Member 
is a member of the administrative management or supervisory bodies or partner (not including directorships and executive 
management positions in subsidiaries of the Issuer), as well as brief biographies of the Board Members. 

Kevin Franklin, Director 

Joining 3t in July 2018, Kevin became CEO for the Group after spending more than 30 years in senior leadership roles in 
a range of sectors including aviation, technology, and training. A highly experienced leader with strong business acumen, 
prior to 3t, Kevin worked as an Executive Director of a global aviation training group operating in 15 countries generating 
annual revenues of 200m Euros with strong parallels to 3t. During Kevin’s career, he has been instrumental in driving 
impactful business change. He is a Chartered Accountant and holds a BA in Geography. Kevin leads on the business 
strategy across 3t encompassing 3t Training Services, 3t Digital, 3t Drilling Systems, 3t Managed Services and 3t 
Workforce Solutions. 

Current other directorships and management positions:  Childnet, Director 
Franklin Davies Partnership Limited, Director 
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Tamarind and Cumin Management Company Limited, Director  

  

Martin Boden, Director 

With a wealth of experience as a CFO across various industries, including recent roles at Small World Financial Services 
and JDR Cable Systems, Martin brings exceptional value to our team. Since joining us in 2024, he has been instrumental 
in the successful launch of our $100 million bond on the Norwegian public markets. Under his leadership, the 3t finance 
team is achieving impressive results. Martin’s strategic vision and innovative approach to financial management are driving 
significant improvements and aligning our financial practices with our broader business objectives. 

Current other directorships and management positions:  Martin Boden Consulting Limited, Director 
Northern Bear PLC, Non-Executive Director 
235 Stoke Newington Church Street Management 
Company Limited, Director  

 

Martin Somerville, Director 

Martin is Managing Director with Bluewater Private Equity, majority shareholder in 3t. He has 25 years of financial 
experience, including 20 years within energy private equity and M&A. Prior to joining Bluewater, he held senior roles at 
HitecVision, RBC Capital Markets and KPMG. He is a qualified CA with a degree in Accountancy and Finance from Heriot 
Watt University in Edinburgh. 

Current other directorships and management positions:  IMServ Europe Limited, Director 
Jordan Midco Limited, Director 
Jordan Bidco Limited, Director 
Jordan Topco Limited, Director 
Pipeline Technique Ltd., Director 
PTL UK Bidco Limited, Director 
PTL UK Midco Limited, Director 
PTL UK Topco Limited, Director 
Transforming Training with Technology Limited, Director 
Orchid Holdco 1 Limited, Director 
Blue Water Energy LLP, LLP Member 
Ross Martin Properties Limited, Director 
Global Energy Storage Holdings Limited 
Wellesley Holdco Limited, Director  

 

7.2.2 Management 

7.2.2.1 Composition of the Management 

The Group's Management consists of five individuals. The names and respective positions of the members of Management 
as at the date of this Registration Document are presented in the table below. The Issuer's registered address at Hurn 
View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, Dorset, BH23 6EW, England, serves as a 
business address for all members of Management in relation to their positions with the Issuer. 

Name Position 

Kevin Franklin Chief Executive Officer 

Martin Boden Chief Financial Officer 

Clive Battisby Chief Commercial Officer, 3t Technologies 

Paul Knowles VP, 3t Training Services 
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7.2.2.2 Indications of the members of Management's other principal activities performed outside of the Group  

Set out below are the brief biographies of each member of the Management, as well as indications of each member's 
significant principal activities performed outside the Issuer where relevant for the business of the Group, including the 
names of companies and partnerships of which a member of the Management is a member of the administrative 
management or supervisory bodies or partner (not including directorships and executive management positions in 
subsidiaries of the Issuer). 

Kevin Franklin, Chief Executive Officer 

Current other directorships and management positions:  See Section 7.2.1.2 above  

  

Martin Boden, Chief Financial Officer 

Current other directorships and management positions:  See Section 7.2.1.2 above  

 

Clive Battisby, Chief Commercial Officer, 3t Technologies  

Joining the business in 1990, Clive has progressed through the business from his initial role as Software Programmer 
working his way to senior leadership where he now leads the team as Chief Operating Officer (COO) of Drilling Systems. 
Supporting the core development of Drilling System’s products and projects over the years, Clive has deep insight and 
understanding of the business that few others possess. Utilising his experience to help continue to drive the Group 
forward, and identify future opportunities for innovation and growth, Clive’s experience and insight have made him a 
crucial asset to the Group. 

Current other directorships and management positions:  

 

Iwcf Operations Limited, Director 
  

 

Paul Knowles, Vice President, 3t Training Services 

With a career that spans over 20 years in senior management roles, including his role as UK Managing Director of global 
chemical manufacturer Chemson, Paul joined the Group in 2017 to head up our training division, 3t Training Services. 
Under Paul’s leadership, 3t Training Services has grown steadily, acquiring two major training businesses and scooping 
many high-profile training contracts. 

Current other directorships and management positions:  

 

N/A 
  

 

 

7.3 The Guarantors 

7.3.1 Transforming Training with Technology Limited 

The names and positions of the board of directors of Transforming Training with Technology Limited are set out in the table 
below: 

Name Position 

Martin Boden Director 
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Kevin Franklin Director 

Martin Somerville Director 

The Group's Management (as listed in Section 7.2.2.1) functions as the management for each of the Guarantors. 

The company's registered address, Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park West Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, 
Dorset, England, United Kingdom, BH23 6EW, also serves as the business address for the members of the board of 
directors and the management in relation to their directorships and positions in the company.  

7.3.2 3t Training Services Limited 

The names and positions of the board of directors of 3t Training Services Limited are set out in the table below: 

Name Position 

Martin Boden Director 

Kevin Franklin Director 

Paul Knowles Director 

The Group's Management (as listed in Section 7.2.2.1) functions as the management for each of the Guarantors. 

The company's registered address, Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, 
Christchurch, Dorset, England, BH23 6EW, also serves as the business address for the members of the board of directors 
and the management in relation to their directorships and positions in the company.  

7.3.3 Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited 

The names and positions of the board of directors of Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited are set out in the table below: 

Name Position 

Clive Battisby Director 

Martin Boden Director 

Kevin Franklin Director 

The Group's Management (as listed in Section 7.2.2.1) functions as the management for each of the Guarantors. 

The company's registered address, Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park, West Bournemouth International, Airport Hurn 
Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW, also serves as the business address for the members of the board of directors and the 
management in relation to their directorships and positions in the company.  

7.4 Conflict of interests etc. 

Neither the Issuer nor any of the Guarantors are aware of any actual or potential conflicts of interest between the private 
interests or other duties of any of the members of the respective board of directors and management of the Issuer and of 
each Guarantor, and their respective duties towards the Issuer or the Guarantors. There are no family relations between 
any of the members of the Board of Directors or members of Management. 
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8 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The following is a summary of certain corporate information as of the date of this Registration Document. The summary 
does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by the Articles of Association and applicable law. 

8.1 Corporate information 

8.1.1 The Issuer  

The legal and commercial name of the Issuer is 3t Global Bidco Plc. The Issuer is a public limited company validly 
incorporated on 14 March 2024, organized and existing under the laws of England and Wales in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006. The Issuer is registered with the UK Companies House under company number 15562274 and its 
LEI code is 984500A9A01BC5EF1N17. The Issuer's registered business address is Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park 
West Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, Dorset, England, United Kingdom, BH23 6EW, which is also its principal 
place of business. 

The Group's website is www.3tglobal.com, and the telephone number to the Group's principal offices is +44 [0] 1202 
582255. The contents of the website are not incorporated by reference into, nor otherwise form part of, this Registration 
Document. 

8.1.2 The Guarantors 

8.1.2.1 Transforming Training with Technology Limited 

The Guarantor's legal and commercial name is Transforming Training with Technology Limited. The Guarantor was 
incorporated on 10 August 2017 as a private limited company, and is validly existing under the laws of England and Wales 
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. The Guarantor is registered with the UK Companies House under company 
number 10908456. Transforming Training with Technology Limited' LEI code is 213800ZHXDS91BZBA693. 

The registered business address of Transforming Training with Technology Limited is Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park 
West, Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, Dorset, England, BH23 6EW, which is also its principal place of business.  

8.1.2.2 3t Training Services Limited 

The Guarantor's legal and commercial name is 3t Training Services Limited. The Guarantor was incorporated on 30 
October 2006 as a private limited company, and is validly existing under the laws of England and Wales in accordance 
with the Companies Act 2006. The Guarantor is registered with the UK Companies House under company number 
05982756. 3t Training Services Limited' LEI code is 9845009XBD54763B5369. 

The registered business address of 3t Training Services Limited is Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth 
International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, England, BH23 6EW, which is also its principal place of business.  

8.1.2.3 Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited  

The Guarantor's legal and commercial name is Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited. The Guarantor was incorporated on 6 June 
1990 as a private limited company, and is validly existing under the laws of England and Wales in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006. The Guarantor is registered with the UK Companies House under company number 02509111. 
Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited' LEI code is 9845007D4R02F5559A37. 

The registered business address of Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited is Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park, West Bournemouth 
International, Airport Hurn Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW, which is also its principal place of business.  

http://www.3tglobal.com/
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8.2 Legal structure 

The Issuer is an intermediate holding company within the Group. The Group's operations are carried out through the 
Issuer's operating subsidiaries, and the main portion of the Group's cash balance is held at subsidiary level to cover the 
daily liquidity requirements of the operating subsidiaries. The Issuer is dependent on the upstreaming of cash and dividends 
from its subsidiaries in order to service its debt and operational expenditures. 

The Issuer's immediate parent company is 3t Global Subco Limited, which is wholly owned by 3t Global Holdco Limited 
through indirect holding companies. The Issuer's holding companies are directly or indirectly controlled by funds advised 
by the international private equity firm Blue Water Energy LLP. 

The table below sets out brief information about the Issuer's direct and indirect subsidiaries, including country of 
incorporation. Only the Issuer's non-dormant subsidiaries have been included. An overview of the complete Group structure 
is set out in Appendix 1. 

Subsidiary Domicile Ownership 
Transforming Training with Technology Limited England and Wales 100% 

3t Training Services Limited (indirect) England and Wales 100% 

Utility & Construction Training Limited (Indirect) England and Wales 100% 

Drilling Systems Limited (Indirect) England and Wales 100% 

3t Digital Limited (Indirect) England and Wales 100% 

Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC (Indirect) Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 100% 

General Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC (Indirect) Saudi Arabia 100% 

Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC (Indirect) Egypt 100% 

ALL STOP! Survival & Safety Training LLC (Indirect) Texas, USA 100% 

ALL STOP! ONLINE, LLC (Indirect) Texas, USA 100% 

DSG International DMCC (Indirect) Dubai, United Arab Emirates 100%* 

Drilling Systems Inc. (Indirect) Texas, USA 100% 

ODITC Inc. (Indirect) Guyana 34%** 

 
* This company is in the process of being liquidated. 
**This is a subsidiary of 3t EnerMech Limited, the joint venture which the Group owns 50% of. 

8.3 Major shareholders 

As at the date of this Registration Document, 100% of the shares and votes in the Issuer are held by 3t Global Subco 
Limited, which is wholly owned by 3t Global Holdco Limited through indirect wholly-owned holding companies. The Issuer's 
holding companies are directly or indirectly controlled by funds advised by the international private equity firm Blue Water 
Energy LLP. An overview of the Group structure is set out in Appendix 1. 

Neither the Issuer nor any of the Guarantors are aware of any arrangements, the operation of which may at a subsequent 
date result in a change of control of the Issuer. No particular measures have been put in place to ensure that control over 
the Issuer is not abused by large shareholders. 

8.4 Share capital 

As at the date of this Registration Document, the Issuer's share capital is GBP 525,001, divided into 525,001 shares with 
a par value of GBP 1 each. All shares have been created under the Companies Act 2006 and are validly issued and fully 
paid.  
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9 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

9.1 Independent auditors and advisors 

9.1.1 Independent auditors 

The Issuer's and the Guarantor's independent auditor is BDO LLP, with business registration number OC305127 and with 
registered address 55 Baker Street, London, W1U 7EU, United Kingdom. The partners of BDO LLP are members of 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. BDO LLP has been the Issuer's auditor since its incorporation 
in 2024.  

9.1.2 Advisors  

Wikborg Rein Advokatfirma AS, with registration number 916 782 195 and registered address Dronning Mauds gate 11, 
N-0250 Oslo, Norway, has acted as Norwegian legal counsel to the Issuer. 

9.2 Documents available 

For the terms of the Registration Document, the following documents, where applicable, can be inspected at the website 
of the Issuer, www.3tglobal.com: 

a) The up to date memorandum and articles of association of the Issuer and the Guarantor's; and 
 

b) all reports, letters, and other documents, valuations and statements prepared by any expert at the Issuer's 
request, any part of which is included or referred to in the Registration Document. 
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AllStop! The US based company ALL STOP!, Inc, which has since been renamed 3t Training Services Inc. 
Articles of Association The articles of association of the Issuer as of 1 May 2024 
BDO The Issuer's independent auditor, BDO LLP, with business registration number OC305127 and with 

registered address 55 Baker Street, London, W1U 7EU, United Kingdom 
Board of Directors or Board Members The board of directors of the Issuer, as set out in the table in Section 7.2.2.1 
Bond Terms The bond terms entered into on 16 May 2024 between the Issuer as issuer and Nordic Trustee AS as 

bond trustee and security agent on behalf of the bondholders 
Bonds The initial bonds issue in the amount of USD 100,000,000 under the Issuer's 11.25% senior secured 

USD 150,000,000 bonds 2024/2028, issued on 22 May 2024, pursuant to the bond terms entered into 
on 16 May 2024 between the Issuer as issuer and Nordic Trustee AS as bond trustee and security 
agent on behalf of the bondholders 

Company Information The information concerning the Issuer and the Group as defined in Section 3.3.2 
EU Prospectus Regulation Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on the 

prospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a 
regulated market, and repealing Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended, and as implemented in Norway in 
accordance with Section 7-1 of the Norwegian Securities Trading Act 

Financial Information The Guarantor Financial Statements and the Issuer Financial Statements collectively 
GBP British pound sterling 
Group The issuer together with its subsidiaries and parent companies 
GTSC The middle east based company Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC 
Guarantor Financial Statements The financial statements of all the Guarantors, as set out in Section 3.3.1.2 
Guarantor or Guarantors The companies listed in Section 3.3.1.2 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 
Issuer 3t Global Bidco Plc, a public limited company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, 

registered with the UK Companies House under company number 15562274 
Issuer Financial Statements The audited consolidated financial statements for the Issuer for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 

December 2024 including comparatives for 2023 prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and 
accounting for the group reorganization by applying the application of merger accounting 

Issuer Standalone Financial Statements The Issuer's audited standalone financial statements for the period from its incorporation on 14 March 
2024 to 31 December 2024 

LEI Legal entity identifier 
Listing The listing on the Oslo Stock Exchange, a stock exchange being part of Euronext and operated by 

Oslo Børs ASA, of the initial bonds issue in the amount of USD 100,000,000 under the Issuer's 
11.25% senior secured USD 150,000,000 bonds 2024/2028, issued on 22 May 2024 

Management The management of the Issuer, as set out in the table in Section 7.2.1.1 
Norwegian FSA Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority (nw.; Finanstilsynet) 
Norwegian Securities Trading Act Norwegian Securities Trading Act of 29 June 2007 no. 75 (nw.; Verdipapirhandelloven) 
Prospectus This Registration Document together with the Securities Note dated 14 May 2025 
Registration Document This Registration Document dated 14 May 2025 
UK GAAP FRS 102, UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
USD United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States 
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APPENDIX 2 - Articles of Association of 3t Global Bidco Plc 

  













































































 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 - Articles of Association of Transforming Training with Technology Limited (TTT) 
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APPENDIX 4 - Articles of Association of Drilling Systems UK Limited 

  













































 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 - Articles of Association of 3T Training Services Limited 

  

























































 

 

 

APPENDIX 6 - Financial Statements for 3t Global Bidco Plc 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

The directors present their strategic report together with the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 
December 2024.  
  
3t Global Bidco PLC was incorporated on 14 March 2024. These are the first financial statements covering the period 
from 14 March 2024 to 31 December 2024. Where consolidated financial comparatives are presented, these represent 
the reported Transforming Training with Technology Limited consolidated position for the year ended 31 December 2023 
and a full 12 months consolidated position for the year ended 31 December 2024.  
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
The principal activities of the group are: 
 

3t Training Services: Best-in-class learning experiences delivered at state-of-the-art training centres strategically placed 
in five UK locations (Aberdeen, Glasgow, Newcastle, Manchester, and Teeside), a Joint Venture in Guyana and on-site 
mobile training hubs internationally. 
 

3t Digital: is a connected platform of cloud-based software and technology offering a range of highly configurable 
software solutions to effectively manage employees' compliance, competency, and learning. Our workforce training 
software streamlines selecting and deploying the best-qualified workers for the job. 3t Digital additionally provides a 
portfolio of learning technologies for workforces operating in high hazard environments. 
 

3t Drilling Systems: is a deep learning technology for the oil & gas industry with a range of highly advanced simulators. 
These enable workers to expand their knowledge and hone their skills and build safety critical competence in a safe, 
immersive and engaging environment. Available on-site, in the cloud or at one of our customer training centres, the 
simulators emulate drilling, well control, well intervention and crane operations in real time. 
 

Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre (GTSC): Acquired in September 2024, GTSC operates state-of-the-art training 
centres in Abu Dhabi, Saudi Arabia and Egypt. It has been re-branded to show it is part of 3t and it provides best in class 
high impact learning experiences primarily to oil and gas related customers. 
 

ALL STOP! Survival and Safety Training: Acquired in June 2024, ALL STOP! has been rebranded as 3t Training 
Services  Houston. It provides best in class high impact learning experiences from its facilities in Houston, Texas and 
Houma, Louisiana. 
 

Across 3t's businesses, we also offer bespoke blended training, learning, induction, and upskilling programmes, 
harnessing the capabilities across our training, technology and simulation offering. 
 

The principal activity of the company is that of a holding company. 
 

FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS 
We aim to present a balanced and comprehensive review of the development and performance of our business during 
the period and its position at the year end. Our review is consistent with the size and nature of the business and is 
written in the context of the risks and uncertainties we face. 
 

The Group's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows: 
 

 
 

 
Unit 

  
 

Year ended 31 
December 2024** 

Year ended 31 
December 2023 

Revenue  £ m  67.4  60.3 
Gross Profit  £ m   35.3 30.1 
Gross Margin  %   52.4 49.9 
Adjusted EBITDA*  £ m  15.4 12.0 
*Adjusted EBITDA (before non-recurring items) is calculated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, 
unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses and non-recurring items plus share of operating profit in joint ventures. 
 

**Acquired business results are consolidated from the date of acquisition.   
 

The Group had a positive 2024 with growth across a number of its key areas. Our strategic objectives of broadening our 
offer, expanding into adjacent sectors, deepening our digital capability and internationalisation have all advanced and 
continue to do so. Revenue increased by 11.8% from £60.3m to £67.4m and Adjusted EBITDA* increased by 28.3% 
from £12.0m to £15.4m.  
 

The Group's client base continues to increase as we win further work in our existing verticals as well as expanding into 
other relevant markets. Accretive acquisitions, including those of GTSC and ALL STOP! highlighted above, continue to 
form part of our strategy where there is a clear business rationale. 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 

 
FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS  continued  
 
Our joint venture with EnerMech, 3t EnerMech, together with a local partner is strengthening our physical training 
capability in Guyana. 
 
In May 2024 the Company raised a Senior Secured USD150 million Nordic Bond with USD100 million drawn, a four-year 
facility repayable in May 2028. The interest coupon is 11.25% payable in half yearly instalments commencing in 
November 2024. The Bond has been used to repay all bank debt from Investec Bank Plc, to finance the acquisitions in 
2024 of ALL STOP! Inc and GTSC and for general working capital purposes. Under the terms of the Nordic Bond issue, 
in November 2024 3t Global Bidco became a listed entity on the Nordic ABM, a list of registered bonds operated by Oslo 
Børs ASA and is in the process of stepping up to the main Oslo Stock Exchange in May 2025. 
 

The fundamentals of the business remain strong, and the Board believes that a combination of our training and 
technology offering, our sector diversification as the energy transition gathers pace and wider geographic spread leaves 
the Group well positioned going into 2025 and beyond. 
 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
The Board has the overall accountability for ensuring that risk is effectively managed across the Group.  
The principal risks and uncertainties have been assessed by the Board as follows based on the following criteria: 

1. assessment of the likelihood of the risk materialising, 
2. magnitude of the risk and 
3. assessment of changes in each risk (e.g. decreased, stable or increased) 

 
Nature of risk Likelihood of 

the risk 
materialising 

Magnitude of 
risk 

Assessment of 
change 

Geopolitical and economic environment Medium Medium Increasing 

 Low Medium Stable 

Training centre certification Low Medium Stable 

Foreign exchange Medium Medium Increasing 

Cyber security Medium High Stable 

 
Each risk is further defined below. 
 
Continuing uncertainty in the geopolitical and economic environment represents the principal risk to the Group. 
Continuing events in Ukraine and Gaza and the threat of a global trade war, due to tariffs being imposed on goods, may 
increase inflationary pressures and the chance of recession resulting in lower demand for services. Much of the revenue 
of 3t is service based so the impact of any tariff-based increase should be limited. Also, continuing high energy prices 
means there is still strong demand from the oil and gas and renewable energy sectors, key markets that 3t are heavily 
involved in. 
 

With tax rates in the oil and gas sector increasing, investment in the UK continues to be weak, affecting a key market for 
3t. The UK October 2024 Budget increased the Energy Profits Levy (EPL) tax rate by 3%, bringing the headline rate of 

continued investment in this sector, 3t continues to grow its offering in the renewables space. 
 

The above risks may all impact the Group's anticipated order values, contract commitments and related cash flows. This 
risk is managed as far as possible via diversification across a wide range of customers, products, and services and so 
the Group is not reliant upon any single customer, or group of customers, or upon any single product or service. 
 

Other risks include the potential obsolescence of the Group's products. The Group invests appropriately to ensure that 
the range of products and services offered to customers remains at the forefront of technology. As such, the Group 
believes it is mitigating as far as possible the risks of obsolescence.  
 
The Group depends on its training centres being certified by the relevant accredited body to be able to perform training 

ensure that the competency of the operations team is maintained and that the training centres meet the relevant 
standards to mitigate this risk. 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 GROUP STRATEGIC REPORT 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - continued 
 

Foreign exchange risk principally relates to the GBP to USD exchange rate as a proportion of revenues are collected in 
US dollars. The Group avoids contracts in other currencies where possible. The exposure to foreign currency is reviewed 
by the Directors and managed via forward exchange currency contracts where appropriate. As the Group continues to 
expand internationally, the foreign-denominated earnings from these operations (which are typically generated in USD) 
will provide a currency hedge to partially offset the interest charge related to the USD denominated Nordic Bond. 
 

Cyber security represents another area of risk and is one which is monitored closely by the Board. The business is ever 
vigilant in this regard, has clear policies & procedures, ongoing awareness campaigns, uses state of the art firewalls, and 
utilises ISO 27001 as a framework for ensuring external audits are undertaken regularly. 
 

OTHER RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 

The Group has local operations in six countries, consequently, the Group is affected by various legislations, regulations, 
and standards, including, inter alia, tax regulations, employment legislation, environmental regulations, service liability 
regulations and global international industry standards with regards to safety and security. The Directors mitigate this risk 
by ensuring that they are supported by key professional advisors in each jurisdiction to ensure that compliance in all 
these matters is maintained and that any change to regulations, legislation or standards are planned for and executed in 
a timely manner, to remain compliant. 

The business' principal financial instruments comprise bank debt, trade debtors, trade creditors and intercompany loans 
and loan notes both to and from the Group and Company. The main purpose of these instruments is to finance the 
business' operations. The Group bank facility with Investec Bank plc was repaid in May 2024 and replaced with a $150m 
Nordic Bond facility, of which $100m is drawn, that is now in place until May 2028. The company entered into a 
Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) with Barclays Bank Plc in March 2025, with the ability to drawdown up to £10m. 
 

Interest rate risk is mitigated by the fact that the Nordic Bond is a fixed rate bond for the term period. The RCF is subject 
to variable rates, but this will only affect the Group where monies have been drawn down. 
 

In respect of bank balances, the business' cash balances are held in different accounts and currencies in various 
territories with liquidity levels managed closely at a Group level. 
 

Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies concerning the credit offered to customers 
and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits. The amounts presented in the balance 
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debtors. Process and system improvements have been made to improve the 
rate of collection of outstanding monies. Trade creditors' liquidity risk is managed by ensuring sufficient funds are 
available to meet amounts due. 

OUR TEAM 
Our colleagues are our key asset in order to deliver quality solutions for our clients and we are constantly looking to 
strengthen and enhance our team. We review our remuneration to ensure it is competitive and our employees receive 
training and other development as appropriate. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG) 
ESG is a key focus for the Board. We are focused on creating a sustainable future by providing innovative solutions that 
help our customers operating in safety-critical industries to develop a safer and more efficient workforce. 3t embraces the 
core principles of integrity and accountability and positions our ESG responsibilities at the centre of our business - our 
aim is to ensure our ESG activity is relevant, transparent, and achievable to all stakeholders. 
 
The growth of our business, through its transformational strategy and a focus on the energy transition, has accelerated 
efforts on reducing our environmental impact, building an inclusive and fair workplace whilst continuing to ensure the 
health, safety and wellbeing of our colleagues, customers and stakeholders. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG) - continued 
Our ESG strategy aims to encompass all areas of our business as well as support the industries we work in and 
stakeholders we work with: 
 

 Environmental - Our commitment is to minimise our environmental impact and increase our transparency and 
accountability in all aspects of how we do business. 

 

 Social - Committed to an inclusive, motivated and competent workforce that is provided with a healthy and safe 
work environment and that is engaged with the communities in which we work 

 

 Governance - Ensuring that we operate to the highest ethical standards and that the company is managed with 
the rigour required to meet stakeholder expectations 

 

 
Our key target areas relating to ESG are: 
 
Environmental 
 

 Transforming our training techniques and facilities by integrating climate change measures to reduce our carbon 
footprint. 

 

 Engage with our supply chain to inform them of our vision and support them to obtain their own ESG targets. 
ESG commitment will form part of our supplier selection criteria. 

 

 Reduce our training materials & consumables and move towards more sustainable methods.  
 Provide training to our colleagues to educate and action the efforts around reducing environmental impact 

including supporting the customers they engage with. 
 

 
Social 
 

 Create an inclusive workplace in which all colleagues feel supported and valued in order to perform to the highest 
standard. 

 

 Provide equal and fair opportunities for all colleagues.  
 Continue to ensure safety is our number one priority for our workforce and customers and that we live up to it 

through the implementation of our Management System. 
 

 Support local charities & volunteering to contribute to the wellbeing of our associated communities.  
 
Governance 
 

 Through the implementation of a comprehensive framework of policies, procedures and controls.  
 Regular mentoring, review and challenging by the Board of Directors.  
 Continue to participate in external auditing.  
 Monitor CMS incident matrix & mitigate if require.  

 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 
To maintain our position in the market we continue to develop new products and services, continue to invest in and 
develop new technology and technology solutions, and invest appropriately when growth opportunities arise. We are pro-
actively looking to expand our international footprint to bring 3t . 
 
Building upon the success in 2024, the Group has set out objectives to achieve for the coming financial year and the 
Directors believe the Group is well placed for 2025 and beyond. 

GOING CONCERN 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors have prepared detailed 
budgets for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements which show that the Group is 
able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due including a detailed going concern stress test for 3t Global Holdco Limited, 
by which 3t Global Bidco PLC is wholly owned, for which further detail is given below. 
 

At the balance sheet date 3t Global Bidco PLC Group had consolidated net liabilities of £73.4m including £79.9m 
($100m) relating to its $150m Nordic Bond facility, repayable May 2028 and £98.8m of intercompany debt owed to 3t 
Global Holdco Limited with maturity of May 2028, but repayable in the event of a business sale, whereby repayment 
would be covered by the sale proceeds. 
 
Other than liabilities arising through normal trading the only other material liabilities falling due in the subsequent 12 
months are the semi-annual bond interest payments of $5.6m due in May 2025 and November 2025.  
 
The projections prepared by the Directors show that the 3t Global Bidco PLC Group will generate sufficient cash from 
trading to meet the payment of these liabilities. 
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GOING CONCERN  continued  
The going concern stress test prepared by management considers a declining market scenario in which revenue is 
significantly reduced and limited mitigation is undertaken to protect margin and preserve cash flows.  
 
The conclusion of this stress test is that the Group could sustain the loss of more than 30% of projected EBITDA over the 
course of the 12 months following the date of the financial statements, without breaching committed borrowing facilities 
limits or covenants related to the bond facility held by 3t Global Bidco PLC assuming no other mitigating actions were 
undertaken to preserve cash and reduce costs.  
 
Nonetheless the Directors consider the stress test scenario to be highly unlikely, specifically noting: 
 

The amount of revenue in the forecast period for which purchase orders have already been received 
 

The quality of the sales pipeline in terms of value and likelihood of prospects 
 

s ability to take mitigating actions that were not considered in the stress test scenario (e.g. Limiting or 
halting capital expenditure, cost reduction measures)  

 
The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position during the 
forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being able to trade for a 
period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore concluded that it is 
appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis.  
 
SECTION 172 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 
The directors of the Group and Company consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in the way they 
consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a 
whole, and in doing so have regard to the following matters of Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006:  

 the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,   
 the interests of the Company's employees,  
 the need to foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,   
 the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment,   
 the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and  
 the need to act fairly as between members of the Company.  

ENGAGING WITH EMPLOYEES 
Within 3t we are continually embedding our vision and values in the touch points of our employee engagement.  
Employee engagement is a fundamental part of our 3t's People Strategy and is documented throughout our policies and 
procedures (recruitment to offboarding) and forms part of our monthly HR communications.  Manager participation is key, 
hence our focus on ensuring leadership training and resources are in place to deliver this. 
 
Informing employees through various communication methods is key to ensure they are part of the journey.  Townhall 
sessions are regularly delivered by our CEO and Business Leadership Team and within each business departmental 
team meetings are held.  Beyond this, managers hold regular, meaningful 1-2-1 conversations with their employees that 
is focused on getting to know the person, personal and professional development and an opportunity for 2-way feedback.  
  
Our bi-annual employee engagement surveys also give our employees the opportunity to give their feedback on what are 
our strengths and areas for improvement.  This is a very useful tool to ensure the employee voice is heard and for any 
action plan to be put place. 
 

Regular internal and external events are held to bring the teams together, this is especially beneficial where teams are 
spread over various locations.  Our quarterly newsletters share business updates, but also bring together updates on 
new starts, promotions and all the achievements that we should recognise. 

ENGAGING WITH CUSTOMERS 
There are various points of contact with customers throughout the 3t business. For 3t Managed Service customers there 
is a combination of monthly and quarterly reviews with our customers, reviewing their SLA (Service Level Agreement), 
and each customer will have a Key Account Manager assigned to the contract. For 3t Training Services and 3t Drilling 
Systems business customers will be supported by a combination of Key Account Manager or Business Account 
Manager, with regular meetings held with customers. Retail customers are communicated with via marketing emails and 
are advised when certificates are expiring and booked onto refresher courses. 
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ENGAGING WITH SUPPLIERS 
3t regularly engages with suppliers in various ways. A significant proportion of 3t suppliers are external course providers. 
It is crucial that these suppliers maintain their accreditation and as such the 3t procurement team engage with them on a 

Quality Management Systems accreditation.  
 
Some 3t suppliers are also competitors, providing courses where 3t do not have resource or availability in a particular 
sector or location. For these suppliers a Customer Account Manager will be assigned to manage the relationship with the 
supplier due to the nature of the relationship i.e. where the supplier is also a competitor, with two-way communication in 
place. 
 
ENGAGING WITH REGULATORS 
Revenue within 3t is derived from providing accredited training and simulation technology. Engagement with training 
regulators is undertaken at a senior level within the Group. For example, with OPITO (Offshore Petroleum Industry 
Training Organisation) there are quarterly reviews held by members of the 3t leadership team with the senior team at 
OPITO. Another example is that with ECITB (Engineering Construction Industry Training Board) members of 3t sit on the 
ATP (Approved Training Provider) Steering Group.  
 
A 3t leadership member sits as a director on the board of IWCF Operations Limited who create the certification for well 
control positions in the UK and globally. The same 3t member also sits on the IADC (International Association of Drilling 
Contractors) Well Control Sub-Committee dealing with training and competency for well control. 
 
MINIMISING ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
Through our mission of transforming training with technology, we are focused on creating a sustainable future by 
providing innovative solutions to our customers for a safer and more efficient workforce. 
 

The growth of our business through transformational acquisitions and our focus on the energy transition has accelerated 
efforts on reducing our environmental impact, building an inclusive and fair workplace whilst continuing to ensure the 
health, safety and wellbeing of our colleagues, customers, and stakeholders. 
Our ESG strategy aims to encompass all areas of our business as well as support the industries we work in and 
stakeholders we work with. 
 

3t are certified by BSI to ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems and maintain an impacts and aspects 
register as part of our overall management system. 
 

ENGAGING WITH INVESTORS 
There is regular engagement with both equity and debt investment members. Under the conditions of the Nordic Bond 

bond investor conference in Oslo with investor meetings and a presentation to investors by the Group CEO. The Group 
CFO also engages with individual bond holders on request. 
 

The main shareholder has a representative seat on the Board of Directors and attends all board meetings. Business 
performance is therefore reviewed on a regular basis, with frequent two-way communication in place. 
 

KEY DECISIONS DURING THE YEAR 
The Board has regard to its responsibilities under s.172 as set out below when making key decisions. It does this by 
ensuring stakeholder perspectives are factored into the thought processes when considering what strategic options to 
take. Conflicts of interest between alternative perspectives are mediated through the selection of options which create 
the most overall benefit and / or progress against the strategic plan of the Group. These plans are developed with 
stakeholder perspectives in mind. 
 

Examples of decisions made in the year included the following: 
1. In May 2024 a $150m Nordic bond facility was completed with a four-year term to May 2028. This facility enabled              

the Group to pay down existing debt while providing the required funding for the acquisitions made later in 2024. 
$100m was drawn with a further $50m available to support future acquisitions. 

2. In June 2024 3t acquired ALL STOP! a leading safety-critical training business in the US. This business provides a 
foothold in the USA for the expansion of 3t into the American market. 

3. In September 2024 3t acquired GTSC, the largest independent energy training business in the Middle East. This 
business provides a foothold in the Middle East for the expansion of 3t into this market.  
 

The issue 
plans. 3t has a clear vision for the future and with funds in place can capitalise on emerging growth opportunities that will 
see 3t deliver further value for its stakeholders. The addition of ALL STOP
growth plans.    
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HEALTH & SAFETY 
The Directors ensure safety is ingrained in every area of our business and adopted by all of our employees as a key 
component of our day-to-day activities recognising that successful health, safety, quality and environmental management 
is fundamental to our business and we are committed to continual improvement in all areas of our business activities. 
 

The Directors recognise that its employees represent its greatest asset and ensuring the balance between the business 
needs with a full commitment to ensuring that the health, safety and welfare of its employees are met. 
 

QUALITY 
Customer satisfaction can only be achieved by supplying a service and product that totally meets, or wherever possible 
exceeds, the customers' requirements and expectations. 
 

To ensure this, the Group has successfully implemented a fully integrated management system (IMS) which is certified 
by BSI to ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015, ISO 45001:2018, ISO 27001:2023 standards. 
 
 

Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director
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The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company and the group for the period ended 
31 December 2024.  
 

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS 
The loss for the period amounted to £12,307,941 (year ended 31 December 2023: £10,455,869). A dividend of £Nil was 
paid during the period (2023: £Nil). 
 

DIRECTORS 
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 14 March 2024 to the date of this report. 
 

K N Franklin  
M Somerville 
 

Other changes in directors holding office are as follows:  

Martin Boden was appointed as a director on 1 June 2024.  
 

Graeme Sword was appointed as director on 14 March 2024 and resigned 5 July 2024. 
 

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
The company/group made no political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the period or prior period. 
 

QUALIFYING THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS 
The company has put in place qualifying third party indemnity provisions for all directors of 3t Global Bidco PLC. 
 

EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS 
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the 
applicant concerned. In the event of employees becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment 
with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group that the training, career 
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees. 
 

MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT 
In accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, information regarding financial risk management, 
objectives and policies, going concern, information on exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cashflow risks, 
future developments and post Balance Sheet events has been disclosed in the Strategic Report. 
 

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (SECR) 
The 2018 Regulations introduced requirements under Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 for large unquoted companies 
to disclose their annual energy use and greenhouse gas emissions, and related information. However, the Group has 
applied the option permitted to exclude any energy and carbon information relating to its subsidiaries as they qualify as a 
medium and small-sized entity, and this applies to all subsidiaries within the group. Therefore, it is not required to make 
the detailed disclosures of energy and carbon information. The parent company is a low user (<40,000KwH) and 
therefore exempt from disclosure at a group level.  
 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR 
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that: 

 So far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's and the group's 
auditor is not aware; and  

 

 Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in their duty as a director in order to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group's auditor is aware of that 
information.  

 

 
ENGAGEMENT WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHERS 
Engagement with key stakeholders, including employees, suppliers and customers, is disclosed in the Group Strategic 
Report. 
 
 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
To maintain our position in the market we will continue to develop new products and services, and continue to invest and 
develop new technology solutions, to meet our customers' needs. During the year, the Group has invested significant 
resources into the development of our products in the Simulation and Digital businesses where new products are being 
developed to sell to our customers. In line with the Group's strategy, these assets will facilitate the growth of revenue 
streams. The total investment in the year amounted to £4.7m (2023: £5.2m) and these costs have been capitalised as 
Intangible Fixed Assets in these financial statements. 
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BRANCHES 
The Group and Company does not operate any branches (as defined in section 1046(3) of the 2006 Act) outside the 
United Kingdom. 
 
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
In March 2025 3t Global Bidco Plc secured a £10m Revolving Credit Facility with Barclays Bank Plc. This multi-currency 
facility runs through to November 2027 and will be used to support working capital requirements. 
 

On 1 May 2024, the Group exchanged on the purchase of five properties in Newcastle used to provide training services. 
Under the terms of agreement, title to these properties will pass at completion, being the earlier of full settlement of the 
purchase consideration or 1 November 2026 (being 18 months from the date of exchange). The total purchase 
consideration is £2.1m plus VAT, comprising payments on account £1.0m and a net payment of £1.1m plus VAT to be 
made on completion. Separately, the Group has exchanged on a sale-and-leaseback of the same properties under a ten-
year lease for a disposal consideration of £2.0m plus VAT, less costs. Management expects that completion of the 
acquisition and disposal will occur simultaneously in April 2025 and that thereafter the properties will continue to be used 
for the provision of training services. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge, the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2024 have been 
prepared in accordance with current applicable accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, 
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the 3t Global Bidco Group take as a whole. We also 

business and the position of the Company and the 3t Global Bidco Group, together with a description of the principal 
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the 3t Global Bidco Group.   
 

AUDITORS 
The auditor, BDO LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006. 
 

Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 

........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director
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           3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT 
FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024

 
 
 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the directors 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve 
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors 
are required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group 
and Company will continue in business.  

 

 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
company's and the group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made available on a 

Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the company's website is the responsibility of the directors. The directors' 
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein. 
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 TO THE MEMBERS OF 
 3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 
Opinion on the financial statements 
 
In our opinion: 
 

s affairs as at 
 

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and 
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

 

Income Statement, the Consolidated 
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Company Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows, Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice). 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 

 
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Independence  
 
We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
 

in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report. 
 
Other information 
 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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 TO THE MEMBERS OF 
3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 

 
 
 
Other Companies Act 2006 reporting 
 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
 

 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained in 

 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 
the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
Responsibilities of Directors 
 
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The 
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 
 
Non-compliance with laws and regulations 
 
Based on: 

Our understanding of the Group and the industry in which it operates; 
Discussion with management and those charged with governance; 

 
 
we considered the significant laws and regulations to be Companies Act 2006, Health and Safety legislation and the 
applicable accounting frameworks (FRS 102). 
 
The Group is also subject to laws and regulations where the consequence of non-compliance could have a material 
effect on the amount or disclosures in the financial statements, for example through the imposition of fines or litigations. 
We identified such laws and regulations to be the GDPR and tax legislations including Corporation tax, VAT and PAYE.
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Our procedures in respect of the above included: 
 

Discussions with Management and those charged with governance regarding known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud. 
Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance for any evidence of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations and fraud and a review of legal expense accounts. 

relevant tax legislation and applicable accounting frameworks respectively. 
 
Fraud 
 
We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including fraud. Our risk assessment 
procedures included: 
 

Enquiry with management and those charged with governance regarding any known or suspected instances of fraud; 
 

  Detecting and responding to the risks of fraud; and 
  Internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud. 

Review of minutes of meeting of those charged with governance for any known or suspected instances of fraud; 
Discussion amongst the engagement team as to how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements; 
Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of 
material misstatement due to fraud; 
Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets and the related financial statement areas 
impacted by these; and 

 

controls and fraud in revenue recognition. 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 
 

Testing journal entries throughout the year, which met a defined risk criteria, by agreeing to supporting 
documentation, including reviewing unusual combination journals to revenue, corroborating these to supporting 
evidence to confirm the existence of the revenue, thus addressing both the risk in revenue and management override 
of controls. 
Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates and assessing whether the 

assessment and discount rates applied, and thus addressing the risk in management override of controls. 
Evaluation of management incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements 
including management override, and considering that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate 
journal entries to improve the result before tax for the year, thus addressing the risk management override of controls. 

 
We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 
members who were all deemed to have appropriate competence and capabilities and remained alert to any indications of 
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.   
 
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising 
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through 
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with 
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to 
become aware of it. 
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 3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 

 
Use of our report 
 

cordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
James Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Southampton, UK 
 
Date: 24 April 2025  
 
 
BDO LLP is a Limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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INCOME STATEMENT
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Year ended Year ended  
  31 December 31 December 

 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ 
 
TURNOVER 3 67,382,791 60,346,051 
 
Cost of sales 32,051,908 30,223,831 
    
GROSS PROFIT 35,330,883 30,122,220 
 
Administrative expenses 33,062,374 30,964,480 
    
Adjusted EBITDA (before non-recurring items, unrealised  
foreign exchange gains plus share of profit in joint ventures) 15,362,719 12,007,025 
 
Share of profit in joint venture                          14 (382,001) (450,000) 
 
Depreciation                                                         13 (1,570,897) (1,906,667) 
 
Amortisation                                                           12 (7,358,681) (7,351,320) 
 
Non-recurring items                                           8 (2,819,245) (2,231,114) 
 
Unrealised foreign exchange losses (742,519) (562,616)          
 
Other operating income 220,867 347,568 
    
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 6 2,489,376 (494,692) 
 
Share of profit in joint venture                          14 382,001 450,000 
 
Interest receivable and similar income  9 372,407 54 
    
Interest payable and similar expenses  10 (15,935,778) (11,437,448) 
    
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION  (12,691,994) (11,482,086) 
 
Taxation credit  11 384,053 1,026,217 
    
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  (12,307,941) (10,455,869) 

    
Loss attributable to: 
Shareholders of the parent company (12,307,941) (10,455,869) 
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 

 Year ended Year ended  
  31 December 31 December 

 2024 2023 
  £ £ 
 
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (12,307,941) (10,455,869) 
 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)  
 
Currency translation differences 194,564                                (59,333)  
 
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) 194,564 (59,333) 
    
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE 
YEAR  

 
(12,113,377) 

 
(10,515,202) 

    
 
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: 
Shareholders of the parent company (12,113,377) (10,515,202) 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC  
(REGISTERED NUMBER: 15562274) 

 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 
                                                                        31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS 
Intangible assets 12 77,520,880 54,403,148 
Tangible assets 13 12,712,390 11,976,485 
Investments 14 832,001 450,000 
    
 91,065,271 66,829,633 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Stocks 15 1,653,791 1,677,583 
Debtors 16 34,437,793 23,760,088 
Cash at bank 4,489,854 1,810,412 
    
 40,581,438 27,248,083 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  17 (21,528,273) (20,473,132) 
    
NET CURRENT ASSETS 19,053,165 6,774,951 
    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
110,118,436 

 
73,604,584 

 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due after more than one 
year  

 
18 

 
(178,169,052) 

 
(130,271,980) 

 
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 21 (5,394,373) (4,664,156) 
    
NET LIABILITIES (73,444,989) (61,331,552) 

    
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 22 525,000 525,061 
Profit and loss account (73,969,989) (61,856,613) 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  (73,444,989) (61,331,552) 

    
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 April 2025 and were 
signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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 3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 (REGISTERED NUMBER: 15562274) 
 

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 
  31 December
  2024 
 Notes   £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS 
Investments 14  525,000 
    
  525,000 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Debtors 16  76,996,385 
    
  76,996,385 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  17  (518,360) 
    
NET CURRENT ASSETS  76,478,025 
    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
 

 
77,003,025 

 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due after more than one 
year  

 
18 

 
 

 
(77,368,109) 

    
NET LIABILITIES  (365,084) 

    
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 22  525,000 
Profit and loss account  (890,084) 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  (365,084) 

    
 
Company's loss for the financial year   (890,084) 

    
 
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not 
presented its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial statements. The loss after tax of the parent 
company for the year was £890,084. 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 April 2025 and were 
signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 Called up          Profit  
 share and loss Total 
 capital account equity 
 £ £ £ 
Balance at 1 January 2023 525,000 (51,341,411) (50,816,411) 
 
Changes in equity 
Foreign exchange movement on consolidation  - (59,333) (59,333) 
Total comprehensive loss - (10,455,869) (10,455,869) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2023 525,000 (61,856,613) (61,331,613) 
      
 
Changes in equity 
Foreign exchange movement on consolidation - 194,564 194,564 
Total comprehensive loss - (12,307,941) (12,307,941) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2024 525,000 (73,969,989) (73,444,989) 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 Called up         Profit 
 share and loss Total 
 capital account equity 
 £ £ £ 
Balance at 14 March 2024 - - - 
 
Changes in equity 
Issues of share capital 525,000 - 525,000 
Total comprehensive loss - (890,084) (890,084) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2024 525,000 (890,084) (365,084) 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 31 December 31 December  
 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 1 7,435,360 11,185,348 
    
Net cash generated from operating activities   7,435,360  11,185,348 
    
 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received  372,407 54 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,247,340) (2,599,570) 
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (4,720,341) (5,218,655) 
Purchase of fixed asset investments - (1) 
Cash paid to acquire subsidiaries (27,532,287) - 
Cash payment in joint ventures - (100,000) 
    
Net cash used in investing activities (33,127,561) (7,918,172) 
    
 
Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid (6,509,910) (4,516,271) 
Repayment of bank loan (42,984,179) (2,000,000) 
Proceeds from bank loan - 2,000,000 
Proceeds from Norwegian Bond 77,817,953 - 
Debt issue costs (2,393,921) - 
Repayment of finance lease liabilities  - (34,596) 
Receipts from parent undertakings 2,562,793 - 
    
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 28,492,736 (4,550,867) 
    
 
    
Increase / (decrease) in cash  2,800,536 (1,283,691) 
Cash at bank at beginning of year   

2 
 

1,810,412 
 

3,094,103 
 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 
held 

  
(121,094) 

 
- 

 
    
Cash at bank at end of year  2 4,489,854 1,810,412 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
1. RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO CASH GENERATED FROM 

OPERATIONS  
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Loss for the financial year (12,307,941) (10,455,869) 
 Depreciation 1,570,897 1,906,667 
 Amortisation 7,358,681 7,351,320 
 Interest receivable and similar income (372,407) (54)
 Interest payable and similar expenses 15,935,778 11,437,447 
 Other income in respect of R&D (220,867) (347,568) 
 Taxation (384,053) (1,026,217) 
 Share of profit of equity accounted investments (382,001) (450,000) 
    
 11,198,087 8,415,726 
 Decrease in stocks 23,792 54,355 
 Increase in trade and other debtors (3,704,273) (603,575) 
 (Decrease) / Increase in trade and other creditors (88,067) 3,544,772 
 Increase / (decrease in provisions) 5,821 (257,807) 
 Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 31,877 
    
 Cash generated from operations  7,435,360 11,185,348 

    
 
2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

The amounts disclosed on the Cash Flow Statement in respect of cash and cash equivalents are in respect of 
these Balance Sheet amounts:  

 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Cash and cash equivalents 4,489,854 1,810,412 

     

3. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In addition, included within accruals is accrued loan note interest totalling £5.9m (2023: £5.3m). 

 

    
 

At 1/01/24 
£ 

 
 

Cash flows 
£ 

 
Other non-

cash changes 
£ 

 
 

At 31/12/24 
£ 

Net cash     
Cash at bank 1,810,412 2,800,536 (121,094) 4,489,854 
     
Debt     
Bank loans (42,984,179) 42,984,179 - - 
Long term bonds  - (77,817,953) (2,047,872) (79,865,825) 
Long term bond accrued interest - 4,426,856 (4,945,216) (518,360) 
Debt issue costs 843,225 2,393,921 (739,430) 2,497,716 
Loan notes deferred acquisition 
consideration 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(2,462,663) 

 
(2,462,663) 

Loan notes owed to parent company 
loan notes 

 
(92,621,373) 

 
(2,562,793) 

 
(6,374,543) 

 
(101,558,709) 

 (134,762,327) (30,575,790) (16,569,724) (181,907,841) 
     
     
 (132,951,915) (27,775,254) (16,690,819) (177,417,988) 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION 
 

3t Global Bidco PLC ("the company") is a public company incorporated and domiciled in the UK. 
 

The address of its registered office can be found on the information page and the nature of the company's 
operations and its principal activity are set out in the director's report. 
 

The Company was incorporated on 14 March 2024. On 21 March 2024 the company acquired 100% of the share 
capital of Transforming Training with Technology Ltd from 3t Global Subco Limited, an ultimate parent company 
by way of share for share exchange agreement. This resulted in the company having control over Transforming 
Training with Technology Ltd and other subsidiaries below it. 
 
This constituted a group reconstruction as per FRS 102, Section 19, and merger accounting has been applied 
due to the following being met: 

 The use of merger accunting method is not prohibited by company law or other relevant legislation; 
 The ultimate equity holders remain the same, and the tights of each equity holder, relative to the others, 

are unchanged; and 
 No non-controlling interest in the net assets of the group is altered by the transfer. 

 

Considering facts management has decided to apply merger accounting. The principles of merger accounting 
are: 
 

 The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of the parties to the combination are not required to be 
adjusted to fair value 

 No new goodwill arises. 
 

During the year ended 31 December 2024, management used merger accounting and had taken merger relief at 
a Company level. Under merger accounting principles, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries were 
consolidated at book value in the Group financial statements and the consolidated reserves of the Group were 
adjusted to reflect the statutory share capital of 3T Global Bidco Plc. The cost of investments in subsidiaries is 
determined by the historical cost of investments in the subsidiary of the Group transferred from the previous 
owning entities, including transaction costs. As there was no difference in the cost of the investment and acquired 
share capital, no merger reserve is presented. 
 

The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its subsidiary (together referred to as the 

and not about its group. 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. 

 

Statement of compliance 
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' ("FRS 102"). The presentation currency of 
these financial statements is Sterling. 

 

Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except that as disclosed in 
the accounting policies certain items are shown at fair value and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 
102 (FRS 102), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and the 
Companies Act 2006. 

 

Functional and presentational currency 
 and reporting currency is USD as the  are 

predominately denominated and/ or received in USD. 
 

P; the Directors elected this due to the nature of the 
transacted in GBP and, with the exception of the Nordic Bond, the 

principal assets and liabilities of the Group being predominately denominated in GBP. 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES  continued 
 

 Financial Reporting Standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions 
The parent company is included in the consolidated financial statements and is considered to be a qualifying 
entity under FRS 102 paragraphs 1.8 to 1.12 and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect 
of the following disclosures: 

 

  reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the year;   
  Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and   
  Key Management Personnel compensation.   

 

As the consolidated financial statements of 3t Global Bidco PLC include the disclosures equivalent to those 
required by FRS 102, the company has also taken the exemptions available in respect of the following 
disclosures: 

 

  certain disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial 
Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules of 
Paragraph 36(4) of Schedule 1. 

 

 

 Basis of consolidation 
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is achieved where the company has the power to 
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing 
control, the group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. 

 

Excluding the application of merger accounting the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the 
period are included in the Profit and Loss Account from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date 
of disposal, as appropriate.  
 

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement undertaking in which the group exercises joint control over the 
operating and financial policies of the entity. Where the joint venture is carried out through an entity, it is treated 
as a jointly controlled entity. The group's share of the profits less losses of associates and of jointly controlled 
entities is included in the consolidated Income Statement and its interest in their net assets is recorded on the 
balance sheet using the equity method. 

 

Excluding the application of merger accounting the purchase method of accounting is used to account for 
business combinations that result in the acquisition of subsidiaries by the group. The cost of a business 
combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, and liabilities incurred 
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination. Identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially 
at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer's 
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as 
goodwill. 

 

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its 
subsidiaries, which are related parties, are eliminated in full. 

 

Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors have prepared detailed 
budgets for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements which show that the 
Group is able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due including a detailed going concern stress test for 3t Global 
Holdco Limited, by which 3t Global Bidco PLC is wholly owned, for which further detail is given below. 
 

At the balance sheet date 3t Global Bidco PLC Group had consolidated net liabilities of £73.4m including £79.9m 
($100m) relating to its $150m Nordic Bond facility, repayable May 2028 and £98.8m of intercompany debt owed 
to 3t Global Holdco Limited with maturity of May 2028, but repayable in the event of a business sale, whereby 
repayment would be covered by the sale proceeds. 
 

Other than liabilities arising through normal trading the only other material liabilities falling due in the subsequent 
12 months are the semi-annual bond interest payments of $5.6m due in May 2025 and November 2025.  
 

The projections prepared by the Directors show that the 3t Global Bidco PLC Group will generate sufficient cash 
from trading to meet the payment of these liabilities. 
 

The going concern stress test prepared by management considers a declining market scenario in which revenue 
is significantly reduced and limited mitigation is undertaken to protect margin and preserve cash flows.  
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES  continued 
 

The conclusion of this stress test is that the Group could sustain the loss of more than 30% of projected EBITDA 
over the course of the 12 months following the date of the financial statements, without breaching committed   
borrowing facilities limits or covenants related to the bond facility held by 3t Global Bidco PLC assuming no other 
mitigating actions were undertaken to preserve cash and reduce costs.  
 

Nonetheless the Directors consider the stress test scenario to be highly unlikely, specifically noting: 
 

 The amount of revenue in the forecast period for which purchase orders have already been received 
 

 The quality of the sales pipeline in terms of value and likelihood of prospects 
 

 
Limiting or halting capital expenditure, cost reduction measures)  

 

The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position 
during the forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being 
able to trade for a period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore 
concluded that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

 

 Revenue recognition 
Revenue comprises, the provision of training courses and the manufacture and maintenance of training 
simulators.  Revenue is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and 
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities. Revenue is shown net of sales/value 
added tax, and rebates. 
 

Training services  
For training   services, revenue from the sales of training courses is recognised when the Group has delivered 
the service to the buyer and it is probable that the Group will receive the previously agreed upon payment. These 
criteria are considered to be met when the training course has been delivered to the buyer and completion 
certificates issued.  

 

Training services  Managed services 
Managed services revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract determined by 
the value of the services provided at the balance sheet date as a proportion of the total value of the engagement. 
Where the amount of revenue is contingent on future events, this is only recognised where the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will be received. When this 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised to the value of the expenses that it is considered 

-
a reliable estimate can be made. Managed services provided to the client which at the balance sheet date have 
not been billed have been recognised as revenue and are included in debtors as accrued income.
 

Rebates 
3t Training Services may grant some customers rebates if the volume of training courses purchased by that 
customer exceed a contractually defined threshold within a specific period. Rebates are deducted from revenue 
and periodically netted from the amounts payable by the customer. 
 

the value to be recognised in the financial statements. 
 

Simulators 
The revenue and costs of portable simulators are recognised in full on the date of shipment. Risk is considered to 
have been transferred to the customer at this date. With regards to larger simulators, revenues and costs are 
reviewed at the point of factory acceptance. At this date 90% of revenue and costs are recognised based on the 
level of costs spent as a proportion of estimated total costs. The remaining costs and revenues are not 
recognised until the point of final acceptance from the customer after installation on site and initial training is 
completed. 
 

The risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the customer in line with the International Commercial Terms 
under which it is sold.  Portable simulators are normally sold Ex Works International Commercial Terms ex works. 
The significant majority of large simulators are sold under Carriage Paid To (CPT) and Carriage and Insurance 
Paid (CIP) International Commercial Terms. Under these terms, control of the product is transferred when the 
goods reach their destination. 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Simulators  Maintenance contracts 
3t Drilling Systems offers full maintenance, technical support and hardware and software upgrade options during 
for the economic life of each simulator. 
 

Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
determined by the value of the services provided at the balance sheet date as a proportion of the total value of 
the engagement. Where the amount of revenue is contingent on future events, this is only recognised where the 
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will be received. When 
this cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised to the value of the expenses that it is considered 

-
a reliable estimate can be made. Managed services provided to the client which at the balance sheet date have 
not been billed have been recognised as revenue and are included in debtors as accrued income. 
 

Revenue from technical support and hardware and software upgrades is recognised on receipt of the final 
acceptance from the customer. 
 

Revenue for hardware and software upgrades installed at the customers site, are recognised in the period in 
which the upgrade is installed and/or commissioned and signed off by the customer. 
 

Intangible assets 
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's 
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at 
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
 

Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued to the closing rate at each reporting year date. 
 

Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets have a finite useful life and are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

 

Expenditure on research and activities is recognised in the Income Statement as an expense when incurred. 
 

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and 
commercially feasible and the group intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete 
development, future economic benefits are probable and if the group can measure reliably the expenditure 
attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve design for, construction 
or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised 
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing 
costs. Other development related expenditure which doesn't qualify for capitalisation are recognised in the 
Income Statement as an expense when incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses. 

 

Amortisation 
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over their 
useful life as follows: 

 

Asset class  Amortisation method and rate  
Goodwill  20 years straight line  
Orderbook  1 year straight line  
Customer relationships  5-10 years straight line  
Technology  10 years straight line  
Software  3 years straight line  

 

Amortisation on intangible assets commences at the point the asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

 Tangible assets 
Tangible assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses arising from an annual review. 

 

The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and 
installation. 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction over 
their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 

Asset class  Depreciation method and rate  
Leasehold improvements  Over the life of the lease  
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment  3 to 6 years straight line  
Motor vehicles  4 years straight line  
Plant and machinery  3 to 6 years straight line  

 

 Investments in subsidiaries 
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value arising from an 
annual review. 

 

 Stocks 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is 
based on the weighted average principle and includes all costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured stocks and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate 
share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.  

 

 Tax 
Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised 
as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in other comprehensive income. 

 

The current corporation tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the group operates and generates taxable 
income. 

 

Deferred corporation tax is recognised on timing differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax 
credits in the Group. Deferred corporation tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set 
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than 
not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit. 

 

 Foreign currency transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rates at the 
balance sheet date. All exchange differences are included in the Profit and Loss account. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

 

The balance sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet 
date and the Profit and Loss account is translated at an average rate for the year of the financial statements. The 
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of opening net assets is taken directly to Other Comprehensive 
Income. All other translation differences are taken to the Income Statement. 

 

 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on deposit. 

 

Trade debtors 
Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary 
course of business. 

 

Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price less attributable transaction costs. They are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A 
provision for the impairment of trade debtors is established when there is objective evidence that the group will 
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. 
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3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 
Trade creditors 
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if the group does not have an 
unconditional right, at the end of the reporting year, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date. If there is an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 

 

Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price plus attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
 
Provisions (including onerous lease provisions) are charged as an expense to the Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income in the year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the 
best estimate at the statement of financial position date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking 
into account relevant risks and uncertainties. Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 
The group typically provides a product warranty to customers as part of the sales contract. A provision is made at 
the balance sheet date to cover costs expected to be incurred under such product warranty claims. Historic 
warranty costs have been very low, and the directors anticipate that this is likely to continue. 

 
Leases 
Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the year of the lease. Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. 
 
Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the lower of their fair value at inception of the lease and the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. These assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the 
Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. 

 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance costs in the Income Statement and reduction of the lease 
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 
Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other 
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred 
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis. 

 
Dividends 
Dividend distribution to the company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the 
reporting year in which the dividends are declared and approved. 

 
Defined contribution pension obligation 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a pension fund and the 
group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior years. 

 
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If 
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment. 
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 3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 
Research and Development 
In the research phase of an internal project it is not possible to demonstrate that the project will generate future 
economic benefits and hence all expenditure on research shall be recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 
Intangible assets are recognised from the development phase of a project if and only if certain specific criteria are 
met in order to demonstrate the asset will generate probable future economic benefits and that its cost can be 
reliably measured. The capitalised development costs are subsequently amortised to administrative expenses on 
a straight line basis over their expected useful economic lives. Research and development tax credits are 
included within the other operating income within the statement of comprehensive income 

 

The expected useful economic life of development costs are estimated based on business plans which set out 
the development plan and time to market for the associated project. 

 

If it is not possible to distinguish between the research phase and the development phase of an internal project 
the expenditure is treated as if it were all incurred in the research phase only. 
 
Impairment 

 
Financial assets (including trade and other debtors) 

 
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

 
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, an impairment is 
calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the best estimate of the amount that 
the Group would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset 
continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
Income Statement. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease 
in impairment loss is reversed through the Income Statement. 

 
Non-financial assets 

 
The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of 
impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or "CGU" that are expected to benefit from the synergies 
of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be allocated to individual 
CGUs or groups of CGUs on a non-arbitrary basis, the impairment of goodwill is determined using the 
recoverable amount of the acquired entity in its entirety, or if it has been integrated then the entire entity into 
which it has been integrated. 

 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

 
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses recognised for other assets is 
reversed only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply. Impairment losses recognised in prior 
years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
  

 Borrowings 
Interest-bearing borrowings (including loan notes due to group undertakings) are initially recorded at fair value, 
net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the 
difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised 
as a charge to the Income Statement over the year / year of the relevant borrowing. 

 

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable 
and similar charges. 

 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 
 

Finance costs 
Finance costs are charged to the Income Statement over the term of the debt using the effective interest method 
so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a 
reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument. 

 

Non-recurring items 
Non-recurring costs predominantly relate to one off redundancy and recruitment costs, non-recurring legal and 
professional costs. 

 

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation 
Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements and estimates. The 
items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates have been made are noted below: 

 

Accounting Judgements 
Business Combinations - determine whether the acquired intangible assets are identifiable in terms of being 
separable and arise from contractual or legal rights. This has been determined on a basis that reflects an amount 
that the group would have paid for the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable and willing 
parties, based on the best information available. If the fair value could not be measured reliably, the asset is not 
recognised as a separate intangible asset but is included in goodwill. 
 

Non-recurring items  non-recurring items consist of items of income or expenditure that management consider 
to be outside the normal course of business due to either the size or nature. Such items are rare in their 
occurrence with no two accounting periods expected to yield similar items. Management believes that the 
separate presentation of these items will enable a better like for like comparison of underlying results. 
 

Impairment of group's tangible and intangible assets - determine whether there are indicators of impairment of 
the group's tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a 
decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a 
component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. Growth 
rates between 1.5% and 3.0% and discount rates between 12.5% to 13.5% have been applied in reviewing the 
fair value of such assets. 
 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
Carrying value of goodwill and capitalised development expenditure  The Group tests annually whether goodwill 
and capitalised development expenditure has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policies 
stated in note 2. This assessment has been carried out for all cash-generating-units and development 
expenditure and these calculations require the use of estimates. The most critical estimates relate to the 
assumed growth of revenues and related profits and the discount rate. 
 

Each financial year management assesses, based on actual performance and any known factors that may 
influence the future, whether the estimates used are still valid. At the reporting date, the annual management 
assessment has not revealed any indications of impairment to the goodwill balance booked at the date of 
acquisition of the carrying value of development expenditure at 31 December 2024.  
 

Investments  Fixed asset investments are carried at cost less impairment. Determining whether there are 

be made about economic viability and expected future financial performance of the investment. Should and 
indicator of impairment exist, an estimate of the recoverable amount would need to be made and compared to 
the carrying value of each fixed asset investment. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Provision for staff termination benefits 
With respect to the Group s Middle East businesses, the Group provides end of service benefits to its employees. 

completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of 
employment. Further details on the provision can be found in note 21.  

3. TURNOVER 
 

The turnover and loss before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the group.  
 

An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below:  
 Year ended  Year ended 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Training services - Courses 41,108,137 37,186,140 
 Training services - Managed services 16,051,746 16,051,037 
 Simulators - Equipment 6,239,952 3,524,847 
 Simulators - Maintenance contracts 3,982,956 3,584,027 
    
 67,382,791 60,346,051 

    
 

An analysis of turnover by geographical market is given below:  
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 United Kingdom 53,618,424 53,801,758 
 Rest of world 13,764,367 6,544,293 
    
 67,382,791 60,346,051 

    
4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Wages and salaries 20,681,745 19,635,519 
 Social security costs 1,871,901 1,825,628 
 Other pension costs 649,609 658,493 
    
 23,203,255 22,119,640 

    
The average number of employees during the year was as follows:  

 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 
 Sales, production and software 86 106 
 Administration and support 68 63 
 Training 296 300 

   
 450 469 
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4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS - continued 
 

As at 31 December 2024, employee costs included in work in progress amounted to £111,000 (year ended 31 
December 2023: £92,613). 

 
Payroll costs of £3,193,000 (year ended 31 December 2023: £3,059,777) included in the above were capitalised 
during the period within Software in note 12. 

 
The number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the period was nil (year ended 31 
December 2023: nil). 

 
5. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Directors' remuneration 554,536 514,219 
 Directors' pension contributions to money purchase schemes   8,904 27,737 

   
 
 The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing as follows: 
 
 Money purchase schemes 1 - 

    
 
 
 Information regarding the highest paid director is as follows: 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Remuneration 276,470 249,723 

   
 
6. OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 
 
 The operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting): 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Hire of plant and machinery - 11,317 
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,570,897 1,906,667 
 Amortisation of intangible assets, including goodwill 7,358,681 7,351,320 
 Foreign exchange differences (742,519) 562,616 
 R&D Tax credit    (220,867) (311,846) 
 Operating lease expense - property    2,202,147 2,662,375 
 Defined contribution pension costs    649,609 658,493 

   
 

Government grants received for R&D Tax credit income have been included within other operating income within 
the Income Statement. Fees payable to Group auditors have been disclosed in note 7.  

 
Company 
The company had a loss of £890,084 for the period.
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7. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 

£   £  
Audit of group financial statements  16,000  12,300 
Audit of subsidiary financial statements  214,000  104,700 
     
 230,000  117,000 

     
Amounts receivable by the company's auditor and its associates in respect of: 
Taxation compliance services  73,500  61,260 
Other tax advisory services  79,700  29,500 
     
 153,200  90,760 

     
 

Taxation compliance service of £73,500 relate to fees for the year ended 31 December 2023, that were billed 
and raised during the year ended 31 December 2024.  

 
8. NON-RECURRING ITEMS 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 

£   £  

Non-recurring costs  2,819,245  2,231,114 

     
 

Non-recurring costs predominantly relate to one off redundancy and recruitment costs, non-recurring legal and 
professional costs.  
 

 
9. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME  
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Bank interest receivable 372,407 54 
     
 372,407 54 

    
 
 
 
10. 

 
 
 
INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES  

 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Bank interest payable 2,083,054 4,788,826 
  Amortisation of debt issue costs  1,739,430 194,204 
 Finance lease interest payable - 4,912 
 Loan notes owed to parent company interest payable 6,954,851 6,449,506 
 Bond interest payable 5,158,443 - 
    
 15,935,778 11,437,448 
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11. TAXATION 
 
 Analysis of the tax credit 

The tax credit on the loss for the year was as follows: 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Current tax: 
 UK corporation tax - - 
 Over provision in prior 
 year (13,842) (371,879) 
 Foreign taxation 374,931 - 

   
 Total current tax 361,089 (371,879) 
 
 Deferred tax (current and adjustments in respect of prior periods)  (745,142) (654,338) 

   
 Total tax (credit) (384,053) (1,026,217) 

    
 

UK corporation tax has been charged at 25% (year ended 31 December 2023 - 23.5%). 
 
 Reconciliation of total tax credit included in the Consolidated Income Statement 

The tax assessed for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK.  
 

 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Loss before tax (12,691,994) (11,482,086) 

   
 Loss multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25% 

(year ended 31 December 2023 - 23.5%)  
 

(3,172,999) 
 

(2,698,290) 
 
 Effects of: 
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,730,521 775,236 
 Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous years  (13,842) (371,879) 
 Effect of foreign tax rates    - 93,704 
 Adjustments in respect of prior years (deferred tax)   (444,798) (536,863) 
 Fixed asset differences    145,969 97,291 
 Research & development credits    55,217 81,545 
 Capital Gains and other differences   - 17,770 
 Group relief    1,315,879 1,515,269 

   
 Total tax (credit) (384,053) (1,026,217) 

   
 

The group relief is surrendered from 3T Global Bidco Plc and Transforming Training with Technology Limited 
and the claiming companies relate mostly to 3T Training Services Limited and Drilling Systems (UK) Limited. 
The taxable losses are not deemed to have any value, and have therefore been surrendered within the group 
at no cost. 
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12. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 
 Group 
 Technology 
 Customer and 
 Goodwill Orderbook relationships software Totals 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024  59,815,589 1,056,000 4,540,000 25,540,260 90,951,849 
 Additions - - - 4,720,392 4,720,392 
 Acquired as part of acquisition  25,756,072 - - - 25,756,072 
          
 At 31 December 2024  85,571,661 1,056,000 4,540,000 30,260,652 121,428,312 
          
 AMORTISATION 
 At 1 January 2024  17,507,765 1,056,000 2,703,641 15,281,346 36,548,752 
 Amortisation for year  3,747,473 - 454,000 3,157,208 7,358,681 
          
 At 31 December 2024  21,255,238 1,056,000 3,157,641 18,438,554 43,907,432 
          
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024  64,316,423 - 1,382,359 11,822,098 77,520,880 

          
 At 31 December 2023  42,307,824 - 1,836,359 10,258,915 54,403,098 

          
 

The development costs relate to various projects that have been undertaken over a number of years, the 
directors consider that it is probable that these projects will generate future economic benefit going forward. 

 
 Amortisation and impairment charge 

The whole amortisation charge above totalling £7,358,681 (year ended 31 December 2023: £7,351,320) has 
been recognised in administrative expenses in the Income Statement. 

Capitalised development costs, which are included within software, are not treated as a realised loss for the 
purpose of determining the Company distributable profits as the costs meet the conditions requiring them to be 
treated as an asset in accordance with FRS 102 Section 18. 
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12. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - continued 
 

Group 
Impairment review 
The group reviews the amortisation year and method when events and circumstances indicate that the useful life 
may have changed since the last reporting date. 

 
Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with Section 27 of FRS102 
Impairment of assets when there is an indication that goodwill or an intangible asset may be impaired. 

 
The directors have determined whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group's tangible and intangible 
assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic 
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-
generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. Growth rates between 1.5% and 3% 
and discount rates between 15.3% to 16.5% have been applied in reviewing the fair value of such assets. 

 
 
13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 
 Group 
 Fixtures 
 Leasehold Plant and and Motor 
 Improvements machinery fittings vehicles Totals 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024  10,318,205 6,992,799 1,509,341 259,664 19,080,009 
 Additions                                                   234,633            903,440             100,651                   8,616             1,247,340 
 Acquired as part of acquisition 621,790 396,564 41,108 - 1,059,462 
           
 At 31 December 2024  11,174,628 8,292,803 1,651,100 268,280 21,386,811 
          
 DEPRECIATION 
 At 1 January 2024 2,565,223 3,573,212 922,193 42,896 7,103,524 
 Charge for year 498,546 833,168 207,953 31,230 1,570,897 
 Disposals - - - - - 
          
 At 31 December 2024  3,063,769 4,406,380 1,130,146 74,126 8,674,421 
          
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024  8,110,859 3,886,423 520,954 194,154 12,712,390 

          
 At 31 December 2023  7,752,982 3,419,587 587,148 216,768 11,976,485 
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14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 
 
 Group 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 450,000 
 Share of profit in joint ventures 382,001 

 
832,001 

 

   
 CARRYING AMOUNT 
 At 31 December 2024 832,001 

  
 At 31 December 2023 450,000 

  
 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 

 
Investments in joint ventures   832,001  450,000 

      
 
 Company 
 £ 
 COST 
 Additions 525,000 
  
 At 31 December 2024 525,000 
  
 CARRYING AMOUNT 
 At 31 December 2024 525,000 

  
  

joint venture profits have been recognised within the Consolidated Income Statement.  
 
The investment addition reflected in the Company financial statements relates to the share for share exchange in 
Transforming Training with Technologies Limited. Further details can be seen in note 1.  
 
All subsidiary companies registered in the UK and listed on the following page under the Companies Act 2006, 
with the exception of 3t Training Services Limited and Digital Systems (UK) Limited, are exempt from the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of financial statements under section 479A of the 
Companies Act 2006. The registered company number of each relevant subsidiary has been listed on the 
following page. 

 

 

At 31 December 2024 
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14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued 
 

Details of undertakings 
Details of the investments (including principal place of business of unincorporated entities) in which the company 
holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows: 
 
Undertaking  UK 

Company 
Number 

 Registered 
office (see 

below) 

 Holding  Proportion of voting 
rights and shares held 

 

 2024    
Subsidiary undertakings 
Transforming Training With 
Technologies Limited* 

 10908456  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    

Survivex Group Limited  SC467255  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%    
Survivex Limited  SC357717  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%    
TMS Oldco Limited   SC467482  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%    
Survivex TMS Limited  SC242176  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%    
Rigex Limited  SC466107  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%    
E-Learnex Limited  SC467476  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Digital Limited (Formerly 3t Transform 
Limited) 

 09314258  UK (6)  Ordinary  100%    

3t Transform Limited (Formerly 3t Digital 
Limited) 

 14759718  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    

3t Managed Services Limited  14759563  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Workforce Solutions Limited  14759724  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Advanced Industrial Solutions Limited  05982756  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
AIS Survivex Limited  13545463  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
DS UK Topco Limited  09505117  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
DS UK Midco 1 Limited  09505116  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
DS UK Midco 2 Limited  09506608  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Drilling Systems Group Limited  09503545  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Drilling Systems Limited  02295138  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Drilling Systems (USA) Inc   USA (3)  Ordinary  100%    
Drilling Systems (UK) Limited  02509111  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
DS Sheet Metal Limited  05162610  UK (2)  Ordinary  100%    
D.S. 2000 Limited  03838137  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Training Services Limited  05982756  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Speciality Welds Ltd  05048048  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Utility & Construction Training Limited  06429564  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
UCT Electrical Limited  06659867  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Training Solutions Limited  14766769  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
Neutron VR Limited  14759718  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Connect Limited  15550699  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%    
DSG International DMCC   UAE (4)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Holdco USA LLC   USA (7)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Bidco USA LLC   USA (7)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Training Services Inc.   USA (8)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Training Services Online USA LLC   USA (8)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Training Services USA LLC   USA (8)  Ordinary  100%    
3t Training Co LLC   Saudi Arabia  Ordinary  100%    
3t Bidco SPV Limited   UAE (9)  Ordinary  100%    
Gulf Technical and Safety training 
Centre LLC 

  UAE (10)  Ordinary  100%    

General Technical and Safety Training 
Centre LLC 

  Saudi Arabia 
(11) 

 Ordinary  100%    

GTSC Commercial Enterprises 
Investment Institution and Management 
LLC 

  UAE (10)  Ordinary  100%    

Gulf Technical and Safety Training 
Centre LLC 

  Egypt (12)  Ordinary  100%    
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Undertaking  UK 
Company 
Number 

 Registered 
office (see 

below) 

 Holding  Proportion of voting 
rights and shares held 

 

 2024    
Joint venture 
3t Enermech Limited  SC731480  UK (13)  Ordinary  50%    

 
The registered addresses for the subsidiary undertakings are as follows: 

 
1. Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW 
2. c/o Drilling Systems, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 
6EW 
3. 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808 
4. Unit 3401-D, Gold Tower (AU), Plot Number JLT-PH1-I3A, Jumeirah Lakes Towers, Dubai, UAE 
5. Kirkhill Commercial Park Dyce Avenue, Dyce, Aberdeen, AB21 0LQ 
6. Cobalt 13a, 9 Silver Fox Way, Cobalt Business Park, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE27 0QS 
7. 108 Lakeland Avenue, Dover, Kent County, Delaware 19901 
8. 1630 FM 1960 Road E, Houston, TX 77073 
9. 3529, 35, Al Maqam Tower, Regus Adgm Square, Al Maryah Island, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
10. Plot No-2, Street No 12, Mw-2, Sector 1, Mussafah, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
11. Industrial Area 2, Dammam, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
12. 77 Street 104 Maadi, Cairo, Egypt 
13. Enermech House, Howes Road, Aberdeen, Scotland, AB16 7AG 

 
*3t Global Bidco Plc only directly holds the share capital of Transforming Training with Technology Limited. 

 
The share capital of DS UK Topco Limited, 3t Holdco USA LLC, 3t Managed Services Limited, 3t Workforce 
Solutions Limited, Survivex Group Limited, Advanced Industrial Solutions Limited, AIS Survivex Limited, 3t 
Training Services Limited, 3t Training Solutions Limited, 3t EnerMech Limited, Neutron VR Limited, 3t Connect 
Limited, 3t Digital Limited, 3t Transform Limited, 3t Training Co LLC and 3t Bidco SPV Limited are held by 
Transforming Training with Technology Limited. 
 
The share capital of Survivex Limited, Survivex TMS Limited and Rigex Limited are held by Survivex Group 
Limited. 

 
The share capital of DS UK Midco 1 Limited is held by DS UK Topco Limited. 

 
The share capital of DS UK Midco 2 Limited is held by DS UK Midco 1 Limited. 

 
The share capital of Drilling Systems Group Limited is held by DS UK Midco 2 Limited. 

 
The share capital of Drilling Systems (USA) Inc, Drilling Systems Limited and DSG International DMCC, are held 
by Drilling Systems Group Limited. 

 
The share capital of Drilling Systems (UK) Limited and DS Sheet Metal Limited are held by Drilling Systems 
Limited. 
 
The share capital of D.S. 2000 Limited is held by Drilling Systems (UK) Limited. 
 
The share capital of 3t Bidco USA LLC is held by 3t Holdco USA LLC. 
 
The share capital of 3t Training Services Inc., is held by 3t Bidco USA LLC. 
 
The share capital of 3t Training Services Onlines USA LLC and 3t Training Services USA LLC are held by 3t 
Training Services Inc. 
 
The share capital of E-Learnex Limited, Rigex Limited, TMS Oldco Limited and Survivex Limited are held by 
Survivex Group Limited. 
 
The share capital of Survivex TMS Limited is held by Survivex Limited.
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14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued 
 

The share capital of Speciality Welds Limited and Utility & Construction Training Limited are held by 3t Training 
Services Limited. 
 
The share capital of UCT Electrical Limited is held by Utility & Construction Training Limited. 
 
The share capital of General Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC and GTSC Commercial Enterprises 
Investment Institution and Management LLC are held by Gulf Technical and Safety training Centre LLC. 
 
The share capital of Gulf Technical and Safety training Centre LLC is held by 3t Bidco SPV Limited. 
 
The share capital of Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC is held by Gulf Technical and Safety training 
Centre LLC (99%) and Almansoori Specialized Engineering Company (1%). 
 
The principal activity of DS UK Topco Limited, DS UK Midco 1 Limited, DS UK Midco 2 Limited, Drilling Systems 
Group Limited, Drilling Systems Limited, 3t Holdco USA LLC, 3t Bidco USA LLC, Survivex Group Limited, 
Survivex Limited, 3t EnerMech Limited and 3t Bidco SPV Limited is a holding company. 
 
The principal activity of D.S. 2000 Limited, DS Sheet Metal Limited, 3t Managed Services Limited, 3t Workforce 
Solutions Limited, E-Learnex Limited, Rigex Limited, TMS Oldco Limited, Survivex TMS Limited, Advanced 
Industrial Solutions Limited, AIS Survivex Limited, Speciality Welds Ltd, UCT Electrical Limited, 3t Training 
Solutions Limited, Neutron VR Limited, 3t Connect Limited, 3t Transform Limited and 3t Trainings Co LLC is a 
dormant company 

 
The principal activity of DSG International DMCC is a trading company. 
 
The principal activity of Drilling Systems (USA) Inc is a sales branch. 

 
The principal activity of Drilling Systems (UK) Limited is specialist software, control systems, simulation 
equipment and consultancy. 
 
The principal activity of 3t Training Services Inc, 3t Training Services Online USA LLC and 3t Training Services 
USA LLC Company is the provision of training services.  

The principal activity of 3t Training Services Limited is the provision of training services to the energy sector.  
 
The principal activity of Utility & Construction Training Limited is the provision of training services to the utilities.   

 
The principal activity of 3t Digital Limited is the development of software. 
 
The principal activity of Gulf Technical and Safety training Centre LLC, General Technical and Safety Training 
Centre LLC, Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC and GTSC Commercial Enterprises Investment 
Institution and Management LLC is the provision of training services to the Energy sector. 
 

15. STOCKS 
 
 Group 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Raw materials 1,233,245 449,314 
 Work-in-progress 323,596 984,489 
 Finished goods 96,950 243,780 

     
 1,653,791 1,677,583 

    
 

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of the inventory and its carrying amount. 
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16. DEBTORS  
 
 Group  Company 
 2024 2023  2024 
 Amounts falling due within one year: £ £  £ 
 Trade debtors 17,379,612 13,045,995  - 
 Amounts owed by parent company  1,279,851 1,077,365  - 
 Other debtors 2,819,876 2,620,996  - 
 Corporation tax 932,290 627,836  - 
 Deferred tax asset 500,000 -  - 
 Prepayments 3,383,234 2,524,878  - 
 Accrued income 8,142,930 3,863,018  - 
         
 34,437,793 23,760,088  - 
        

 
 Group  Company 
 2024 2023  2024 
                  Amounts falling due in more than one year: £ £  £ 
 Amounts owed by subsidiary company  - -  76,521,385 
        

       Total Debtors 34,437,793 23,760,088  76,521,385 
        

 
Included within other debtors is an amount due from joint ventures of £882,315 (year ended 31 December 2023: 
£882,315). 
 
The deferred tax asset relates to accelerated depreciation when compared to the tax relief received in the Middle 
East businesses. Due to the deferred tax being in respect of a separate tax jurisdiction to the UK deferred tax 
liabilities, it does not meet the offset requirements under FRS102 and is therefore shown separately.  
 
The amounts owed by subsidiary company held as at 31 December 2024 are due for repayment in more than 
one year. Interest accrues at a fixed coupon of 11.25% per annum. Accrued interest is included within the 
balances shown above.  

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
 
 Group  Company 
 2024 2023  2024 
 £ £  £ 
 Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 19)  - 4,500,000  - 
 Loan notes  Deferred acquisition 

consideration (see note 19)  
 

820,888 
 

- 
  

- 
 Trade creditors 7,179,619 8,150,695  - 
 Amounts due to parent company 2,713,110 -  - 
 Hire purchase creditor (see note 20)  1,133 1,772  - 
 Payments on account 123,584 201,800  - 
 Corporation tax 259,606 13,845  - 
 Social security and other taxes  1,753,634 1,639,015  - 
 Other creditors 1,705,031 1,170,698  - 
 Accruals 2,924,564 1,442,895  518,360 
 Deferred income 4,047,104 3,352,412  - 
         
 21,528,273 20,473,132  518,360 

        
 

The R&D credit receivable has been offset against the corporation tax liability, this is on the basis that these will 
be settled net in the current year. 
 
The Loan notes included above relate to deferred consideration for the acquisition of 3t Training Services USA 
Inc and its subsidiaries.  
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18. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR  
 

 Group  Company 
 2024 2023  2024 
 £ £  £ 
 Other creditors (see note 19) 313,569 -  - 
 Long term bank Loans (see note 19)  - 38,484,179  - 
 Long term bonds (see note 19) 79,865,825   79,865,825 
 Debt issue costs (see note 19) (2,497,716) (843,225)  (2,497,716) 
 Loans owed to parent company (see note 

19) 
 

- 
 

1,578,527 
 
 

 
- 

 Loan notes - deferred acquisition 
consideration (see note 19) 

 
1,641,775 

 
- 

  
- 

 Loan notes due to parent company (see note 
19) 

 
93,061,847 

 
85,584,384 

 
 

 
- 

 Accrued interest on parent company loan 
notes (see note 19) 

 
5,783,752 

 
5,468,115 

  
- 

          

 178,169,052 130,271,980  77,368,109 
        

19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 
 

 An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below: 
 

 Group  Company 
 2024 2023  2024 
 £ £  £ 

Amounts falling due within one year:    
 Bank loans - 4,500,000  4,445,540 
 Loan notes  deferred acquisition consideration 820,888 -  - 

       
 820,888 4,500,000  4,445,540 

       
 

 Group  Company 
 2024 2023  2024 
 £ £  £ 

Non-current loans and borrowings  
 Long term bank loans - 38,484,179  - 
 Long term bonds 79,865,825 -  79,865,825 
 Debt issue costs (2,497,716) (843,225)  (2,497,716) 
 Loans owed to parent company - 1,578,527  - 
 Loan notes - deferred acquisition consideration 1,641,775 -  - 
 Loan notes owed to parent company loan    
 notes 98,845,599 91,052,499  - 
         

 177,855,483 130,271,980  77,368,109 
        

The intercompany loan notes held as at 31 December 2024 are due for repayment in more than one year. 
Interest accrues at a fixed coupon of 8.0% per annum on these loan notes and is repayable on redemption of the 
loan notes. Accrued interest is included within the balances shown above 

 

During the year a bank loan of £39,000,000 and a Revolving Credit Facility of £3,000,000, both with Investec 
Bank plc, were repaid on 22 May 2024 together with accrued interest. With corresponding debt issue costs of 
£843,225 were amortised during the year. 

In May 2024 the Company raised a Senior Secured USD150 million Nordic Bond with USD100 million drawn, a 
four-year facility repayable in May 2028. The interest coupon is 11.25% payable in half yearly instalments 
commencing in November 2024. The Bond has been used to repay all bank debt from Investec Bank Plc, to 
finance the acquisitions in 2024 of ALL STOP! Inc and GTSC and for general working capital purposes. Debt 
issue costs totalling £2.9m were incurred during the year 
 

Loan notes due in relation to the deferred consideration of 3t Training Services USA Inc are due in three equal 
instalments of USD 1.0m. This is payable in June 2025, June 2026 and June 2027. 
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20. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASING AGREEMENTS 
 

Minimum lease payments fall due as follows:  
 
 Group 

 Hire purchase contracts  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Net obligations repayable: 
 Within one year 1,133 1,772 

    
 Group 
 Non-cancellable 
 operating leases 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Within one year 2,859,217 2,475,114 
 Between one and five years 10,844,285 9,201,406 
 In more than five years 25,657,572 26,459,616 
    
 39,361,074 38,136,136 
    
21. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 
 

 
 
 

      
 
 

 
 

Deferred tax 

  
 
 

 
Warranty 
provision 

  
 
 

Staff 
termination 

benefits 
       £   £   £ 
 
At 1 January 2024 

   
 

 
2,382,336 

 
 

 
     51,000 

 
 

 
- 

 
Acquired as part of business combinations 

  
- 

  
   

 
 

 
1,468,539 

 
Recognised in the Income Statement 

  
(745,142) 

 
 

      
      - 

 
 

 
73,767 

              
At 31 December 2024  1,637,194    51,000  1,542,306 

              
 

 
 
 

      
 
 

 
 

Dilapidations 

  
 
 

Onerous 
lease 

provision 

  
 
 

 
 

Total 
       £   £   £ 
 
At 1 January 2024 

   
 

 
505,384 

 
 

 
  1,725,436 

 
 

 
4,664,156 

 
Acquired as part of business combinations 

  
- 

  
- 

 
 

 
1,468,539 

 
Recognised in the Income Statement 

 
 

 
- 

 
 

 
   (66,947) 

 
 

 
(738,322) 

              
At 31 December 2024     505,384    1,658,489  5,394,373 
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21. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES  continued  

The warranty provision relates to product warranties provided by the Group to its customers as part of the sales 
contracts. 
 

Staff termination benefits provision relates to the end of service benefits due to employees within the Group s 
Middle East businesses. 

 

The dilapidation provision relates to estimated contractual obligations of restoring operating leases back to the 
original state of the asset. 

 

The onerous lease provision relates to rental and rates costs for two separate leased properties within the Group. 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: 

 

 Liabilities  Liabilities 
 2024  2023 
    

£   £  
Accelerated capital allowances  1,043,912  1,860,939 
Tax losses carried forward  (241,250)  (823,338) 
Arising on business combinations  834,532  1,344,735 
     
 1,637,194  2,382,336 

     
  Staff termination benefits  
  The movement in the provision for staff terminal benefits is as follow: 

 2024  2023 
    

£   £  
At 1 January   -  - 
Acquired as part of business combinations   1,468,539  - 
Recognised in the income statement  73,767  - 
     
 1,542,306  - 
     

 
22. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 
 Number: Class: Nominal  2024 
 value:   £ 
 525,000 Ordinary 1  525,000 

   
 
23. PARENT AND ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING 
 

The company's indirect controlling shareholder is Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, 
Channel Islands. The registered address for Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, 
Trafalgar Court, Les Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 

Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is owned by Blue Water Energy Fund I L.P. and Blue Water Energy Fund I-A 
L.P. These funds are ultimately controlled by BWE General Partner Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. The registered address for BWE General Partner Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar Court, Les 
Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 

The immediate parent company is 3t Global Subco Limited. The registered address for 3t Global Subco Limited is 
Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 

 

The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is 3t Global Holdco Limited. The 
registered address for 3t Global Holdco Limited is Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth 
International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 
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24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

The following companies were guarantors in relation to the Nordic Bond of $100,000,000 where the issuer is 3t 
Global Bidco Plc: 

 
 

 
 

 

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Group 
 

Summary of transactions with group 
The company and group have taken advantage of the exemptions in section 33.1A of FRS 102 from disclosing 
transactions with other members of the group whose financial statements have been included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the ultimate parent company, 3T Global Holdco Limited. 
 
Key management personnel 
Key management personnel include all directors of the group, who together have authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the group. The total compensation paid to key management 
personnel for services provided to the group was £1,061,675 (year ended 31 December 2023: £895,400). There 
were £Nil amounts outstanding as at the year end (year ended 31 December 2023: £Nil). Pension contributions 
to money purchase pension schemes due at the year end were nil. (year ended 31 December 2023: £nil).  
 

26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

In March 2025 3t Global Bidco Plc completed a £10m Revolving Credit Facility with Barclays Bank Plc. This 
multi-currency facility runs through to November 2027 and will be used to support working capital requirements. 
 
On 1 May 2024, the Group exchanged on the purchase of five properties in Newcastle used to provide training 
services. Under the terms of agreement, title to these properties will pass at completion, being the earlier of full 
settlement of the purchase consideration or 1 November 2026 (being 18 months from the date of exchange). The 
total purchase consideration is £2.1m plus VAT, comprising payments on account £1.0m and a net payment of 
£1.1m plus VAT to be made on completion. Separately, the Group has exchanged on a sale-and-leaseback of 
the same properties under a ten-year lease for a disposal consideration of £2.0m plus VAT, less costs. 
Management expects that completion of the acquisition and disposal will occur simultaneously in April 2025 and 
that thereafter the properties will continue to be used for the provision of training services. 
 

27. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION SCHEME 
 

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents 
contributions payable by the group to the scheme and amounted to £649,609 (year ended 31 December 2023: 
£630,756).  

 
Contributions totalling £17,790 (year ended 31 December 2023: £85,951) were payable to the scheme at the end 
of the year and are included in creditors.



 
 
 Page 47 

3T GLOBAL BIDCO PLC 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE PERIOD 14 MARCH 2024 TO 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

28. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 
  

 Acquisition of 3t Training Services USA (previously AllStop! Inc) and its subsidiaries  
 

On 7 June 2024, 3t Bidco USA LLC, an indirect subsidiary of 3t Global Bidco Plc acquired the entire issued share 
capital of 3t Training Services USA and its subsidiaries. 
 

In calculating the goodwill arising on acquisition, the fair value of net assets have been assessed and 
adjustments from book value have been made where necessary. Management have estimated the useful life of 
the goodwill to be 10 years and it will be amortised over this period. 
 

The following table summarises the consideration paid by the group, the fair value of assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed: 

 
   
   

 

 
 

The results of 3t Training Services USA and its subsidiaries since acquisition are included in the Consolidated 
Income Statement as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The directors do not consider there to be any intangible assets arising on the acquisition that are both contractual 
and separable. Therefore, no intangible asset has been recognised as part of the business combination. 

   Book Fair value Fair 

   value adjustments value 

   £ £ £ 

      

Fixed assets  105,134 - 105,134 

     

  105,134 - 105,134 
      

Current assets     

Debtors   164,329 - 164,329 

Cash and bank balances  240,712 - 240,712 

      

   405,041 - 405,041 
      

Total assets  510,175 - 510,175 
      

Creditors     

Due within one year  (81,727) - (81,727) 

Due in more than one year  (9,939) - (9,939) 

      

Total identifiable net assets 418,509 - 418,509 

      

Goodwill     4,984,757 

      

Total purchase consideration    5,403,266 
      

Consideration  
 

Cash  2,334,387 

Deferred consideration - loan notes   2,468,879 

Acquisition costs 600,000 
      

Total purchase consideration   5,403,266 

 
   Current 

period since 
acquisition 

Turnover    
 
 1,371,387 

Result for the year     75,865 
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28. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - continued 
  

 Acquisition of Gulf Technical & Safety Training Centre LLC and certain of its subsidiaries 
 

On 20 September 2024, 3t Bidco SPV Limited, an indirect subsidiary of 3t Global Bidco Plc acquired the entire 
issued share capital of Gulf Technical & Safety Training Centre LLC & its subsidiaries. 
 

In calculating the goodwill arising on acquisition, the fair value of net assets have been assessed and 
adjustments from book value have been made where necessary. Management have estimated the useful life of 
the goodwill to be 10 years and it will be amortised over this period 
 

The following table summarises the consideration paid by the group, the fair value of assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed: 
 

   
   

 

 
 

The results of Gulf Technical & Safety Training Centre LLC and its subsidiaries since acquisition are included in 
the Consolidated Income Statement as follows: 

 
The directors do not consider there to be any intangible assets arising on the acquisition that are both contractual 
and separable. Therefore, no intangible asset has been recognised as part of the business combination. 

 
 
 

   Book Fair value Fair 

   value adjustments value 

   £ £ £ 
      

Fixed assets  954,328 - 954,328 
     

  954,328 - 954,328 
      

Current assets     

Debtors   6,209,459 - 6,209,459 

Cash and bank balances  1,302,433 - 1,302,433 
      

   7,511,892 - 7,511,892 

      

Total assets  8,466,219 - 8,466,219 
      

Creditors     

Due within one year  (1,627,951) - (1,627,951) 

Provision for liabilities  (1,468,539) - (1,468,539) 

      

Total identifiable net assets 5,369,729 - 5,369,729 

      

Goodwill     20,771,315 

      

Total purchase consideration    26,141,045 

      

Consideration   

Cash  24,495,424 

Acquisition costs 1,645,621 
      

Total purchase consideration   26,141,045 

 
   Current 

period since 
acquisition 

Turnover      3,598,000 

Result for the year     1,182,037 
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FRS 102 to IFRS restatement (unaudited)  
 
Once 3t Global Bidco Plc lists its Nordic Bonds on the Oslo Stock Exchange in May 2025, the group will report its 
financial results under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) from Quarter One 2025. 
 
The tables below show the impact on the Income Statement and Balance sheet had IFRS been adopted in the 
year to 31 December 2024; these reconciliations are unaudited. 
 
Some high-level explanation follows the tables with the major impact being the adding back leasing costs to 
adjusted EBITDA, as under IFRS leases are capitalised and amortised over their useful remaining life. These 
adjustments are shown in the Administrative Expenses and Depreciation lines of the Income Statement. 
 
The other major difference is in acquisition and refinancing costs. Under FRS 102 the costs relating to refinancing 
are expensed over the life of the facility and under IFRS they are expensed in 2024 as a non-recurring cost. 
Similarly, costs relating to the acquisitions made in 2024 are expensed under IFRS whereas under FRS 102 they 
are capitalised and amortised over the life of the associated goodwill. 
 
Under IFRS 3, goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing rather than amortised over the life of the asset. 
 
The net impact on the Income Statement of reporting under IFRS is to increase Adjusted EBITDA from £15.5m to 
£18.5m, with the Loss on Ordinary Activities Before Tax increasing by £3.4m, from £12.5m to £15.9m, primarily 
due to the expensing of acquisition and refinancing costs.
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3T Global Bidco PLC Income Statement  

 
Year Ended 31 December 2024 

FRS 102 3T 
Global Bidco Plc 

Consolidated 
Income Statement 

Adjustments  

IFRS 3T 
Global Bidco 

Plc 

Revenue 67,382,791 - 67,382,791 

Cost of sales (32,051,908) - (32,051,908) 

Gross profit 35,330,883 - 35,330,883 

Administrative expenses (33,062,374) (1,690,754) (34,753,128) 

EBITDA 15,362,719 2,949,567 18,312,286 

Depreciation (1,570,897) (2,174,498) (3,745,395) 

Amortisation (7,358,681) 3,430,506 (3,928,175) 

Impairment - - - 

Share of JV profits (382,001) - (382,001) 

Unrealised Gains & Losses (742,519) - (742,519) 

Unusual and non-recurring items (2,819,245) (5,896,329) (8,715,574) 

    

Other operating income 220,867 - 220,867 

Operating profit 2,489,376 (1,690,754) 798,622 

Interest receivable and similar income 372,407 - 372,407 

Interest payable and similar charges (15,935,778) (1,755,702) (17,691,480) 

Share of JV profits 382,001 - 382,001 

Other finance costs - - - 

Loss on ordinary activities before tax (12,691,994) (3,446,455) (16,138,449) 

Taxation 384,053 - 384,053 

Loss for the financial period/year (12,307,941) (3,446,455) (15,754,396) 

    
Other comprehensive income:   

 

    
Foreign Exchange differences - OCI 194,564 - 194,564 

Other comprehensive income 194,564 - 194,564 

 
   

Total comprehensive income for the 
period (12,113,377) (3,446,455) (15,559,832) 

    

Loss for the period attributable to:    

Owners of the parent company (12,307,941) (3,446,455) (15,754,396) 

    

Total comprehensive income for the 
period attributable to :    

Owners of the parent company (12,113,377) (3,446,455) (15,559,832) 
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3T Global Bidco PLC Balance Sheet 

Reconciliation from FRS 102 to IFRS  
 

reporting under IFRS, a reconciliation has been prepared to show the key adjustments that would arise on 
transition from FRS 102 to IFRS. The material differences between FRS 102 and IFRS for the group, along with 
their impact on profit and net assets, are summarised below: 
 
1. Business Combinations: Goodwill Amortisation Reversal 
Under FRS 102, goodwill arising on business combinations is amortised over its estimated useful life. In contrast, 
under IFRS 3, goodwill is not amortised but is subject to annual impairment testing. As a result, amortisation of 
goodwill recognised under FRS 102 in both the current and prior year has been reversed in the IFRS bridge, 
increasing reported profit. 
 
2. Discounting of Deferred Consideration 
IFRS requires deferred consideration payable in business combinations to be discounted to present value. This 
leads to a lower initial liability compared to FRS 102, with the unwinding of the discount recognised as a finance 
cost in subsequent periods. This adjustment results in a timing difference in profit recognition. 
 
3. Reversal of Capitalised Acquisition Fees 
Under FRS 102, certain transaction costs directly attributable to a business combination may be capitalised. 
Under IFRS 3, such acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Consequently, acquisition fees 
capitalised under FRS 102 in the current year have been reversed in the IFRS bridge. 
 

Year Ended 31 December 2024 
FRS 102 3T Global 

Bidco Plc 

Consolidated 
Balance Sheet 
Adjustments  

IFRS 3T Global 
Bidco Plc  

Fixed assets    

Intangible assets 77,520,880 18,451,832 95,972,712 

Tangible assets 12,712,390 18,497,129 31,209,519 
Investments 832,001 -  832,001 

  91,065,271 36,948,961 128,014,232 

Current assets    

Stock 1,653,791 - 1,653,791 

Debtors 34,437,793 (3,746,329) 30,691,464 

Cash at bank and in hand 4,489,854 -  4,489,854 
 40,581,438 (3,746,329) 36,835,109 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year (21,528,273) (2,913,895) (24,442,168) 

Net current assets 19,053,165 (6,660,223) 12,392,941 

Total assets less current liabilities 110,118,436 30,288,737 140,407,173 

Creditors: amounts falling due more 
than one year (178,169,052) (17,290,998) (195,460,050) 
Provisions for liabilities (5,394,373) 1,501,116 (3,893,257) 

Net assets (73,444,989) 14,498,855 (58,946,134) 

Capital and reserves    

Called up share capital 525,000 - 525,000 

Share premium  - - - 

Capital redemption reserve - - - 

Profit and loss account (73,969,989) 14,498,855 (59,471,134) 

Shareholder's funds (73,444,989) 14,498,855 (58,946,134) 
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4. Amortisation of Intangible Assets Identified in Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) 
Under IFRS 3, identifiable intangible assets such as customer relationships must be recognised separately from 
goodwill and amortised over their useful lives. These assets were not recognised under FRS 102, resulting in 
additional amortisation expense under IFRS. 
 
5. Recognition of Leases under IFRS 16 
IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities for qualifying leases. 
Under FRS 102, operating leases are generally expensed on a straight-line basis. Under IFRS, the lease liability 
incurs interest, and the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term. This results in differences in the 
timing and classification of lease-related expenses. 
 
6. Onerous Lease Provision Reversal and Impairment of Lease Asset 
An onerous lease provision recognised under FRS 102 has been reversed under IFRS, as such provisions are 
generally not permitted under IFRS 16. Instead, an impairment review is performed on the related right-of-use 
asset, and where necessary, an impairment charge is recognised against that asset. 
 
7. No Other Material Adjustments 
No other material adjustments were identified between FRS 102 and IFRS. In particular, there were no material 
differences in respect of revenue recognition or the application of expected credit loss models to trade 
receivables. 
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The directors present their strategic report together with the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 
December 2024.  
  
INTRODUCTION 

 
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
The principal activities of the group are: 
 

3t Training Services: Best-in-class learning experiences delivered at state-of-the-art training centres strategically placed 
in five UK locations (Aberdeen, Glasgow, Newcastle, Manchester, and Teeside), a Joint Venture in Guyana and on-site 
mobile training hubs internationally. 
 

3t Digital: is a connected platform of cloud-based software and technology offering a range of highly configurable 
software solutions to effectively manage employees' compliance, competency, and learning. Our workforce training 
software streamlines selecting and deploying the best-qualified workers for the job. 3t Digital additionally provides a 
portfolio of learning technologies for workforces operating in high hazard environments. 
 

3t Drilling Systems: is a deep learning technology for the oil & gas industry with a range of highly advanced simulators. 
These enable workers to expand their knowledge and hone their skills and build safety critical competence in a safe, 
immersive and engaging environment. Available on-site, in the cloud or at one of our customer training centres, the 
simulators emulate drilling, well control, well intervention and crane operations in real time. 
 

Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre (GTSC): Acquired in September 2024, GTSC operates state-of-the-art training 
centres in Abu Dhabi, Saudi Arabia and Egypt. It has been re-branded to show it is part of 3t and it provides best in class 
high impact learning experiences primarily to oil and gas related customers. 
 

ALL STOP! Survival and Safety Training: Acquired in June 2024, ALL STOP! has been rebranded as 3t Training 
Services  Houston. It provides best in class high impact learning experiences from its facilities in Houston, Texas and 
Houma, Louisiana. 
 

Across 3t's businesses, we also offer bespoke blended training, learning, induction, and upskilling programmes, 
harnessing the capabilities across our training, technology and simulation offering. 
 

The principal activity of the company is that of a holding company. 
 

FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS 
We aim to present a balanced and comprehensive review of the development and performance of our business during 
the period and its position at the year end. Our review is consistent with the size and nature of the business and is 
written in the context of the risks and uncertainties we face. 
 
The Group's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows: 
 
 
 

 
Unit 

  
 

Period ended 31 
December 2024** 

Year ended 31 
December 2023 

Revenue  £ m  67.4  60.3 
Gross Profit  £ m   35.3 30.1 
Gross Margin  %   52.4 49.9 
Adjusted EBITDA*  £ m  15.4 12.0 
*Adjusted EBITDA (before non-recurring items) is calculated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, 
unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses and non-recurring items plus share of operating profit in joint ventures. 
 
**Acquired business results are consolidated from the date of acquisition.   

 
The Group had a positive 2024 with growth across a number of its key areas. Our strategic objectives of broadening our 
offer, expanding into adjacent sectors, deepening our digital capability and internationalisation have all advanced and 
continue to do so. Revenue increased by 11.8% from £60.3m to £67.4m and Adjusted EBITDA* increased by 28.3% 
from £12.0m to £15.4m. 
 
The Group's client base continues to increase as we win further work in our existing verticals as well as expanding into 
other relevant markets. Accretive acquisitions, including those of GTSC and ALL STOP! highlighted above, continue to 
form part of our strategy where there is a clear business rationale. 
 
Our joint venture with EnerMech, 3t EnerMech, is strengthening with physical training capability in Guyana. 
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The fundamentals of the business remain strong, and the Board believes that a combination of our training and 
technology offering, our sector diversification as the energy transition gathers pace and wider geographic spread leaves 
the Group well positioned going into 2025 and beyond. 
 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
The Board has the overall accountability for ensuring that risk is effectively managed across the Group.  
The principal risks and uncertainties have been assessed by the Board as follows based on the following criteria: 

1. assessment of the likelihood of the risk materialising, 
2. magnitude of the risk and 
3. assessment of changes in each risk (e.g. decreased, stable or increased) 

 
Nature of risk Likelihood of 

the risk 
materialising 

Magnitude of 
risk 

Assessment of 
change 

Geopolitical and economic environment Medium Medium Increasing 

 Low Medium Stable 

Training centre certification Low Medium Stable 

Foreign exchange Medium Medium Increasing 

Cyber security Medium High Stable 

 
Each risk is further defined below. 
 
Continuing uncertainty in the geopolitical and economic environment represents the principal risk to the Group. 
Continuing events in Ukraine and Gaza and the threat of a global trade war, due to tariffs being imposed on goods, may 
increase inflationary pressures and the chance of recession resulting in lower demand for services. Much of the revenue 
of 3t is service based so the impact of any tariff-based increase should be limited. Also, continuing high energy prices 
means there is still strong demand from the oil and gas and renewable energy sectors, key markets that 3t are heavily 
involved in. 
 

With tax rates in the oil and gas sector increasing, investment in the UK continues to be weak, affecting a key market for 
3t. The UK October 2024 Budget increased the Energy Profits Levy (EPL) tax rate by 3%, bringing the headline rate of 

continued investment in this sector, 3t continues to grow its offering in the renewables space. 
 

The above risks may all impact the Group's anticipated order values, contract commitments and related cash flows. This 
risk is managed as far as possible via diversification across a wide range of customers, products, and services and so 
the Group is not reliant upon any single customer, or group of customers, or upon any single product or service. 
 

Other risks include the potential obsolescence of the Group's products. The Group invests appropriately to ensure that 
the range of products and services offered to customers remains at the forefront of technology. As such, the Group 
believes it is mitigating as far as possible the risks of obsolescence.  
 
The Group depends on its training centres being certified by the relevant accredited body to be able to perform training 

ensure that the competency of the operations team is maintained and that the training centres meet the relevant 
standards to mitigate this risk. 
 
Foreign exchange risk principally relates to the GBP to USD exchange rate as a proportion of revenues are collected in 
US dollars. The Group avoids contracts in other currencies where possible. The exposure to foreign currency is reviewed 
by the Directors and managed via forward exchange currency contracts where appropriate. As the Group continues to 
expand internationally, the foreign-denominated earnings from these operations (which are typically generated in USD) 
will provide a currency hedge to partially offset the interest charge related to the USD denominated Nordic Bond. 
 
Cyber security represents another area of risk and is one which is monitored closely by the Board. The business is ever 
vigilant in this regard, has clear policies & procedures, ongoing awareness campaigns, uses state of the art firewalls, and 
utilises ISO 27001 as a framework for ensuring external audits are undertaken regularly. 
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OTHER RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 

The Group has local operations in six countries, consequently, the Group is affected by various legislations, regulations, 
and standards, including, inter alia, tax regulations, employment legislation, environmental regulations, service liability 
regulations and global international industry standards with regards to safety and security. The Directors mitigate this risk 
by ensuring that they are supported by key professional advisors in each jurisdiction to ensure that compliance in all 
these matters is maintained and that any change to regulations, legislation or standards are planned for and executed in 
a timely manner, to remain compliant. 

The business' principal financial instruments comprise bank debt, trade debtors, trade creditors and intercompany loans 
and loan notes both to and from the Group and Company. The main purpose of these instruments is to finance the 
business' operations. The Group bank facility with Investec Bank plc was repaid in May 2024 and replaced with a $150m 
Nordic Bond facility, of which $100m is drawn, that is now in place until May 2028. The company entered into a 
Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) with Barclays Bank Plc in March 2025, with the ability to drawdown up to £10m. 
 

Interest rate risk is mitigated by the fact that the Nordic Bond is a fixed rate bond for the term period. The RCF is subject 
to variable rates, but this will only affect the Group where monies have been drawn down. 
 

In respect of bank balances, the business' cash balances are held in different accounts and currencies in various 
territories with liquidity levels managed closely at a Group level. 
 

Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies concerning the credit offered to customers 
and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits. The amounts presented in the balance 
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debtors. Process and system improvements have been made to improve the 
rate of collection of outstanding monies. Trade creditors' liquidity risk is managed by ensuring sufficient funds are 
available to meet amounts due 

 
OUR TEAM 
Our colleagues are our key asset in order to deliver quality solutions for our clients and we are constantly looking to 
strengthen and enhance our team. We review our remuneration to ensure it is competitive and our employees receive 
training and other development as appropriate. 

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG) 
ESG is a key focus for the Board. We are focused on creating a sustainable future by providing innovative solutions that 
help our customers operating in safety-critical industries to develop a safer and more efficient workforce. 3t embraces the 
core principles of integrity and accountability and positions our ESG responsibilities at the centre of our business - our 
aim is to ensure our ESG activity is relevant, transparent, and achievable to all stakeholders. 
 
The growth of our business, through its transformational strategy and a focus on the energy transition, has accelerated 
efforts on reducing our environmental impact, building an inclusive and fair workplace whilst continuing to ensure the 
health, safety and wellbeing of our colleagues, customers and stakeholders. 

Our ESG strategy aims to encompass all areas of our business as well as support the industries we work in and 
stakeholders we work with: 
 

 Environmental - Our commitment is to minimise our environmental impact and increase our transparency and 
accountability in all aspects of how we do business. 

 

 Social - Committed to an inclusive, motivated and competent workforce that is provided with a healthy and safe 
work environment and that is engaged with the communities in which we work 

 

 Governance - Ensuring that we operate to the highest ethical standards and that the company is managed with 
the rigour required to meet stakeholder expectations 

 

 
Our key target areas relating to ESG are: 
 
Environmental 
 

 Transforming our training techniques and facilities by integrating climate change measures to reduce our carbon 
footprint. 

 

 Engage with our supply chain to inform them of our vision and support them to obtain their own ESG targets. 
ESG commitment will form part of our supplier selection criteria. 

 

 Reduce our training materials & consumables and move towards more sustainable methods.  
 Provide training to our colleagues to educate and action the efforts around reducing environmental impact 

including supporting the customers they engage with. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG) - continued 
 

Social 
 

 Create an inclusive workplace in which all colleagues feel supported and valued in order to perform to the highest 
standard. 

 

 Provide equal and fair opportunities for all colleagues.  
 Continue to ensure safety is our number one priority for our workforce and customers and that we live up to it 

through the implementation of our Management System. 
 

 Support local charities & volunteering to contribute to the wellbeing of our associated communities.  
 

Governance 
 

 Through the implementation of a comprehensive framework of policies, procedures and controls.  
 Regular mentoring, review and challenging by the Board of Directors.  
 Continue to participate in external auditing.  
 Monitor CMS incident matrix & mitigate if require.  

 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 
To maintain our position in the market we continue to develop new products and services, continue to invest in and 
develop new technology and technology solutions, and invest appropriately when growth opportunities arise. We are 
pro- . 
 
Building upon the success in 2024, the Group has set out objectives to achieve for the coming financial year and the 
Directors believe the Group is well placed for 2025 and beyond. 
 
GOING CONCERN 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors have prepared detailed 
budgets for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements which show that the Group is 
able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due including a detailed going concern stress test for 3t Global Holdco Limited, 
by which Transforming Training with Technology Limited is wholly owned, for which further detail is given below. 
 

At the balance sheet date Transforming Training with Technology Limited Group had consolidated net liabilities of 
£72.6m including £79.9m ($100m) relating to its $150m Nordic Bond facility, repayable May 2028 and £175.8m of 
intercompany debt owed to parent companies with maturity of May 2028, but repayable in the event of a business sale, 
whereby repayment would be covered by the sale proceeds. 
 
Other than liabilities arising through normal trading the only other material liabilities falling due in the subsequent 12 
months are the semi-annual bond interest payments of $5.6m due in May 2025 and November 2025.  
 
The projections prepared by the Directors show that the Transforming Training with Technology Limited Group will 
generate sufficient cash from trading to meet the payment of these liabilities. 
 
The going concern stress test prepared by management considers a declining market scenario in which revenue is 
significantly reduced and limited mitigation is undertaken to protect margin and preserve cash flows.  
 
The conclusion of this stress test is that the Group could sustain the loss of more than 30% of projected EBITDA over the 
course of the 12 months following the date of the financial statements, without breaching committed borrowing facilities 
limits or covenants related to the bond facility held by 3t Global Bidco PLC assuming no other mitigating actions were 
undertaken to preserve cash and reduce costs.  
 
Nonetheless the Directors consider the stress test scenario to be highly unlikely, specifically noting: 
 

The amount of revenue in the forecast period for which purchase orders have already been received 
 

The quality of the sales pipeline in terms of value and likelihood of prospects 
 

halting capital expenditure, cost reduction measures)  
 
The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position during the 
forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being able to trade for a 
period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore concluded that it is 
appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis. 
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SECTION 172 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 
The directors of the group and company consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in the way they 
consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a 
whole, and in doing so have regard to the following matters of Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006: 
 

 the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,   
 the interests of the company's employees,  
 the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,   
 the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment,   
 the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and  
 the need to act fairly as between members of the company.  

 

ENGAGING WITH EMPLOYEES 
Within 3t we are continually embedding our vision and values in the touch points of our employee engagement.  
Employee engagement is a fundamental part of our 3t's People Strategy and is documented through-out our policies and 
procedures (recruitment to offboarding) and forms part of our monthly HR communications.  Manager participation is 
key, hence our focus on ensuring leadership training and resources are in place to deliver this. 
 
Informing employees through various communication methods is key to ensure they are part of the journey.  Townhall 
sessions are regularly delivered by our CEO and Business Leadership Team and within each business departmental 
team meetings are held.  Beyond this, managers must hold regular, meaningful 1-2-1 conversations with their 
employees that is focused on getting to know the person, personal and professional development and an opportunity for 
2-way feedback.  
 
Our bi-annual employee engagement surveys also give our employees the opportunity to give their feedback on what are 
our strengths and areas for improvement.  This is a very useful tool to ensure the employee voice is heard and for any 
action plan to be put place. 
 

Regular internal and external events are held to bring the teams together, this is especially beneficial where teams are 
spread over various locations.  Our quarterly newsletters share business updates, but also bring together updates on 
new starts, promotions and all the achievements that we should recognise. 

ENGAGING WITH CUSTOMERS 
There are various points of contact with customers throughout the 3t business. For 3t Managed Service customers there 
is a combination of monthly and quarterly reviews with our customers, reviewing their SLA (Service Level Agreement), 
and each customer will have a Key Account Manager assigned to the contract. For 3t Training Services and 3t Drilling 
Systems business customers will be supported by a combination of Key Account Manager or Business Account 
Manager, with regular meetings held with customers. Retail customers are communicated with via marketing emails and 
are advised when certificates are expiring and booked onto refresher courses. 
 
ENGAGING WITH SUPPLIERS 
3t regularly engages with suppliers in various ways. A significant proportion of 3t suppliers are external course providers. 
It is crucial that these suppliers maintain their accreditation and as such the 3t procurement team engage with them on a 

Quality Management Systems accreditation.  
 
Some 3t suppliers are also competitors, providing courses where 3t do not have resource or availability in a particular 
sector or location. For these suppliers a Customer Account Manager will be assigned to manage the relationship with the 
supplier due to the nature of the relationship i.e. where the supplier is also a competitor, with two-way communication in 
place. 
 
ENGAGING WITH REGULATORS 
Revenue within 3t is derived from providing accredited training and simulation technology. Engagement with training 
regulators is undertaken at a senior level within the Group. For example, with OPITO (Offshore Petroleum Industry 
Training Organisation) there are quarterly reviews held be members of the 3t leadership team with the senior team at 
OPITO. Another example is that with ECITB (Engineering Construction Industry Training Board) members of 3t sit on the 
ATP (Approved Training Provider) Steering Group.  
 
A 3t leadership member sits as a director on the board of IWCF Operations Limited who create the certification for well 
control positions in the UK and globally. The same 3t member also sits on the IADC (International Association of Drilling 
Contractors) Well Control Sub-Committee dealing with training and competency for well control. 
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MINIMISING ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
Through our mission of transforming training with technology, we are focused on creating a sustainable future by 
providing innovative solutions to our customers for a safer and more efficient workforce. 
 

The growth of our business through transformational acquisitions and our focus on the energy transition has accelerated 
efforts on reducing our environmental impact, building an inclusive and fair workplace whilst continuing to ensure the 
health, safety and wellbeing of our colleagues, customers, and stakeholders. 
Our ESG strategy aims to encompass all areas of our business as well as support the industries we work in and 
stakeholders we work with. 
 

3t are certified by BSI to ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems and maintain an impacts and aspects 
register as part of our overall management system. 
 

ENGAGING WITH INVESTORS 
There is regular engagement with both equity and debt investment members. Under the conditions of the Nordic Bond 

bond investor conference in Oslo with investor meetings and a presentation to investors by the Group CEO. The Group 
CFO also engages with individual bond holders on request. 
 

The main shareholder has a seat on the Board of Directors and attends all board meetings. Business performance is 
therefore reviewed on a regular basis, with frequent two-way communication in place. 
 
KEY DECISIONS DURING THE YEAR 
The Board has regard to its responsibilities under s.172 as set out below when making key decisions. It does this by 
ensuring stakeholder perspectives are factored into the thought processes when considering what strategic options to 
take. Conflicts of interest between alternative perspectives are mediated through the selection of options which create 
the most overall benefit and / or progress against the strategic plan of the Group. These plans are developed with 
stakeholder perspectives in mind. 
 

Examples of decisions made in the year included the following: 
1. In May 2024 a $150m Nordic bond facility was completed with a four-year term to May 2028. This facility enabled              

the Group to pay down existing debt while providing the required funding for the acquisitions made later in 2024. 
$100m was drawn with a further $50m available to support future acquisitions. 

2. In June 2024 3t acquired All Stop! a leading safety-critical training business in the US. This business provides a 
foothold in the USA for the expansion of 3t into the American market. 

3. In September 2024 3t acquired GTSC, the largest energy training business in the Middle East. This business 
provides a foothold in the Middle East for the expansion of 3t into this market.  
 

plans. 3t has a clear vision for the future and with funds in place can capitalise on emerging growth opportunities that will 
see 3t deliver further value for its stakeholders. The addition of All Stop! and GTSC represent the first two milestones in 

 
 

HEALTH & SAFETY 
The Directors ensure safety is ingrained in every area of our business and adopted by all of our employees as a key 
component of our day-to-day activities recognising that successful health, safety, quality and environmental management 
is fundamental to our business and we are committed to continual improvement in all areas of our business activities. 
 

The Directors recognise that its employees represent its greatest asset and ensuring the balance between the business 
needs with a full commitment to ensuring that the health, safety and welfare of its employees are met. 
 

QUALITY 
Customer satisfaction can only be achieved by supplying a service and product that totally meets, or wherever possible 
exceeds, the customers' requirements and expectations. 
 

To ensure this, the Group has successfully implemented a fully integrated management system (IMS) which is certified 
by BSI to ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015, ISO 45001:2018, ISO 27001:2023 standards. 
 

Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company and the group for the year ended 
31 December 2024.  
 
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS 
The loss for the year amounted to £11,411,735 (2023: £10,455,869). No dividend was declared or paid during the year 
or prior year. 
 
DIRECTORS 
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2024 to the date of this report. 
 
K N Franklin 
M Somerville 
 
Other changes in directors holding office are as follows:  
 
Patrick Sinclair ceased to be a director on 31 January 2024 and Graeme Sword ceased to be a director on the 5 July 
2024. 
 
Martin Boden was appointed as a director on 1 June 2024.  
 
POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
The company/group made no political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the year or prior year. 
 
QUALIFYING THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS 
The company has put in place qualifying third party indemnity provisions for all directors of Transforming Training with 
Technology Limited. 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS 
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the 
applicant concerned. In the event of employees becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment 
with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group that the training, career 
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees. 
 
MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT 
In accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, information regarding financial risk management, 
objectives and policies, going concern, information on exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cashflow risks 
and future developments has been disclosed in the Strategic Report. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR 
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that: 

 So far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's and the group's 
auditor is not aware; and  

 

 Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in their duty as a director in order to make 
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group's auditor is aware of that 
information.  

 

 
ENGAGEMENT WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHERS 
Engagement with key stakeholders, including employees, suppliers and customers, is disclosed in the Group Strategic 
Report. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
To maintain our position in the market we will continue to develop new products and services, and continue to invest and 
develop new technology solutions, to meet our customers' needs. During the year, the Group has invested significant 
resources into the development of our products in the Simulation and Digital businesses where new products are being 
developed to sell to our customers. In line with the Group's strategy, these assets will facilitate the growth of revenue 
streams. The total investment in the year amounted to £4.7m (2023: £5.3m) and these costs have been capitalised as 
Intangible Fixed Assets in these financial statements. 
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BRANCHES 
The Group and Company does not operate any branches (as defined in section 1046(3) of the 2006 Act) outside the 
United Kingdom. 
 
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
In March 2025 3t Global Bidco Plc secured a £10m Revolving Credit Facility with Barclays Bank Plc. This multi-currency 
facility runs through to November 2027 and will be used to support working capital requirements. 
 

On 1 May 2024, the Group exchanged on the purchase of five properties in Newcastle used to provide training services. 
Under the terms of agreement, title to these properties will pass at completion, being the earlier of full settlement of the 
purchase consideration or 1 November 2026 (being 18 months from the date of exchange). The total purchase 
consideration is £2.1m plus VAT, comprising payments on account £1.0m and a net payment of £1.1m plus VAT to be 
made on completion. Separately, the Group has exchanged on a sale-and-leaseback of the same properties under a 
ten-year lease for a disposal consideration of £2.0m plus VAT, less costs. Management expects that completion of the 
acquisition and disposal will occur simultaneously in April 2025 and that thereafter the properties will continue to be used 
for the provision of training services. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge, the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2024 have been 
prepared in accordance with current applicable accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, 
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the 3t Global Holdco Group take as a whole. We also 

business and the position of the Company and the 3t Global Holdco Group, together with a description of the principal 
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the 3t Global Holdco Group. 
 
AUDITORS 
The auditor, BDO LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006. 
 
Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the directors 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve 
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors 
are required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group 
and Company will continue in business.  

 

 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
company's and the group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 
The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made available on a 

Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the company's website is the responsibility of the directors. The directors' 
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein.
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Opinion on the financial statements 
 
In our opinion: 
 

the financial statements gi
31 December 2024  
 
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and 
 
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.  

 

Income Statement, 
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Company Balance Sheet, 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 

 
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Independence  
 
We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
 

 use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report. 
 
Other information 
 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 

 
 
 
Other Companies Act 2006 reporting 
 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 

 report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
 

 
 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained in 

 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; or 
the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
Responsibilities of Directors 
 
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The 
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 
 
Non-compliance with laws and regulations 
 
Based on: 

Our understanding of the Group and the industry in which it operates; 
Discussion with management and those charged with governance; 

 
 
We considered the significant laws and regulations to be Companies Act 2006, the applicable accounting frameworks 
and tax regulations. 
 
The Group is also subject to laws and regulations where the consequence of non-compliance could have a material 
effect on the amount or disclosures in the financial statements, for example through the imposition of fines or litigations. 
We identified such laws and regulations to be the health and safety legislation, GDPR and tax legislation. 
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 TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 
 

Discussions with Management and those charged with governance regarding known or suspected instances of 
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud. 
Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance for any evidence of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations and fraud and a review of legal expense accounts. 

tements against the requirements of the 
relevant tax legislation and applicable accounting frameworks respectively. 

 
Fraud 
 
We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including fraud. Our risk assessment 
procedures included: 
 

Enquiry with management and those charged with governance regarding any known or suspected instances of fraud; 
 

  Detecting and responding to the risks of fraud; and 
  Internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud. 

Review of minutes of meeting of those charged with governance for any known or suspected instances of fraud; 
Discussion amongst the engagement team as to how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements; 
Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of 
material misstatement due to fraud; 
Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets and the related financial statement areas 
impacted by these; and 

 

controls and fraud in revenue recognition. 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 
 

Testing a sample of journal entries throughout the year, which met a defined risk criteria, by agreeing to supporting 
documentation; 
Evaluation of management incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements 
including management override, and considering that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate 
journal entries to improve the result before tax for the year. 
Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates and assessing whether the 
judgements made in accounting entries are indicative of potential bias. 

 
We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 
members who were all deemed to have appropriate competence and capabilities and remained alert to any indications of 
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.   
 
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising 
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through 
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with 
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to 
become aware of it. 
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 TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 

Use of our report 
 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent 
 

 
James Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Southampton, UK 
 
Date: 24 April 2025  
 
 
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 CONSOLIDATED 

INCOME STATEMENT
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 
 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ 
 
TURNOVER 3 67,382,791 60,346,051 
 
Cost of sales 32,051,908 30,223,831 
    
GROSS PROFIT 35,330,883 30,122,220 
 
Administrative expenses 33,062,374 30,964,480 
    
EBITDA (before non-recurring items, unrealised  
foreign exchange gains plus share of profit in joint ventures) 15,362,719 12,007,025 
 
Share of profit in joint venture                 14 (382,001) (450,000) 
 
Depreciation                                  13 (1,570,897) (1,906,667) 
 

 (7,358,681)                 (7,351,320) 
 
Non-recurring items                            8 (2,819,245) (2,231,114) 
 

   (742,519)                (562,616) 
 

Other operating income 220,867 347,568 
    
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 6 2,489,376 (494,692) 
 
Share of profit in joint venture                 14 382,001 450,000 
 
Interest receivable and similar income  9 372,407 54 
    
Interest payable and similar expenses  10 (15,039,572) (11,437,448) 
    
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION  (11,795,788) (11,482,086) 
 
Taxation credit 11 384,053 1,026,217 
    
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  (11,411,735) (10,455,869) 

    
Loss attributable to: 
Shareholders of the parent company (11,411,735) (10,455,869) 

    
 

Amortisation                                  12 

Unrealised foreign exchange losses 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 CONSOLIDATED 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 

 2024 2023 
  
 £ £ 
 
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (11,411,735) (10,455,869) 
 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)  
 
Currency translation differences 188,442                          (59,333)  
 
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) 188,442 (59,333) 
    
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE 
YEAR  

 
(11,223,293) 

 
(10,515,202) 

    
 
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: 
Shareholders of the parent company (11,223,293) (10,515,202) 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED  
(REGISTERED NUMBER: 10908456) 

 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 
 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS 
Intangible assets 12 77,520,880 54,403,148 
Tangible assets 13 12,712,390 11,976,485 
Investments 14 832,001 450,000 
    
 91,065,271 66,829,633 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Stocks 15 1,653,791 1,677,583 
Debtors 16 34,437,792 23,760,088 
Cash at bank 4,489,854 1,810,412 
    
 40,581,437 27,248,083 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  17 (21,009,913) (20,473,132) 
    
NET CURRENT ASSETS 19,571,524 6,774,951 
    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
110,636,795 

 
73,604,584 

 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due after more than one 
year  

 
18 

 
(177,797,328) 

 
(130,271,980) 

 
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 21 (5,394,373) (4,664,156) 
    
NET LIABILITIES (72,554,906) (61,331,552) 

    
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 22 525,000 525,061 
Profit and loss account (73,079,906) (61,856,613) 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  (72,554,906) (61,331,552) 

    
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 April 2025 and were 
signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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 TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 (REGISTERED NUMBER: 10908456) 
 

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
 31 DECEMBER 2024 
 
 
 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS 
Intangible assets 12 27,603 104,926 
Tangible assets 13 60,934 110,855 
Investments 14 42,397,644 41,166,313 
    
 42,486,181 41,382,094 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Debtors 16 40,921,670 7,312,691 
Cash at bank 317,120 5,285 
    
 41,238,790 7,317,976 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  17 (29,663,013) (24,424,476) 
    
NET CURRENT ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 11,575,777 (17,106,499) 
    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
54,061,958 

 
24,275,594 

 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due after more than one 
year  

 
18 

 
(79,345,447) 

 
(39,219,481) 

    
NET LIABILITIES (25,283,489) (14,943,887) 

    
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 22 525,000 525,000 
Profit and loss account (25,808,489) (15,468,887) 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT (25,283,489) (14,943,887) 

    
 
Company's loss for the financial year  (10,339,602) (6,430,390) 

    
 
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not 
presented its own Statement of Comprehensive Income in these financial statements. The loss after tax of the parent 
company for the year was £10,339,602 (Loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2023: £6,430,390). 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 April 2025 and were 
signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 Called up          Profit  
 share and loss Total 
 capital account equity 
 £ £ £ 
Balance at 1 January 2023 525,000 (51,341,411) (50,816,411) 
 
Changes in equity 
Foreign exchange difference  - (59,333) (59,333) 
Total comprehensive loss - (10,455,869) (10,455,869) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2023 525,000 (61,856,613) (61,331,613) 
      
 
Changes in equity 
Foreign exchange difference - 188,442 188,442 
Total comprehensive loss - (11,411,735) (11,411,735) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2024 525,000 (73,079,906) (72,554,906) 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 Called up         Profit 
 share and loss Total 
 capital account equity 
 £ £ £ 
Balance at 1 January 2023 525,000 (9,038,497) (8,513,497) 
 
Changes in equity 
Total comprehensive loss - (6,430,390) (6,430,390) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2023 525,000 (15,468,887) (14,943,887) 
      
 
Changes in equity 
Total comprehensive loss - (10,339,602) (10,339,602) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2024 525,000 (25,808,489) (25,283,489) 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 1 7,934,281 11,185,348 
    
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,934,281 11,185,348 
    
 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 372,407 54 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,247,340) (2,599,570) 
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (4,720,341) (5,218,655) 
Purchase of fixed asset investments - (1) 
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (27,532,287) - 
Cash payment in joint ventures - (100,000) 
    
Net cash used in investing activities (33,127,561) (7,918,172) 
    
 
Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid (1,683,054) (4,516,271) 
Repayment of bank loan (42,984,179) (2,000,000) 
Proceeds from bank loan - 2,000,000 
Receipts from parent undertakings 77,306,143 - 
Payments to parent undertakings (4,645,094) - 
Repayment of finance lease liabilities  - (34,596) 
    
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities 27,993,817 (4,550,867) 
    
 
    
Increase/(decrease) in cash at bank 2,800,536 (1,283,691) 
Cash at bank at beginning of year  

2 
1,810,412 

 
 

3,094,103 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 
held 

 (121,094) - 

 
    
Cash at bank at end of year 2 4,489,854 1,810,412 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
1. RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO CASH GENERATED FROM 

OPERATIONS  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Loss for the financial year (11,411,735) (10,455,869) 
 Depreciation 1,570,897 1,906,667 
 Amortisation 7,358,681 7,351,320 
 Interest receivable and similar income (372,407) (54)
 Interest payable and similar expenses 15,039,572 11,437,447 
 Other income in respect of R&D (220,867) (347,568) 
 Taxation (384,053) (1,026,217) 
 Share of profit of equity accounted investments (382,001) (450,000) 
    
 11,198,087 8,415,726 
 Decrease/(increase) in stocks 23,792 54,355 
 Increase in trade and other debtors (3,999,462) (603,575) 
 Increase in trade and other creditors 706,043 3,544,772 
 Increase/(decrease) in provisions 5,821 (257,807) 
 Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 31,877 
    
 Cash generated from operations  7,934,281 11,185,348 

    
 
2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

The amounts disclosed on the Cash Flow Statement in respect of cash and cash equivalents are in respect of 
these Balance Sheet amounts:  

 
 Year ended 31 December 2024 
    2024    2023 
 £ £ 
 Cash and cash equivalents 4,489,854 1,810,412 

   
 Year ended 31 December 2023 
    2023     2022 
 £ £ 
 Cash and cash equivalents 1,810,412 3,094,103 

   

 
 

3. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In addition, included within accruals is accrued loan note interest totalling £5.9m (2023: £5.3m). 

    
 

At 1/1/24 
£ 

 
 

Cash flows 
£ 

Other 
non-cash 
changes 

£ 

 
 

At 31/12/24 
£ 

Net cash     
Cash at bank 1,810,412 2,800,536 (121,094) 4,489,854 
     
Debt     
Bank loans (42,984,179) 42,984,179 - - 
Loan notes - deferred acquisition 
consideration 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(2,462,663) 

 
(2,462,663) 

Loan notes - owned to parent 
company loan notes 

 
(87,162,911) 

 
(77,306,143) 

 
(10,234,272) 

 
(174,703,326) 

     
     
 (130,147,090) (34,321,964) (12,696,935) (177,165,989) 
     
 (128,336,678) (31,521,428) (12,818,029) (172,676,135) 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
1. STATUTORY INFORMATION 
 

Transforming Training with Technology Limited ("the company") is a private company limited by share capital and 
incorporated and domiciled in the UK. 

 
The address of its registered office can be found on the information page and the nature of the company's 
operations and its principal activity are set out in the director's report. 
 
The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its subsidiary (together referred to as the 

and not about its group. 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

 
Statement of compliance 
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' ("FRS 102"). The presentation currency of 
these financial statements is Sterling. 

 
Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except that as disclosed in 
the accounting policies certain items are shown at fair value and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 
102 (FRS 102), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland and the 
Companies Act 2006. 

 
Functional and presentational currency 

predominately denominated and/ or received in USD. 
 

s presentation currency is GBP; the Directors elected this due to the nature of the 

principal assets and liabilities of the Group being predominately denominated in GBP. 
 
 Financial Reporting Standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions 

The parent company is included in the consolidated financial statements and is considered to be a qualifying 
entity under FRS 102 paragraphs 1.8 to 1.12 and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect 
of the following disclosures: 

 
  reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the year;   
  Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and   
  Key Management Personnel compensation.   

 
As the consolidated financial statements of Transforming Training with Technology Limited include the 
disclosures equivalent to those required by FRS 102, the company has also taken the exemptions available in 
respect of the following disclosures: 

 
  certain disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial 

Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules of 
Paragraph 36(4) of Schedule 1. 

 

 
 Basis of consolidation 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is achieved where the company has the power to 
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing 
control, the group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. 
 
Excluding the application of merger accounting the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the 
period are included in the Profit and Loss Account from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date 
of disposal, as appropriate. 

 



 
 
 Page 24  

TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement undertaking in which the group exercises joint control over the 
operating and financial policies of the entity. Where the joint venture is carried out through an entity, it is treated 
as a jointly controlled entity. The group's share of the profits less losses of associates and of jointly controlled 
entities is included in the consolidated Income Statement and its interest in their net assets is recorded on the 
balance sheet using the equity method. 

 

Excluding the application of merger accounting the purchase method of accounting is used to account for 
business combinations that result in the acquisition of subsidiaries by the group. The cost of a business 
combination is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, and liabilities incurred 
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination. Identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially 
at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer's 
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as 
goodwill. 
 

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the company and its 
subsidiaries, which are related parties, are eliminated in full. 
 

Going Concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors have prepared detailed 
budgets for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements which show that the 
Group is able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due including a detailed going concern stress test for 3t Global 
Holdco Limited, by which Transforming Training with Technology Limited is wholly owned, for which further detail 
is given below. 
 

At the balance sheet date Transforming Training with Technology Limited Group had consolidated net liabilities of 
£72.6m including £79.9m ($100m) relating to its $150m Nordic Bond facility, repayable May 2028 and £175.4m of 
intercompany debt owed to parent companies with maturity of May 2028, but repayable in the event of a business 
sale, whereby repayment would be covered by the sale proceeds. 
 

Other than liabilities arising through normal trading the only other material liabilities falling due in the subsequent 
12 months are the semi-annual bond interest payments of $5.6m due in May 2025 and November 2025.  
 

The projections prepared by the Directors show that the Transforming Training with Technology Limited Group 
will generate sufficient cash from trading to meet the payment of these liabilities. 
 

The going concern stress test prepared by management considers a declining market scenario in which revenue 
is significantly reduced and limited mitigation is undertaken to protect margin and preserve cash flows.  
 

The conclusion of this stress test is that the Group could sustain the loss of more than 30% of projected EBITDA 
over the course of the 12 months following the date of the financial statements, without breaching committed 
borrowing facilities limits or covenants related to the bond facility held by 3t Global Bidco PLC assuming no other 
mitigating actions were undertaken to preserve cash and reduce costs.  
 

Nonetheless the Directors consider the stress test scenario to be highly unlikely, specifically noting: 
 

 The amount of revenue in the forecast period for which purchase orders have already been received 
 

 The quality of the sales pipeline in terms of value and likelihood of prospects 
 

 
Limiting or halting capital expenditure, cost reduction measures)  

 

The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position 
during the forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being 
able to trade for a period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore 
concluded that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis.   
 

 Revenue recognition 
Revenue comprises, the provision of training courses and the manufacture and maintenance of training 
simulators.  Revenue is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and 
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities. Revenue is shown net of sales/value 
added tax, and rebates. 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
Training services  
For training   services, revenue from the sales of training courses is recognised when the Group has transferred 
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer and it is probable that the Group will receive the 
previously agreed upon payment. These criteria are considered to be met when the training course has been 
delivered to the buyer and completion certificates issued. 
 
Training services  Managed services 
Managed services revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract determined by 
the value of the services provided at the balance sheet date as a proportion of the total value of the engagement. 
Where the amount of revenue is contingent on future events, this is only recognised where the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will be received. When this 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised to the value of the expenses that it is considered 

-
a reliable estimate can be made. Managed services provided to the client which at the balance sheet date have 
not been billed have been recognised as revenue and are included in debtors as accrued income.
 

Rebates 
3t Training Services may grant some customers rebates if the volume of training courses purchased by that 
customer exceed a contractually defined threshold within a specific period. Rebates are deducted from revenue 
and periodically netted from the amounts payable by the customer. 
 

the value to be recognised in the financial statements. 
 

Simulators 
The revenue and costs of portable simulators are recognised in full on the date of shipment. Risk is considered to 
have been transferred to the customer at this date. With regards to larger simulators, revenues and costs are 
reviewed at the point of factory acceptance. At this date 90% of revenue and costs are recognised based on the 
level of costs spent as a proportion of estimated total costs. The remaining costs and revenues are not 
recognised until the point of final acceptance from the customer after installation on site and initial training is 
completed. 
 

The risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the customer in line with the International Commercial Terms 
under which it is sold.  Portable simulators are normally sold Ex Works International Commercial Terms ex 
works. The significant majority of large simulators are sold under Carriage Paid To (CPT) and Carriage and 
Insurance Paid (CIP) International Commercial Terms. Under these terms, control of the product is transferred 
when the goods reach their destination. 
 

Simulators  Maintenance contracts 
3t Drilling Systems offers full maintenance, technical support and hardware and software upgrade options during 
for the economic life of each simulator. 
 

Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
determined by the value of the services provided at the balance sheet date as a proportion of the total value of 
the engagement. Where the amount of revenue is contingent on future events, this is only recognised where the 
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will be received. When 
this cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised to the value of the expenses that it is considered 

-
a reliable estimate can be made. Managed services provided to the client which at the balance sheet date have 
not been billed have been recognised as revenue and are included in debtors as accrued income. 
 

Revenue from technical support and hardware and software upgrades is recognised on receipt of the final 
acceptance from the customer. 
 

Revenue for hardware and software upgrades installed at the customers site, are recognised in the period in 
which the upgrade is installed and/or commissioned and signed off by the customer. 

 

 Intangible assets 
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's 
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at 
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
 

Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued to the closing rate at each reporting year date. 
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TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Trademarks, licences (including software) and customer-related intangible assets have a finite useful life and are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

 

Expenditure on research and activities is recognised in the Income Statement as an expense when incurred. 
 

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and 
commercially feasible and the group intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete 
development, future economic benefits are probable and if the group can measure reliably the expenditure 
attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve design for, construction 
or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised 
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing 
costs. Other development related expenditure which doesn't qualify for capitalisation are recognised in the profit 
and loss account as an expense when incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses. 

 

Amortisation 
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over their 
useful life as follows: 

 

Asset class  Amortisation method and rate  
Goodwill  20 years straight line  
Orderbook  1 year straight line  
Customer relationships  5-10 years straight line  
Technology  10 years straight line  
Software  3 years straight line  

 

Amortisation on intangible assets commences at the point the asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

 Tangible assets 
Tangible assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses arising from an annual review. 

 

The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and 
installation. 

 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction over 
their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 

Asset class  Depreciation method and rate  
Leasehold improvements  Over the life of the lease  
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment  3 to 6 years straight line  
Motor vehicles  4 years straight line  
Plant and machinery  3 to 6 years straight line  

 

 Investments in subsidiaries 
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value arising from an 
annual review. 

 

 Stocks 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is 
based on the weighted average principle and includes all costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured stocks and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate 
share of overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

 

At the end of each reporting year inventories are assessed for impairment, based on condition, ageing and usage 
in the year. When a reversal of impairment is recognised the impairment charge is reversed, up to the original 
loss and recognised as a credit in the profit and loss. 

 

 Tax 
Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised 
as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in other comprehensive income. 



 
 
 Page 27  

TRANSFORMING TRAINING WITH TECHNOLOGY LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

The current corporation tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the group operates and generates taxable 
income. 
 
Deferred corporation tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax 
credits in the Group. Deferred corporation tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set 
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than 
not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit. 

 
 Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rates at the 
balance sheet date. All exchange differences are included in the Profit and Loss account. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

 
The balance sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet 
date and the Profit and Loss account is translated at an average rate for the year of the financial statements. The 
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of opening net assets is taken directly to Other Comprehensive 
Income. All other translation differences are taken to the Income Statement. 

 
 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on deposit.. 
 

Trade debtors 
Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary 
course of business. 

 
Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price less attributable transaction costs. They are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A 
provision for the impairment of trade debtors is established when there is objective evidence that the group will 
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. 

 
Trade creditors 
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if the group does not have an 
unconditional right, at the end of the reporting year, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date. If there is an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 

 
Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price plus attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

 Borrowings 
Interest-bearing borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing 
borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of 
transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the Profit and Loss 
Account over the period / period of the relevant borrowing. 

 

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable 
and similar charges. 

 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

 

 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
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Provisions (including onerous lease provisions) are charged as an expense to the Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income in the year that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the 
best estimate at the statement of financial position date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking 
into account relevant risks and uncertainties. Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost. 

 
The group typically provides a product warranty to customers as part of the sales contract. A provision is made at 
the balance sheet date to cover costs expected to be incurred under such product warranty claims. Historic 
warranty costs have been very low, and the directors anticipate that this is likely to continue. 
 
Leases 
Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the year of the lease. Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. 
 
Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the lower of their fair value at inception of the lease and the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. These assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the 
Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. 

 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance costs in the Income Statement and reduction of the lease 
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 
Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other 
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred 
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis. 

 
Dividends 
Dividend distribution to the company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the 
reporting period in which the dividends are declared and approved. 

 
Defined contribution pension obligation 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a pension fund and the 
group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

 
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If 
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment. 

 
Derivative financial instruments 
Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 
Research and Development 
In the research phase of an internal project it is not possible to demonstrate that the project will generate future 
economic benefits and hence all expenditure on research shall be recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 
Intangible assets are recognised from the development phase of a project if and only if certain specific criteria are 
met in order to demonstrate the asset will generate probable future economic benefits and that its cost can be 
reliably measured. The capitalised development costs are subsequently amortised to administrative expenses on 
a straight line basis over their expected useful economic lives. Research and development tax credits are 
included within the other operating income within the statement of comprehensive income 

 
The expected useful economic life of development costs are estimated based on business plans which set out 
the development plan and time to market for the associated project. 

 
If it is not possible to distinguish between the research phase and the development phase of an internal project 
the expenditure is treated as if it were all incurred in the research phase only. 
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Impairment 
Financial assets (including trade and other debtors) 

 
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

 
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, an impairment is 
calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the best estimate of the amount that 
the Group would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset 
continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
Income Statement. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease 
in impairment loss is reversed through the Income Statement. 

 
Non-financial assets 

 
The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of 
impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or "CGU" that are expected to benefit from the synergies 
of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be allocated to individual 
CGUs or groups of CGUs on a non-arbitrary basis, the impairment of goodwill is determined using the 
recoverable amount of the acquired entity in its entirety, or if it has been integrated then the entire entity into 
which it has been integrated. 

 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

 
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses recognised for other assets is 
reversed only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply. Impairment losses recognised in prior 
years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 

 
 Borrowings 

Interest-bearing borrowings (including loan notes due to group undertakings) are initially recorded at fair value, 
net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the 
difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised 
as a charge to the Income Statement over the year / year of the relevant borrowing. 

 
Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable 
and similar charges. 
 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

Finance costs 
Finance costs are charged to the Income Statement over the term of the debt using the effective interest method 
so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a 
reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument. 
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Non-recurring items 
Non-recurring items are transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group but are presented 
separately due to their size or incidence. Non-recurring items are disclosed within note 8. 

 
 Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation 

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements and estimates. The 
items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates have been made are noted below: 
 
Accounting Judgements 
Business Combinations - determine whether the acquired intangible assets are identifiable in terms of being 
separable and arise from contractual or legal rights. This has been determined on a basis that reflects an amount 
that the group would have paid for the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable and willing 
parties, based on the best information available. If the fair value could not be measured reliably, the asset is not 
recognised as a separate intangible asset but is included in goodwill. 
 
Non-recurring items  non-recurring items consist of items of income or expenditure that management consider 
to be outside the normal course of business due to either the size or nature. Such items are rare in their 
occurrence with no two accounting periods expected to yield similar items. Management believes that the 
separate presentation of these items will enable a better like for like comparison of underlying results. 
 
Impairment of group's tangible and intangible assets - determine whether there are indicators of impairment of 
the group's tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a 
decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a 
component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. Growth 
rates between 1.5% and 3.0% and discount rates between 12.5% to 13.5% have been applied in reviewing the 
fair value of such assets. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
Carrying value of goodwill and capitalised development expenditure  The Group tests annually whether goodwill 
and capitalised development expenditure has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policies 
stated in note 2. This assessment has been carried out for all cash-generating-units and development 
expenditure and these calculations require the use of estimates. The most critical estimates relate to the 
assumed growth of revenues and related profits and the discount rate. 
 
Each financial year management assesses, based on actual performance and any known factors that may 
influence the future, whether the estimates used are still valid. At the reporting date, the annual management 
assessment has not revealed any indications of impairment to the goodwill balance booked at the date of 
acquisition of the carrying value of development expenditure at 31 December 2024.  
 
Stock provision - In estimating net realisable values of inventories, management takes into account the most 
reliable evidence available at the year end. The group adopted a policy of providing for inventory when it reaches 
a certain age and also for any inventory where there are specific quality concerns. This judgement takes into 
account forecast sales and product quality issued based on historical data. 
 
Investments  Fixed asset investments are carried at cost less impairment. Determining whether there are 

be made about economic viability and expected future financial performance of the investment. Should and 
indicator of impairment exist, an estimate of the recoverable amount would need to be made and compared to 
the carrying value of each fixed asset investment. 
 
Provision for staff termination benefits 
With respect to the Group s Middle East businesses, the Group provides ends of service benefits to its 

subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the 
period of employment. Further details on the provision can be found in note 21.
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The turnover and loss before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the group.  
 

An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below:  
 Year ended  Year ended 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
  
 £ £ 
 Training services - Courses 41,108,137 37,186,141 
 Training services - Managed services 16,051,746 16,051,036 
 Simulators - Equipment 6,239,952 3,524,847 
 Simulators - Maintenance contracts 3,982,956 3,584,027 
    
 67,382,791 60,346,051 

    
 

An analysis of turnover by geographical market is given below:  
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 United Kingdom 53,618,424 53,801,758 
 Rest of world 13,764,367 6,544,293 
    
 67,382,791 60,346,051 

    
 
4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Wages and salaries 20,681,745 19,635,519 
 Social security costs 1,871,901 1,825,628 
 Other pension costs 649,609 658,493 
    
 23,203,255 22,119,640 

    
The average number of employees during the year was as follows:  

 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 
 Sales, production and software 86 106 
 Administration and support 68 63 
 Training 296 300 

   
 450 469 

   
As at 31 December 2024, employee costs included in work in progress amounted to £111,000 (year ended 31 
December 2023: £92,612). 

 
Payroll costs of £3,193,000 (year ended 31 December 2023: £3,059,777) included in the above were capitalised 
during the period within Software in note 12. 
 
The number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the period was nil (year ended 31 
December 2023: nil). 
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 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Directors' remuneration 554,536 514,219 
 Directors' pension contributions to money purchase schemes   8,904 27,737 

   
 
 The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing as follows: 
 
 Money purchase schemes 1 - 

    
 
 
 Information regarding the highest paid director is as follows: 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Remuneration 276,470 249,723 

   
6. OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 
 
 The operating profit / (loss) is stated after charging/(crediting): 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Hire of plant and machinery - 11,317 
 Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,592,151 1,906,667 
 Amortisation of intangible assets, including goodwill 7,358,681 7,351,320 
 Foreign exchange differences (742,519) 562,616 
 R&D Tax credit    (220,867) (311,846) 
 Operating lease expense - property    2,202,147 2,662,375 
 Defined contribution pension costs    649,609 658,493 

   
 

Government grants received for R&D Tax credit income have been included within other operating income within 
the Income Statement. Fees payable to Group auditors have been disclosed in note 7. 
 
Company 
The company had a loss of £10,339,602 for the year (Loss of £6,430,390 during the year ended 31 December 
2023). 
 

7. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   

£   £  
Audit of group financial statements  16,000  12,300 
Audit of subsidiary financial statements  214,000  104,700 
     
 230,000  117,000 
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Amounts receivable by the company's auditor and its associates in respect of: 
Taxation compliance services  73,500  61,260 
Other tax advisory services  79,700  29,500 
     
 153,200  90,760 

     
8. NON-RECURRING ITEMS 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   

£   £  

Non-recurring costs  2,819,245  2,231,114 

     
 

Non-recurring costs predominantly relate to one off redundancy and recruitment costs, non-recurring legal and  
professional costs. 
 

 
9. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME  
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Bank interest receivable 372,407 54 
     
 372,407 54 

    
 
 
 
10. 

 
 
 
INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES  

 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Bank interest payable 2,083,053 4,788,826 
  Amortisation of debt issue costs  843,225 194,204 
 Finance lease interest payable - 4,912 
 Loan notes owed to parent company interest payable 12,113,294 6,449,506 
     
 15,039,572 11,437,448 
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 Analysis of the tax credit 

The tax credit on the loss for the year was as follows: 
 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Current tax: 
 UK corporation tax - - 
 Over/under provision in prior 
 year (13,842) (371,879) 
 Foreign taxation 385,111 - 

   
 Total current tax 371,269 (371,879) 
 
 Deferred tax (current and adjustments in respect of prior periods) (745,142) (654,338) 

   
 Total tax credit (373,873) (1,026,217) 

    
 

UK corporation tax has been charged at 25% (year ended 31 December 2023 - 23.5%). 
 
 Reconciliation of total tax credit included in the Consolidated Income Statement 

The tax assessed for the year is higher than (2023: higher than) as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK.  
 

 Year ended Year ended 
 31 December 31 December
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Loss before tax (11,795,788) (11,482,086) 

   
 Loss multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25% 

(year ended 31 December 2023 - 23.5%)  
 

(2,948,947) 
 

(2,698,290) 
 
 Effects of: 
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,806,260 775,236 
 Adjustments to tax credit in respect of previous years  (13,842) (371,879) 
 Effect of foreign tax rates    - 93,704 
 Adjustments in respect of prior years (deferred tax)   (444,798) (536,863) 
 Fixed asset differences    145,969 97,291 
 Research & development credits    55,217 81,545 
 Capital Gains and other differences   - 17,770 
 Group relief    26,268 1,515,269 

   
 Total tax credit (373,873) (1,026,217) 

   
  

The group relief is surrendered from Transforming Training with Technology Limited and the claiming companies 
relate mostly to 3T Training Services Limited and Drilling Systems (UK) Limited. The taxable losses are not 
deemed to have any value, and have therefore been surrendered within the group at no cost.    
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 Group 
 Technology 
 Customer and 
 Goodwill Orderbook relationships software Totals 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024  59,815,589 1,056,000 4,540,000 25,540,260 90,951,849 
 Additions - - - 4,720,392 4,720,392 
 Acquired as part of acquisition  25,756,072 - - - 25,756,072 
          
 At 31 December 2024  85,571,661 1,056,000 4,540,000 30,260,652 121,428,312 
          
 AMORTISATION 
 At 1 January 2024  17,507,765 1,056,000 2,703,641 15,281,346 36,548,752 
 Amortisation for year  3,747,473 - 454,000 3,157,208 7,358,681 
          
 At 31 December 2024  21,255,238 1,056,000 3,157,641 18,438,554 43,907,432 
          
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024  64,316,423 - 1,382,359 11,822,098 77,520,880 

          
 At 31 December 2023  42,307,824 - 1,836,359 10,258,915 54,403,098 

          
 

The development costs relate to various projects that have been undertaken over a number of years, the 
directors consider that it is probable that these projects will generate future economic benefit going forward. 

 
 Amortisation and impairment charge 

The whole amortisation charge above totalling £7,358,681 (year ended 31 December 2023: £7,351,320) has 
been recognised in administrative expenses in the Income Statement. 

Capitalised development costs, which are included within software, are not treated as a realised loss for the 
purpose of determining the Company distributable profits as the costs meet the conditions requiring them to be 
treated as an asset in accordance with FRS 102 Section 18. 

 
Group 
Impairment review 
The group reviews the amortisation year and method when events and circumstances indicate that the useful life 
may have changed since the last reporting date. 

 
Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with Section 27 of FRS102 
Impairment of assets when there is an indication that goodwill or an intangible asset may be impaired. 
 
The directors have determined whether there are indicators of impairment of the Group's tangible and intangible 
assets, including goodwill. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic 
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger 
cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. Growth rates between 1.5% and 
3% and discount rates between 15.3% to 16.5% have been applied in reviewing the fair value of such assets.
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 Group 
 Fixtures 
 Leasehold Plant and and Motor 
 Improvements machinery fittings vehicles Totals 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024  10,318,205 6,992,799 1,509,341 259,664 19,080,009 
 Additions                           234,633        903,440        100,651           8,616        1,247,340 
 Acquired as part of acquisition 621,790 396,564 41,108 - 1,059,462 
           
 At 31 December 2024  11,174,628 8,292,803 1,651,100 268,280 21,386,811 
          
 DEPRECIATION 
 At 1 January 2024 2,565,223 3,573,212 922,193 42,896 7,103,524 
 Charge for year 498,546 833,168 207,953 31,230 1,570,897 
            
 At 31 December 2024  3,063,769 4,406,380 1,130,146 74,126 8,674,421 
          
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024  8,110,859 3,886,423 520,954 194,154 12,712,390 

          
 At 31 December 2023  7,752,982 3,419,587 587,148 216,768 11,976,485 

          
 
14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 
 
 Group 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 450,000 
 Share of profit in joint ventures 382,001 

 
832,001 

 

   
 CARRYING AMOUNT 
 At 31 December 2024 832,001 

  
 At 31 December 2023 450,000 

  
 
 31 December 31 December 
 2024 2023 
   

 
Investments in joint ventures   832,001  450,000 

      

At 31 December 2024 
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14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued 
 

 Company 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 41,166,313 
 Additions 1,231,331 

 
42,397,644 

 

   
 CARRYING AMOUNT 
 At 31 December 2024 42,397,644 

  
 At 31 December 2023 41,166,313 

  
 

The investments at Group level are in relation to the 3t Enermech Limited joint venture. The Group's share of joint 
venture profits have been recognised within the Consolidated Income Statement.  
 
The Investment addition reflected in the Company financial statements relates to the share for share exchange in 
Transforming Training with Technologies Limited. Further details can be seen in note 1.  
 

All subsidiary companies registered in the UK and listed on the following page under the Companies Act 2006, 
with the exception of 3t Training Services Limited and Drilling Systems (UK) Limited, are exempt from the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of financial statements under section 479A of the 
Companies Act 2006. The registered company number of each relevant subsidiary has been listed on the 
following page. 

 

Details of undertakings 
Details of the investments (including principal place of business of unincorporated entities) in which the company 
holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows: 
 
Undertaking  UK 

Company 
Number 

 Registered 
office (see 

below) 

 Holding  Proportion of voting 
rights and shares held 

 

 2024  2023  
Subsidiary undertakings 
Survivex Group Limited  SC467255  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Survivex Limited  SC357717  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
TMS Oldco Limited   SC467482  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Survivex TMS Limited  SC242176  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Rigex Limited  SC466107  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
E-Learnex Limited  SC467476  UK (5)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
3T Digital Limited   09314258  UK (7)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
3T Transform Limited   14759718  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
3T Managed Services Limited  14759563  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
3T Workforce Solutions Limited  14759724  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Advanced Industrial Solutions Limited  05982756  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
AIS Survivex Limited  13545463  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
DS UK Topco Limited  09505117  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
DS UK Midco 1 Limited  09505116  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
DS UK Midco 2 Limited  09506608  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Drilling Systems Group Limited  09503545  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Drilling Systems Limited  02295138  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Drilling Systems (USA) Inc   USA (3)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Drilling Systems (UK) Limited  02509111  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
DS Sheet Metal Limited  05162610  UK (2)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
D.S. 2000 Limited  03838137  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
3T Training Services Limited  05982756  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Speciality Welds Ltd  05048048  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Utility & Construction Training Limited  06429564  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
UCT Electrical Limited  06659867  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
3T Training Solutions Limited  14766769  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  
Neutron VR Limited  14759718  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100%  

At 31 December 2024 
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14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued 
 

3T Connect Limited  15550699  UK (1)  Ordinary  100%  100% 
DSG International DMCC   UAE (4)  Ordinary  100%  100% 
3T Holdco USA LLC   USA (9)  Ordinary  100%  0%  
3T Bidco USA LLC   USA (9)  Ordinary  100%  0%  
3T Training Services Inc   USA (10)  Ordinary  100%  0%  
3T Training Services Online USA LLC   USA (10)  Ordinary  100%  0%  
3T Training Services USA LLC   USA (10)  Ordinary  100%  0%  
3T Training Co LLC   Saudi Arabia  Ordinary  100%  0%  
3T Bidco SPV Limited   UAE (11)  Ordinary  100%  0%  
Gulf Technical and Safety training 
Centre LLC 

  UAE (12)  Ordinary  100%  0%  

General Technical and Safety Training 
Centre LLC 

  Saudi Arabia 
(13) 

 Ordinary  100%  0%  

GTSC Commercial Enterprises 
Investment Institution and Management 
LLC 

  UAE (12)  Ordinary  100%  0%  

Gulf Technical and Safety Training 
Centre LLC 

  Egypt (14)  Ordinary  100%  0%  

Joint venture 
3T Enermech Limited  SC731480  UK (8)  Ordinary  50%  50%  
ODITC Inc    Guyana  Ordinary  34%  0%  

 
The registered addresses for the subsidiary undertakings are as follows: 

 
1. Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW 
2. c/o Drilling Systems, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 
6EW 
3. 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808 
4. Unit 3401-D, Gold Tower (AU), Plot Number JLT-PH1-I3A, Jumeirah Lakes Towers, Dubai, UAE 
5. Kirkhill Commercial Park Dyce Avenue, Dyce, Aberdeen, AB21 0LQ 
6. Room 1402, Shuang Chuang Building, Yu Jia Pu, TEDA, 300457, Tianjin 
7. Cobalt 13a, 9 Silver Fox Way, Cobalt Business Park, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE27 0Q 
8. Enermech House, Howes Road, Aberdeen, Scotland, AB16 7AG 
9. 108 Lakeland Avenue, Dover, Kent County, Delaware 19901 
10. 1630 FM 1960 Road E, Houston, TX 77073 
11. 3529, 35, Al Maqam Tower, Regus Adgm Square, Al Maryah Island, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
12. Plot No-2, Street No 12, Mw-2, Sector 1, Mussafah, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
13. Industrial Area 2, Dammam, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
14. 77 Street 104 Maadi, Cairo, Egypt 

 
Transforming Training with Technology Limited only directly holds the share capital of DS UK Topco Limited, 3T 
Holdco USA LLC, 3T Managed Services Limited, 3T Workforce Solutions Limited, Survivex Group Limited, 
Advanced Industrial Solutions Limited, AIS Survivex Limited, 3T Training Services Limited, 3T Training Solutions 
Limited, 3t EnerMech Limited, Neutron VR Limited, 3T Connect Limited, 3T Digital Limited, 3T Transform Limited, 
3T Training Co LLC and 3T Bidco SPV Limited. 
 
The share capital of Survivex Limited, Survivex TMS Limited and Rigex Limited are held by Survivex Group 
Limited. 

 
The share capital of DS UK Midco 1 Limited is held by DS UK Topco Limited. 

 
The share capital of DS UK Midco 2 Limited is held by DS UK Midco 1 Limited. 

 
The share capital of Drilling Systems Group Limited is held by DS UK Midco 2 Limited. 
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14. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued 

 
The share capital of Drilling Systems (USA) Inc, Drilling Systems Limited and DSG International DMCC, are held 
by Drilling Systems Group Limited. 

 
The share capital of Drilling Systems (UK) Limited and DS Sheet Metal Limited are held by Drilling Systems 
Limited. 
 
The share capital of D.S. 2000 Limited is held by Drilling Systems (UK) Limited. 
 
The share capital of 3T Bidco USA LLC is held by 3T Holdco USA LLC. 
 
The share capital of 3T Training Services Inc., is held by 3T Bidco USA LLC. 
 
The share capital of 3T Training Services Online USA LLC and 3T Training Services USA LLC is held by 3T 
Training Services. 
 
The share capital of E-Learnex Limited, Rigex Limited, TMS Oldco Limited and Survivex Limited are held by 
Survivex Group Limited. 
 
The share capital of Survivex TMS Limited is held by Survivex Limited. 
 
The share capital of Speciality Welds Limited and Utility & Construction Training Limited are held by 3T Training 
Services Limited. 
 
The share capital of UCT Electrical Limited is held by Utility & Construction Training Limited. 
 
The share capital of Gulf Technical and Safety training Centre LLC is held by 3T Bidco SPV Limited. 
 

The share capital of General Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC and GTSC Commercial Enterprises 
Investment Institution and Management LLC are held by Gulf Technical and Safety training Centre LLC. 
 

The share capital of Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC is held by Gulf Technical and Safety training 
Centre LLC (99%) and GTSC Commercial Enterprises Investment Institution and Management LLC (1%). 

The principal activity of DS UK Topco Limited, DS UK Midco 1 Limited, DS UK Midco 2 Limited, Drilling Systems 
Group Limited, Drilling Systems Limited, 3T Holdco USA LLC, 3T Bidco USA LLC, Survivex Group Limited, 
Survivex Limited, 3T EnerMech Limited and 3T Bidco SPV Limited is a holding company. 
 
The principal activity of D.S. 2000 Limited, DS Sheet Metal Limited, 3T Managed Services Limited, 3T Workforce 
Solutions Limited, E-Learnex Limited, Rigex Limited, TMS Oldco Limited, Survivex TMS Limited, Advanced 
Industrial Solutions Limited, AIS Survivex Limited, Speciality Welds Ltd, UCT Electrical Limited, 3T Training 
Solutions Limited, Neutron VR Limited, 3T Connect Limited, 3T Transform Limited and 3T Trainings Co LLC is a 
dormant company 

 
The principal activity of DSG International DMCC is a trading company. 
 
The principal activity of Drilling Systems (USA) Inc is a sales branch. 

 
The principal activity of Drilling Systems (UK) Limited is specialist software, control systems, simulation 
equipment and consultancy. 
 
The principal activity of 3t Training Services Inc, 3t Training Services Online USA LLC and 3t Training Services 
USA LLC Company is the provision of training services.  

The principal activity of 3t Training Services Limited is the provision of training services to the energy sector.  
 
The principal activity of Utility & Construction Training Limited is the provision of training services to the utilities.   

 
The principal activity of 3t Digital Limited is the development of software. 
 
The principal activity of Gulf Technical and Safety training Centre LLC, General Technical and Safety Training 
Centre LLC, Gulf Technical and Safety Training Centre LLC and GTSC Commercial Enterprises Investment 
Institution and Management LLC is the provision of training services to the Energy sector. 
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15. STOCKS 
 
 Group 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Raw materials 1,233,245 449,314 
 Work-in-progress 323,596 984,489 
 Finished goods 96,950 243,780 

     
 1,653,791 1,677,583 

    
 

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of the inventory and its carrying amount. 
 

16. DEBTORS 
 
 Group  Company 
 2024 2023 2024 2023 
 £ £ £ £ 

Amounts falling due within one year:  
 Trade debtors 17,379,612 13,045,995 39,499 - 
 Amounts owed by parent company 1,279,851 1,077,365 38,149,712 5,336,508 
 Other debtors 2,819,875 2,620,996 1,333,218 1,279,279 
 Corporation tax 932,290 627,836 - - 
 Deferred tax 500,000 - 317,670 - 
 Prepayments and accrued income 11,526,164 6,387,896 1,081,571 696,904 
          
 34,437,792 23,760,088 40,921,670 7,312,691 

        
 

Details of non-current trade and other debtors 
Included within other debtors is an amount due from joint ventures of £882,315 (31 December 2023: £882,315). 
 
The deferred tax asset relates to accelerated depreciation when compared to the tax relief received in the Middle 
East businesses. Due to the deferred tax being in respect of a separate tax jurisdiction to the UK deferred tax 
liabilities, it does not meet the offset requirements under FRS102 and is therefore shown separately. 
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17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
 
 Group  Company 
 2024 2023 2024 2023 
 £ £ £ £ 
 Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 19)  - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000 
 Loan notes  deferred acquisition 

consideration (see note 19) 
820,888 - - - 

 Trade creditors 7,179,619 8,150,695 1,435,749 774,189 
 Hire purchase creditor (see note 20)  1,133 1,772 - - 
 Payments on account 123,584 201,800 - - 
 Amounts due to parent company 2,713,110 - 27,586,478 18,423,084 
 Corporation tax 259,606 13,845 - - 
 Social security and other taxes  1,753,634 1,639,015 - 492,068 
 Other creditors 1,705,031 1,170,698 - 6,421 
 Accruals and deferred income 6,453,308 4,795,307 640,786 228,714 
           
 21,009,913 20,473,132 29,663,013 24,424,476 

        
 
The R&D credit receivable has been offset against the corporation tax liability, this is on the basis that these will 
be settled net in the current year. 
 
The Loan notes included above relate to deferred consideration for the acquisition of 3t Training Services USA 
Inc and its subsidiaries. 

 
18. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR  

 Group  Company 
 2024 2023 2024 2023 
 £ £ £ £ 
  
 Other creditors 313,569 - - - 
 Long term bank loans (see note 19) - 38,484,179 - 38,484,179 
 Long term bonds (see note 19) - - - - 
 Debt issue costs (see note 19) - (843,225) - (843,225) 
 Loans owed to parent company - 1,578,527 - - 
 Loan notes  deferred acquisition 

consideration (see note 19) 
 

1,641,775 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 Loan notes due to parent company (see note 

19) 
170,058,232 85,584,384 79,345,447 1,578,527 

 Accrued interest on parent company loan 
notes 

5,783,752 5,468,115 - - 

 
         
 177,797,328 130,271,980 79,345,447 39,219,481 

        
 
19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 
 
 An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below: 
 
 Group 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 

Amounts falling due within one year: 
 Bank loans - 4,500,000
 Loan notes  deferred acquisition consideration 820,888 - 
    
 820,888 4,500,000 
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19. LOANS AND BORROWINGS - continued 
 

 2024  2023 
£   £  

Non-current loans and borrowings 
Long term bank loans  -  38,484,179 
Long term bonds  -  - 
Debt issue costs  -  (843,225) 
Loans owed to parent company  76,996,385  1,578,527 
Loan notes - deferred acquisition consideration  1,641,775  - 
Loan notes and accrued interest due to parent company  98,845,599  91,052,499 
     
     
  177,483,759  130,271,980 

     
 

The intercompany loan notes held as at 31 December 2024 are due for repayment in more than one year. 
Interest accrues at a fixed coupon of 8.0% per annum on these loan notes and is repayable on redemption of the 
loan notes. Accrued interest is included within the balances shown above 

 
During the year a bank loan of £39,000,000 and a Revolving Credit Facility of £3,000,000, both with Investec 
Bank plc, were repaid on 22 May 2024 together with accrued interest. 

Loan notes due in relation to the deferred consideration of 3t Training Services USA Inc are due in three equal 
instalments of $1.0m, payable in June 2025, June 2026 and June 2027. 
 

20. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASING AGREEMENTS 
 

Minimum lease payments fall due as follows:  
 
 Group 

 Hire purchase contracts  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Net obligations repayable: 
 Within one year 1,133 1,772 

    
  
  Group 
 Non-cancellable 
 operating leases 
 2024 2023 
   
 £ £ 
 Within one year 2,859,217 2,475,114 
 Between one and five years 10,844,285 9,201,406 
 In more than five years 25,657,572 26,459,616 
    
 39,361,074 38,136,136 
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21. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 
 

 
 
 

      
 
 

 
 

Deferred tax 

  
 
 

 
Warranty 
provision 

  
 
 

Staff 
termination 

benefits 
       £   £   £ 
 
At 1 January 2024 

   
 

 
2,382,336 

 
 

 
     51,000 

 
 

 
- 

 
Acquired as part of business combinations 

  
- 

  
   

 
 

 
1,468,539 

 
Recognised in the Income Statement 

  
(745,142) 

 
 

      
      - 

 
 

 
73,767 

              
At 31 December 2024  1,637,194    51,000  1,542,306 

              
 

 
 
 

      
 
 

 
 

Dilapidations 

  
 
 

Onerous 
lease 

provision 

  
 
 

 
 

Total 
       £   £   £ 
 
At 1 January 2024 

   
 

 
505,384 

 
 

 
  1,725,436 

 
 

 
4,664,156 

 
Acquired as part of business combinations 

  
- 

  
- 

 
 

 
1,468,539 

 
Recognised in the Income Statement 

 
 

 
- 

 
 

 
   (66,947) 

 
 

 
(738,322) 

              
At 31 December 2024     505,384    1,658,489  5,394,373 

              
 

The warranty provision relates to product warranties provided by the group to its customers as part of the sales 
contracts. 
 

Staff termination benefits provision relates to the end of service benefits due to employees within the Groups 
Middle East businesses. 

 

The dilapidation provision relates to estimated contractual obligations of restoring operating leases back to the 
original state of the asset. 

 

The onerous lease provision relates to rental and rates costs for two separate leased properties within the group. 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: 

 

 Liabilities/(Assets)  Liabilities/(Assets) 
 2024  2023 
    

£   £  
Accelerated capital allowances  1,043,912  1,860,939 
Tax losses carried forward  (241,250)  (823,338) 
Arising on business combinations  834,532  1,344,735 
     
 1,637,194  2,382,336 

     
  Staff termination benefits  
  The movement in the provision for staff terminal benefits is as follow: 

 2024  2023 
    

£   £  
At 1 January   -  - 
Acquired as part of business combinations   1,468,539  - 
Recognised in the income statement  73,767  - 
     
 1,542,306  - 
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22. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 
 Number: Class: Nominal 2024 2023 
 value:  £ £ 
 525,000 Ordinary £1 525,000 525,061 

   
 
 
23. PARENT AND ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING 
 

The company's controlling shareholder is Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. The registered address for Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar 
Court, Les Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 
Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is owned by Blue Water Energy Fund I L.P. and Blue Water Energy Fund I-A 
L.P. These funds are ultimately controlled by BWE General Partner Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. The registered address for BWE General Partner Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar Court, Les 
Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 
The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is 3T Global Holdco Limited. The 
registered address for 3T Global Holdco Limited is Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth 
International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW.
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24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

The following companies were guarantors in relation to the Nordic Bond of $100,000,000 where the issuer is 3t 
Global Bidco Plc: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Group 
 

Summary of transactions with group 
The company and group have taken advantage of the exemptions in section 33.1A of FRS 102 from disclosing 
transactions with other members of the group whose financial statements have been included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the ultimate parent company, 3T Global Holdco Limited.  
 
Key management personnel 
Key management personnel include all directors of the group, who together have authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the group. The total compensation paid to key management 
personnel for services provided to the group was £1,021,675 (year ended 31 December 2023: £895,400). There 
were £Nil amounts outstanding as at the year end (year ended 31 December 2023: £Nil). Pension contributions 
to money purchase pension schemes due at the year were nil. (year ended 31 December 2023: £Nil). 
 

26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

In March 2025 3t Global Bidco Plc completed a £10m Revolving Credit Facility with Barclays Bank Plc. This 
multi-currency facility runs through to November 2027 and will be used to support working capital requirements. 
 
On 1 May 2024, the Group exchanged on the purchase of five properties in Newcastle used to provide training 
services. Under the terms of agreement, title to these properties will pass at completion, being the earlier of full 
settlement of the purchase consideration or 1 November 2026 (being 18 months from the date of exchange). The 
total purchase consideration is £2.1m plus VAT, comprising payments on account £1.0m and a net payment of 
£1.1m plus VAT to be made on completion. Separately, the Group has exchanged on a sale-and-leaseback of 
the same properties under a ten-year lease for a disposal consideration of £2.0m plus VAT, less costs. 
Management expects that completion of the acquisition and disposal will occur simultaneously in April 2025 and 
that thereafter the properties will continue to be used for the provision of training services. 
 

27. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION SCHEME 
 

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents 
contributions payable by the group to the scheme and amounted to £649,609 (year ended 31 December 2023: 
£630,756).  

 
Contributions totalling £17,790 (year ended 31 December 2023: £85,951) were payable to the scheme at the end 
of the year and are included in creditors. 
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28. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 
  
 Acquisition of 3t Training Services USA (previously AllStop! Inc) and its subsidiaries  
 

On 7 June 2024, 3t Bidco USA LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Transforming Training and Technology Limited 
acquired the entire issued share capital of 3t Training Services USA and its subsidiaries. 
 

In calculating the goodwill arising on acquisition, the fair value of net assets have been assessed and 
adjustments from book value have been made where necessary. Management have estimated the useful life of 
the goodwill to be 10 years and it will be amortised over this period. 
 

The following table summarises the consideration paid by the group, the fair value of assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed: 

 
   

            
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
The results of 3t Training Services USA and its subsidiaries since acquisition are included in the Consolidated 
Income Statement as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The directors do not consider there to be any intangible assets arising on the acquisition that are both contractual 
and separable. Therefore, no intangible asset has been recognised as part of the business combination. 

   Book Fair value Fair 

   value adjustments value 

   £ £ £ 

      

Fixed assets  105,134 - 105,134 

     

  105,134 - 105,134 
      

Current assets     

Debtors   164,329 - 164,329 

Cash and bank balances  240,712 - 240,712 

      

   405,041 - 405,041 
      

Total assets  510,175 - 510,175 
      

Creditors     

Due within one year  (81,727) - (81,727) 

Due in more than one year  (9,939) - (9,939) 

      

Total identifiable net assets 418,509 - 418,509 

      

Goodwill     4,984,757 

      

Total purchase consideration    5,403,266 
      

Consideration  
 

Cash  2,334,387 

Deferred consideration - loan notes   2,468,879 

Acquisition costs 600,000 
      

Total purchase consideration   5,403,266 

 
   Current 

period since 
acquisition 

Turnover    
 
 1,371,387 

Result for the year     75,865 
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28. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS  continued 
 
 Acquisition of Gulf Technical & Safety Training Centre LLC and certain of its subsidiaries 
 

On 20 September 2024, 3t Bidco SPV Limited, an indirect subsidiary of Transforming Training and Technology 
Limited acquired the entire issued share capital of Gulf Technical & Safety Training Centre LLC & its subsidiaries. 
 

In calculating the goodwill arising on acquisition, the fair value of net assets have been assessed and 
adjustments from book value have been made where necessary. Management have estimated the useful life of 
the goodwill to be 10 years and it will be amortised over this period 
 

The following table summarises the consideration paid by the group, the fair value of assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed: 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
The results of Gulf Technical & Safety Training Centre LLC and its subsidiaries since acquisition are included in 
the Consolidated Income Statement as follows: 

 
The directors do not consider there to be any intangible assets arising on the acquisition that are both contractual 
and separable. Therefore, no intangible asset has been recognised as part of the business combination. 

 

   Book Fair value Fair 

   value adjustments value 

   £ £ £ 
      

Fixed assets  954,328 - 954,328 
     

  954,328 - 954,328 
      

Current assets     

Debtors   6,209,459 - 6,209,459 

Cash and bank balances  1,302,433 - 1,302,433 
      

   7,511,892 - 7,511,892 

      

Total assets  8,466,219 - 8,466,219 
      

Creditors     

Due within one year  (1,627,951) - (1,627,951) 

Provision for liabilities  (1,468,539) - (1,468,539) 

      

Total identifiable net assets 5,369,729 - 5,369,729 

      

Goodwill     20,771,315 

      

Total purchase consideration    26,141,045 

      

Consideration   

Cash  24,495,424 

Acquisition costs 1,645,621 
      

Total purchase consideration   26,141,045 

 
   Current 

period since 
acquisition 

Turnover    
 
 3,598,000 

Result for the year     1,182,037 
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 DRILLING SYSTEMS (U.K.) LIMITED 
 
 STRATEGIC REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2024.  
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 
The principal activity of the company is the provision of specialist computer software and control systems, simulation 
equipment and consultancy to companies in the oil and gas industry, training centres and universities together with the 
manufacture and supply of these items, integrated with operational field equipment. 
 

FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS 
We aim to present a balanced and comprehensive review of the development and performance of our business during 
the year and its position at the year end. Our review is consistent with the size and nature of the business and is written 
in the context of the risks and uncertainties we face. 
 

The company's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows: 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Unit 

 31 December 
2024 

 
 
 

31 December 
2023 

Revenue  £m  9.4  6.5 
Gross profit  £m  6.5  4.1 
Adjusted EBITDA*  £m  5.8     2.8 
Profit before tax  £m  4.7  1.4 
Net current assets as disclosed in balance sheet  £m  30.4  25.9 
 

*Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and non-recurring items. 
 

The Company had a positive 2024 with growth across a number of its key areas. Our strategic objectives of broadening 
our offer, expanding into adjacent sectors and deepening our digital capability have all advanced and continue to do so. 
Revenue increased by 44.5% from £6.5m to £9.4m and adjusted EBITDA* increased by 107.1% from £2.8m to £5.8m. 
 

The Company's client base continues to increase as we win further work in our existing verticals as well as expanding 
into other relevant markets.  
 

The fundamentals of the business remain strong. The Board believes that a combination of our training and technology 
offering and our sector diversification as the energy transition gathers pace, leaves the Company well positioned going 
forward into 2025 and beyond. 
 

PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The Board has the overall accountability for ensuring that risk is effectively managed across the Group.  
 
The principal risks and uncertainties have been assessed by the Board as follows based on the following criteria: 
1. assessment of the likelihood of the risk materialising, 
2. magnitude of the risk and 
3. assessment of changes in each risk (e.g. decreased, stable or increased) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Each risk is further defined below.  
 

Nature of risk Likelihood of the 
risk materialising 

Magnitude of 
risk 

Assessment of 
change 

Geopolitical and economic environment Medium Medium Increasing 

 Low Medium Stable 

Foreign exchange Medium Medium Increasing 

Cyber security Medium High Stable 
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PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 
Continuing uncertainty in the geopolitical and economic environment represents the principal risk to the Company. 
Continuing events in Ukraine and Gaza and the threat of a global trade war, due to tariffs being imposed on goods, may 
increase inflationary pressures and the chance of recession resulting in lower demand for products and services. 
Revenue for Drilling Systems is product and service based so the impact of any tariff-based increase may have an 
impact on product cost although the Company has various suppliers that they can source inventory from that can help 
alleviate the pressure of any cost increase. Also, the continuing high energy prices means our clients are investing in the 
future and this combined with a general lack of access to skilled workers remains an opportunity for the Company. 
 
With the tax rates in the oil and gas sector increasing, investment in the UK continues to be weak, affecting a key market 
for Drilling Systems UK. The UK October 2024 budget increased the Energy Profits Levy (EPL) tax rate by 3%, bringing 

net zero by 2050, and continued investment in this sector, Drilling Systems UK continues to grow its offering in the 
renewables space. 
 

This risk is managed as far as possible via diversification across a wide range of customers, products, and services and 
so the Company is not reliant upon any single customer, or group of customers, or upon any single product or service.  
 

that the range of products and services offered to customers remains at the forefront of technology. As such, the 
Company believes it is mitigating as far as possible the risks of obsolescence.  
 
Foreign exchange risk principally relates to the GBP to USD exchange rate as a proportion of revenues are collected in 
US dollars. The Company avoids contracts in other currencies where possible. The exposure to foreign currency is 
reviewed by the Directors and managed via forward exchange currency contracts where appropriate.  
 
Cyber security represents another area of risk and is one which is monitored closely by the Board. The business is ever 
vigilant in this regard, has clear policies & procedures, ongoing awareness campaigns, uses state of the art firewalls, and 
utilises ISO 27001 as a framework for ensuring external audits are undertaken regularly. 
 
OTHER RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
The business' principal financial instruments comprise trade debtors, trade creditors and intercompany loans both to and 
from the Group and Company. The main purpose of these instruments is to finance the business' operations.  
 
In respect of bank balances, the business' cash balances are held in different accounts and currencies with liquidity 
levels managed closely at a Group level.  
 
Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies concerning the credit offered to customers 
and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits. The amounts presented in the balance 
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debtors. Process and system improvements have been made to improve the 
rate of collection of outstanding monies Trade creditors' liquidity risk is managed by ensuring sufficient funds are 
available to meet amounts due. 

GOING CONCERN 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors have prepared detailed 
budgets for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements which show that the Group is 
able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due including a detailed going concern stress test for 3t Global Holdco Limited, 
by which 3t Global Bidco PLC is wholly owned, for which further detail is given below. Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited is a 
fully owned subsidiary of 3t Global Bidco PLC, and we consider that the group going concern assessment covers the 
subsidiary. 
 
At the balance sheet date 3t Global Bidco PLC has net liabilities of £74.0m including £73.4m ($100m) relating to its 
$150m Nordic Bond facility, repayable May 2028 and £99.2m of intercompany debt owed to 3t Global Holdco Limited 
with maturity of May 2028, but repayable in the event of a business sale, whereby repayment would be covered by the 
sale proceeds. 
 
Other than liabilities arising through normal trading the only other material liabilities falling due in the subsequent 12 
months are the semi-annual bond interest payments of $5.6mm due in May 2025 and November 2025.  
 
The projections prepared by the Directors show that 3t Global Bidco PLC will generate sufficient cash from trading to 
meet the payment of these liabilities.  
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GOING CONCERN  continued  
The going concern stress test prepared by management considers a declining market scenario in which revenue is 
significantly reduced and limited mitigation is undertaken to protect margin and preserve cash flows. 
 
The conclusion of this stress test is that the Group could sustain the loss of more than 30% of projected EBITDA over the 
course of the 12 months following the date of the financial statements, without breaching committed borrowing facilities 
limits or covenants related to the bond facility held by 3t Global Bidco PLC (the parent company).  
 
Nonetheless the Directors consider the stress test scenario to be highly unlikely, specifically noting: 
 

The amount of revenue in the forecast period for which purchase orders have already been received 
 

The quality of the sales pipeline in terms of value and likelihood of prospects 
 

halting capital expenditure, cost reduction measures)  
 
The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position during the 
forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being able to trade for a 
period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore concluded that it is 
appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 
Our objective is to remain the preferred provider of simulation equipment to the oil and gas and crane industries. 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
The Directors ensure safety is ingrained in every area of our business and adopted by all of our employees as a key 
component of our day-to-day activities recognising that successful health, safety, quality and environmental management 
is fundamental to our business and we are committed to continual improvement in all areas of our business activities. 
 

The Directors recognise that its employees represent its greatest asset and ensuring the balance between the business 
needs with a full commitment to ensuring that the health, safety and welfare of its employees are met. 
 
 

QUALITY 
Customer satisfaction can only be achieved by supplying a service and product that totally meets, or wherever possible 
exceeds, the customers' requirements and expectations. 
 

To ensure this, the Group has successfully implemented a fully integrated management system (IMS) which is certified 
by BSI to ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015, ISO 45001:2018, ISO 27001:2023 standards. 
 
 

Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 

 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2024.  
 
DIRECTORS 
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2024 to the date of this report. 
 
K N Franklin 
C J Battisby 
 
Other changes in directors holding office are as follows: 
 
Patrick Sinclair ceased to be a director on 31 January 2024 and Martin Boden was appointed as a director on 1 June 
2024. 
 
POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
The Company made no political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the year (2023: £Nil). 
 
DIVIDENDS 
No dividend was declared or paid during the year (2023: £Nil). 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS 
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the 
applicant concerned. In the event of employees becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment 
with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group that the training, career 
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees. 
 
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
There are no reportable balance sheet events. 
 
OTHER MATTERS 
In accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, information regarding financial instruments, going 
concern and future developments has been disclosed in the Strategic Report. 
 
THIRD PARTY INDEMNITIES 
Qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of the directors were in force during the year under review and 
remain in force as at the date of approval of the financial statements. 
 
Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve 
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors 
are required to: 
 
-  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
-  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
-  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements;  
 

-  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
company will continue in business. 

 

 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and the 
group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements 
which are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility  for taking such 
steps as are reasonable open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities.
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Opinion on the financial statements 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 
 

 
year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

December 2024 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).  
 
Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
 

statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded tha  use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report. 

Other information 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Other Companies Act 2006 reporting 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 

 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

 
requirements. 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, 
 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

  

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of Directors 

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
 
Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The 
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 
 
Non-compliance with laws and regulations 
 
Based on: 

 Our understanding of the Company and the industry in which it operates; 
 Discussion with management and those charged with governance; 
 s policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and 

regulations; and 
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We considered the significant laws and regulations to be the Companies Act 2006 the applicable accounting framework 
and tax legislation. 
 
The Company is also subject to laws and regulations where the consequence of non-compliance could have a material 
effect on the amount or disclosures in the financial statements, for example through the imposition of fines or litigations. 
We identified such laws and regulations to be the health and safety legislation, GDPR and tax legislation. 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 

 Discussions with Management and those charged with governance regarding known or suspected instances of 
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.  

 Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance for any evidence of non-compliance with laws 
and regulations and fraud and a review of legal expense accounts. 

 
the relevant tax legislation and applicable accounting frameworks respectively. 

 
Fraud 
We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including fraud. Our risk assessment 
procedures included: 

 Enquiry with management and those charged with governance regarding any known or suspected instances of 
fraud; 

  
o Detecting and responding to the risks of fraud; and  
o Internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud.  

 Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance for any known or suspected instances of 
fraud; 

 Discussion amongst the engagement team as to how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements; 
 Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of 

material misstatement due to fraud;  
 Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets and the related financial statement 

areas impacted by these; and 
 

controls and fraud in revenue recognition. 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 

 Testing a sample of journal entries throughout the year, which met a defined risk criteria, by agreeing to 
supporting documentation; 

 Evaluation of management incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements 
including management override and considering that the principal risks were related to the posting of 
inappropriate journal entries to improve the result before tax for the year. 

 Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates and assessing 
whether the judgements made in accounting entries are indicative of potential bias. 

 
We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 
members who were all deemed to have appropriate competence and capabilities and remained alert to any indications of 
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.   
 
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising 
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through 
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with 
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to 
become aware of it. 
 

 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities  
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Use of our report 
 

body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Southampton, UK 
 
Date: 24 April 2025 
 
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127). 
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 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ 
 
TURNOVER 3 9,402,226 6,505,163 
 
Cost of sales 2,889,213 2,360,076 

   
GROSS PROFIT 6,513,013 4,145,087 
 
Administrative expenses 1,925,690 2,779,383 

   
Adjusted EBITDA (before non-recurring items) 5,616,787 2,794,214 
 
Depreciation          11  (84,764) (180,603) 
 
Amortisation  10 (676,578) (263,664) 
 
Non-recurring items  0  8 (109,991) (514,969) 
 
Unrealised foreign exchange losses 6 (77,048) (387,591) 
 
Other operating income 81,083 81,683 

   
OPERATING PROFIT 6 4,668,406 1,447,387 
 

   
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  4,668,406 1,447,387 
 
Tax on profit 9 98,839 (335,800) 

   
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  4,767,246 1,111,587 
 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 
THE YEAR  

 
4,767,246 

 
1,111,587 
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 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS 
Intangible assets 10 2,218,105 2,015,028 
Tangible assets 11 150,319 203,267 
Investments 12 40,000 40,000 
    
 2,408,424 2,258,295 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Stocks 13 1,278,356 1,418,941 
Debtors 14 37,781,947 33,409,736 
Cash at bank 714,409 599,032 
    
 39,774,712 35,427,709 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  15 9,334,462 9,501,626 
    
NET CURRENT ASSETS 30,440,250 25,926,083 
    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
32,848,673 

 
28,184,378 

 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due after more than one 
year  

 
16 

 
- 

 
(2,744) 

 
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 18 (183,104) (282,981) 
    
NET ASSETS 32,665,569 27,898,653 

    
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 19 100 100 
Retained earnings            20 32,665,469 27,898,553 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 32,665,569 27,898,653 

    
 
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 24 April 
2025.  
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director 
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 Called up 
 share Retained Total 
 capital earnings equity 
 £ £ £ 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100 26,786,966 26,787,066 
 
Changes in equity 
Total comprehensive income - 1,111,587 1,111,587 
      
Balance at 31 December 2023 100 27,898,553 27,898,653 
      
 
Changes in equity 
Total comprehensive income - 4,767,246 4,767,246 
Foreign exchange - (330) (330) 
      
Balance at 31 December 2024 100 32,665,469 32,665,569 
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Drilling Systems (U.K.) Limited ("the company") is a private company limited by share capital and incorporated 
and domiciled in the UK. 

 
The address of its registered office is: 
Hurn View House 
5 Aviation Park West 
Bournemouth International Airport 
Christchurch 
Dorset 
BH23 6EW 

 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated below. 

 
Statement of compliance 
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' ("FRS 102") and Companies Act 2006. The 
presentation currency of these financial statements is Sterling.  

 
Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except that as disclosed in 
the accounting policies certain items are shown at fair value. 

 
 Financial reporting standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions 

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these financial 
statements, as permitted by FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland":  

 
  the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;  
  the requirement of paragraph 3.17(d);  
  the requirements of paragraphs 11.42, 11.44, 11.45, 11.47, 11.48(a)(iii), 11.48(a)(iv), 11.48(b) and 

11.48(c); 
  the requirements of paragraphs 12.26, 12.27, 12.29(a), 12.29(b) and 12.29A;  
  the requirements of paragraphs 26.18(b), 26.19 to 26.21 and 26.23;  
  the requirement of paragraph 33.7.  
 

Name of parent of group 
These financial statement's are consolidated in the financial statements of Transforming Training with 
Technology Limited. 

 
The financial statements of Transforming Training with Technology Limited may be obtained from Hurn View 
House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 

 
 Accounting estimates and judgements 

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements and estimates. The 
items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates have been made are noted below: 

 
Amortisation and depreciation - The company establishes a reliable estimate of the useful lives of tangible and 
intangible fixed assets. 

 
Revenue recognition - Where additional costs are expected to be incurred, a proportion of the revenue and costs 
of sales are recognised in the profit and loss account based on the level of costs to date compared to the 
estimated total costs. 

 
Warranty costs - Warranty provisions are provided to cover expected costs to be incurred against warranties 
included to customers as part of the sales contracts. These are based on a combination of specific items where 
possible and past experience. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Bad debt provision - The directors have completed a review of the trade debtor balances to determine which 
balances are unlikely to be received and a provision has been accounted for where necessary. 
 
Stock provision - In estimating net realisable values of inventories, management takes into account the most 
reliable evidence available at the year end. The company has adopted a policy of providing for inventory when it 
reaches a certain age and also for any inventory where there are specific quality concerns. This judgement takes 
into account forecast sales and product quality issued based on historical data. 

 
Finance leases - Management exercises judgement in determining the classification of leases as finance or 
operating leases at inception of the lease. Management considers the likelihood of exercising break clauses or 
extension options in determining the lease term. Where the lease term constitutes substantially all of the 
economic life of the asset, or where the present value of minimum lease payments amount to substantially all of 
the fair value of the property, the lease is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

 
Development costs - development costs are capitalised in line with the company's accounting policy. 
Management assess the recoverability of these costs throughout the financial year with reference to the 
associated products to ensure economic benefit is still being generated from these products. 

 
 Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises, the provision of training courses and the manufacture and maintenance of training 
simulators.  Revenue is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and 
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities. Revenue is shown net of sales/value 
added tax. 

 
Simulators 
The revenue and costs of portable simulators are recognised in full on the date of shipment. Risk is considered to 
have been transferred to the customer at this date. With regards to larger simulators, revenues and costs are 
reviewed at the point of factory acceptance. At this date generally 90% of revenue and costs are recognised 
based on the level of costs spent as a proportion of estimated total costs. The remaining costs and revenues are 
not recognised until the point of final acceptance from the customer after installation on site and initial training is 
completed. 
 
The risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the customer in line with the International Commercial Terms 
under which it is sold.  Portable simulators are normally sold Ex Works International Commercial Terms ex works. 
The significant majority of large simulators are sold under Carriage Paid To (CPT) and Carriage and Insurance 
Paid (CIP) International Commercial Terms. Under these terms, control of the product is transferred when the 
goods reach their destination. 
 
Simulators  Maintenance contracts 
3t Drilling Systems offers full maintenance, technical support and hardware and software upgrade options during 
for the economic life of each simulator. 
 
Revenue from maintenance contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
determined by the value of the services provided at the balance sheet date as a proportion of the total value of 
the engagement. Where the amount of revenue is contingent on future events, this is only recognised where the 
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will be received. When 
this cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised to the value of the expenses that it is considered 

-
a reliable estimate can be made. Managed services provided to the client which at the balance sheet date have 
not been billed have been recognised as revenue and are included in debtors as accrued income. 
 
Revenue from technical support and hardware and software upgrades is recognised on receipt of the final 
acceptance from the customer. 
 
Revenue for hardware and software upgrades installed at the customers site, are recognised in the period in 
which the upgrade is installed and/or commissioned and signed off by the customer. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 
 Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rates at the 
balance sheet date. All exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

 
 Intangible assets 

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred. 
 

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and 
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete 
development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the expenditure 
attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve design for, construction 
or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. 

 
The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of 
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other related expenditure which does not qualify for capitalisation are 
recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense when incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is 
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses. 

 
Amortisation 
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over 
their useful life as follows: 

 
Asset class  Amortisation method and rate  
Intellectual property rights  over its estimated economic life of 1 year  
Software and development costs  over its estimated economic life of 3-5 years  

 
Amortisation of intangible assets commences at the point the asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 
Tangible assets 
Tangible assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses arising from an annual review. 

 
The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and 
installation. 

 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction 
over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 
Asset class  Depreciation method and rate  
Leasehold improvements  2 years straight line  
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment  3 to 6 years straight line  
Motor vehicles  4 years straight line  
Plant and machinery  3 to 6 years straight line  

 
Investments in subsidiaries 
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value arising from an 
annual review. 

 
Taxation 
The tax expense for the period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except 
that a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also 
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. 

 
The current corporation tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable 
income. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Deferred corporation tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax 
credits in the Company. Deferred corporation tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set 
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than 
not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit. 

 
Going concern 
The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position 
during the forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being 
able to trade for a period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore 
concluded that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

 
 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value. 

 
Trade debtors 
Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of 
business. Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price less attributable transaction costs. They 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
A provision for the impairment of trade debtors is established when there is objective evidence that the Company 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. 

 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the company's net 
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting period so as to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the company's net investment in the lease. 

 
Stocks 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is 
based on the weighted average principle and includes all costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured stocks and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate 
share of overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

 
At the end of each reporting period inventories are assessed for impairment, based on condition, aging and 
usage in the period. When a reversal of impairment is recognised the impairment charge is reversed, up to the 
original loss and recognised as a credit in the profit and loss. 

 
Trade creditors 
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if the company does not have an 
unconditional right, at the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date. If there is an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the 
transaction price plus attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

 
 Borrowings 

Interest-bearing borrowings (including loan notes due to group undertakings) are initially recorded at fair value, 
net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the 
difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised 
as a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the year / year of the relevant borrowing. 

 
Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable 
and similar charges. 

 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 
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 DRILLING SYSTEMS (U.K.) LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 

 
The company typically provides a product warranty to customers as part of the sales contract. A provision is 
made at the balance sheet date to cover costs expected to be incurred under such product warranty claims. 
Historic warranty costs have been very low, and the directors anticipate that this is likely to continue. 

 
Leases 
Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the year of the lease. 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee. 

 
Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other 
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred 
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis. 

 
Dividends 
Dividend distribution to the company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the 
reporting year in which the dividends are declared and approved. 

 
Defined contribution pension obligation 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a pension fund and the 
group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior years. 

 
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If 
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment. 

 
Impairment 

 
Financial assets (including trade and other debtors) 

 
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

 
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment an impairment is 
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company 
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to 
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a 
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through profit or loss. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Non-financial assets 
 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of 
impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or "CGU" that are expected to benefit from the synergies 
of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be allocated to individual 
CGUs or groups of CGUs on a non-arbitrary basis, the impairment of goodwill is determined using the 
recoverable amount of the acquired entity in its entirety, or if it has been integrated then the entire entity into 
which it has been integrated. 

 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

 
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses recognised for other assets is 
reversed only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply. 

 
Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

 
3. TURNOVER 
 

The turnover and profit before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the company.  
 

An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below:  
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Sale of goods 5,780,603 3,533,358 
 Rendering of services 3,621,623 2,971,805 

   
 9,402,226 6,505,163 

   
 

An analysis of turnover by geographical market is given below:  
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 United Kingdom 711,310 1,361,474 
 Rest of world 8,690,916 5,143,689 

   
 9,402,226 6,505,163 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 

4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Wages and salaries 1,569,600 1,577,785 
 Social security costs 159,404 171,621 
 Other pension costs 126,409 108,821 

   
 1,855,413 1,858,227 

   
 

The average number of employees during the year was as follows:  
 2024 2023 
 
 Production 30 40 
 Administration and support 4 5 

   
 34 45 

   
 
5. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Directors' remuneration 180,356 156,350 

   
 

During the year the number of directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was 1 (2023: 1). 
 

In respect of the highest paid director: 
 2024  2023 

£   £  
Remuneration  180,356  156,350 
     
Pension contributions for the current year, as well as some remuneration in prior year, were paid by Drilling 
Systems Group Limited. Directors' remuneration for the current and previous year for K N Franklin, P M M 
Sinclair and M B Boden was paid by Transforming Training with Technology Limited. 

 
6. OPERATING PROFIT 
 
 The operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting): 
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Depreciation expense 84,764 180,603 
 Amortisation 676,578 263,664 
 Foreign exchange differences (77,048) 387,591 

 
 

   Refer to note 4 for pension contributions. 
 
7.    
 

s remuneration has been paid by Transforming Training With Technology Limited in both the current 
year and previous year so there is no charge to this company. Fees payable to the group auditors and its 
associates for other services to the group are disclosed within 3T Global Holdco Limited consolidated financial 
statements.  
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 

8. NON-RECURRING ITEMS 
 

 2024  2023 
£   £  

Group management service charges  -  294,000 
Disposal of assets  -  142,972 
Non-recurring costs  109,991  77,997 
     
 109,991  514,969 

     

9. TAXATION 
 
 Analysis of the tax (credit)/charge 

The tax charge/(credit) on the profit for the year was as follows:  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Current tax: 
 UK corporation tax - 335,800 
 Over/under provision in prior 
 year - - 

   
 Total current tax - 335,800 
 
 Deferred tax (current and adjustments in respect of prior periods) (98,839) - 

   
 Tax on profit (98,839) 335,800 

   
 
 Reconciliation of total tax (credit)/charge included in profit and loss 

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The difference is 
explained below:  

 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Profit before tax 4,668,406 1,447,387 

   
 Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25% 

(2023 - 23.5%)  
 

1,167,102 
 

340,136 
 
 Effects of: 
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (23,766) 7,978 
 Adjustments to tax (credit)/charge in respect of previous periods  - 32,467 
 Fixed asset differences    11,649 8,955 
 Group relief claimed    (1,189,141) (457,436) 
 Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates   - (443) 
 Adjustment to tax (credit)/charge in respect of previous period - deferred tax  (84,954) 404,143 
 R&D Expenditure costs 20,271 - 

   
 Total tax (credit)/charge (98,839) 335,800 

   
 

UK corporation tax has been charged at 25% (year ended 31 December 2023 - 23.5%). 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
10. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 Development 
 costs 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 4,378,078 
 Additions 879,655 

   
 At 31 December 2024 5,257,733 

  
 AMORTISATION 
 At 1 January 2024 2,363,050 
 Amortisation for year  676,578 

   
 At 31 December 2024 3,039,628 

  
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024 2,218,105 

  
 At 31 December 2023 2,015,028 

  
 

Capitalised development costs are not treated as a realised loss for the purpose of determining the Company's 
distributable profits as the costs meet the conditions requiring them to be treated as an asset in accordance with 
FRS 102 Section 18. 

 
11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 Fixtures 
 Improvements Plant and and 
 to property machinery fittings Totals 
 £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 170,441 427,883 512,436 1,110,760 
 Additions - 12,966 18,849 31,815 

         
 At 31 December 2024 170,441 440,849 531,285 1,142,575 

        
 DEPRECIATION 
 At 1 January 2024 52,123 376,501 478,869 907,493 
 Charge for year  19,213 39,880 25,671 84,764 

         
 At 31 December 2024 71,336 416,381 504,540 992,257 

        
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024 99,105 24,468 26,745 150,318 

        
 At 31 December 2023 118,318 51,382 33,567 203,267 
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12. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 
 Shares in 
 group 
 undertakings 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 
 and 31 December 2024 40,000 

  
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024 40,000 

  
 At 31 December 2023 40,000 

  
 

Details of undertakings 
Details of the investments in which the company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share 
capital are as follows: 

 
Undertaking  Country of 

incorporation 
 Holding  Proportion of voting 

rights and shares held 
 

 2024  2023  
D.S. 2000 Limited  UK   Ordinary  100%  100%  

 
The principal activity of D.S. 2000 Limited is a service company, but the company has been dormant since 30 
September 2015. The registered address of D.S. 2000 Limited is Hurn View House 5 Aviation Park West, 
Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 

 
13. STOCKS 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Raw materials 1,233,244 1,318,502 
 Work-in-progress 45,112 100,439 

    
 1,278,356 1,418,941 

   
Impairment of stocks 
The amount of impairment loss recognised in cost of sales against stock was £186,621 (2023 - £Nil). 

 
14. DEBTORS 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Amounts falling due within one year: 
 Trade debtors 1,592,254 1,818,156 
 Amounts owed by group undertakings 30,996,088 30,036,575 
 Other debtors 18,308 164,865 
 Prepayments and accrued income 3,332,215 597,569 
 Corporation tax 253,922 82,205 
    
 36,192,778 32,699,370 
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14. DEBTORS - continued 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Amounts falling due after more than one year: 
 Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,589,169 710,366 

   
 
 Aggregate amounts 37,781,947 33,409,736 

    
 
 
15. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Trade creditors 601,724 304,686 
 Amounts owed to group undertakings 5,175,565 5,996,186 
 Social security and other taxes  68,042 324,555 
 Other creditors 9,128 170,213 
 Accruals and deferred income 3,480,003 2,705,986 

   
 9,334,462 9,501,626 

   
 
16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Amounts owed to group undertakings - 2,744 

   
 
17. LEASING AGREEMENTS 
 

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Within one year 207,098 170,000 
 Between one and five years 851,172 680,000 
 In more than five years 122,236 212,500 

   
 1,180,506 1,062,500 

   
 

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year was 
£216,180 (2023: £170,000). 

 
18. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Deferred tax 132,104 231,981 
 Other provisions 51,000 51,000 

   
 183,104 282,981 
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18. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES - continued 
 
 Deferred 
 tax Warranties 
 £ £ 
 Balance at 1 January 2024 231,981 51,000 
 Provided during year (99,877) - 

    
 Balance at 31 December 2024 132,104 51,000 

    
 
19. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 
 Number: Class: Nominal 2024 2023 
 value:  £ £ 
 100 Ordinary shares 1 100 100 

   
 

Rights, preferences and restrictions 
The shares have attached to them full voting, dividend and capital distribution (including on winding up) rights. 
The do not confer any rights of redemption. 
 

20. RESERVES 
 Retained 
 earnings 
 £ 
 
 At 1 January 2024 27,898,553 
 Total Comprehensive Income  4,767,246 
 Foreign exchange (330) 
  
 At 31 December 2024 32,665,469 

  
 
21. PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents 
contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted to £35,233 (2023: £148,821). 

 
Contributions totalling £1,263 (2023: £9,068) were payable to the scheme at the end of the year and are included 
in creditors. 

 
22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
 

The company has taken advantage of the exemptions in FRS 102 from disclosing transactions with other 
members of the group. 
 
Key management personnel include all directors of the company, who together have authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company. The total compensation paid to key 
management personnel for services provided to the company are disclosed in note 5. There were no amounts 
outstanding at the year end.  
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23. PARENT AND ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING 
 

The company's controlling shareholder is Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. the registered address for Drilling systems Guernsey Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar Court, 
Les Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 
Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is Owned by Blue Water Energy Fund I L.P and Blue Water Energy Fund I-A 
L.P. These funds are ultimately controlled by BWE General Partner Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. The registered address for BWE General Partner Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar Court, Les 
Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 
The company's immediate parent company is Drilling Systems Limited, incorporated in England and Wales. The 
registered address for Drilling Systems Limited is Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth 
International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset BH23 6EW. 

 
The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is 3T Global Holdco Limited. The 
registered address for 3T Global Holdco Limited is Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth 
International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 
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3T TRAINING SERVICES LIMITED 
 
 STRATEGIC REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2024.  
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 
The principal activity of the company is: 
 

Practical and Digital Training: Best-in-class learning experiences delivered at state-of-the-art training centres and on-site 
mobile training hubs in countries all around the world. 
 

Training Management Solutions: End to end training management services for corporate clients. 
 

FAIR REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS 
We aim to present a balanced and comprehensive review of the development and performance of our business during 
year and its position at the year end. Our review is consistent with the size and nature of the business and is written in 
the context of the risks and uncertainties we face. 
 

The company's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows: 
 
 
 

 
 

Unit 

 31 December 
2024 

 
 
 

31 December 
2023 

Revenue  £m               47.9  27.7 
Gross profit  £m               21.3  7.6 
Adjusted EBITDA*  £m               11.0  3.4 
Profit before tax  £m  7.6  1.2 
*Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and non-recurring items. 
 
 

The Company had a positive 2024 with growth across a number of its key areas. Our strategic objectives of broadening 
our offer, expanding into adjacent sectors and deepening our digital capability and internationalisation have all advanced 
and continue to do so. Revenue increased by 73.0% from £27.7m to £47.9m and adjusted EBITDA increased by 223.5% 
from £3.4m to £11.0m. This increase is due to the hive up of the trade of Survivex into the group in the year. 
 

The Company's client base continues to increase as we win further work in our existing verticals as well as expanding 
into other relevant markets.  
 

The fundamentals of the business remain strong. The Board believes that a combination of our training and technology 
offering and our sector diversification as the energy transition gathers pace, leaves the Company well positioned going 
into 2025 and beyond. 
 
PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The Board has the overall accountability for ensuring that risk is effectively managed across the Group. 
 
The principal risks and uncertainties have been assessed by the Board as follows based on the following criteria: 
 

1. assessment of the likelihood of the risk materialising, 

2. magnitude of the risk and 

3. assessment of changes in each risk (e.g. decreased, stable or increased) 

Nature of risk Likelihood of the 
risk materialising 

Magnitude of 
risk 

Assessment 
of change 

Geopolitical and economic environment Medium Medium Increasing 

 Low Medium Stable 

Training centre certification Low Medium Stable 

Foreign exchange Medium Medium Increasing 

Cyber security Medium High Stable 
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PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 
Each risk is further defined below. 
 

Continuing uncertainty in the geopolitical and economic environment represents the principal risk to the Company. 
Continuing events in Ukraine and Gaza and the threat of a global trade war, due to tariffs being imposed on goods, may 
increase inflationary pressures and the chance of recession resulting in lower demand for services. Much of the revenue 
of 3t is service based so the impact of any tariff-based increase should be limited. Also, the continuing high energy prices 
means there is still strong demand from the oil and gas and renewable energy sectors, key markets that 3t are heavily 
involved in.  
 

With the tax rates in the oil and gas sector increasing, investment in the UK continues to be weak, affecting a key market 
for 3t. The UK October 2024 budget increased the Energy Profits Levy (EPL) tax rate by 3%, bringing the headline rate 

and continued investment in this sector, 3t continues to grow its offering in the renewables space. 
 

This risk is managed as far as possible via diversification across a wide range of customers, products, and services and 
so the Company is not reliant upon any single customer, or group of customers, or upon any single product or service. 
 

that the range of products and services offered to customers remains at the forefront of technology. As such, the 
Company believes it is mitigating as far as possible the risks of obsolescence. 
 
The Company depends on its training centres being certified by the relevant accredited body to be able to perform 

Directors ensure that the competency of the operations team is maintained and that the training centres meet the 
relevant standards to mitigate this risk. 
 

Foreign exchange risk principally relates to the GBP to USD exchange rate as a proportion of revenues are collected in 
US dollars. The Company avoids contracts in other currencies where possible. The exposure to foreign currency is 
reviewed by the Directors and managed via forward exchange currency contracts where appropriate.  
 

Cyber security represents another area of risk and is one which is monitored closely by the Board. The business is ever 
vigilant in this regard, has clear policies & procedures, ongoing awareness campaigns, uses state of the art firewalls, and 
utilises ISO 27001 as a framework for ensuring external audits are undertaken regularly. 
 

OTHER RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
The business' principal financial instruments comprise trade debtors, trade creditors and intercompany loans both to and 
from the Group and Company. The main purpose of these instruments is to finance the business' operations.  
 
In respect of bank balances, the business' cash balances are held in different accounts and with liquidity levels managed 
closely at a Group level.  
 
Trade debtors are managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies concerning the credit offered to customers 
and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit limits. The amounts presented in the balance 
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debtors. Trade creditors' liquidity risk is managed by ensuring sufficient funds 
are available to meet amounts due. 
 

GOING CONCERN 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Directors have prepared detailed 
budgets for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements which show that the Group is 
able to meet all its liabilities as they fall due including a detailed going concern stress test for 3t Global Holdco Limited, 
by which 3t Global Bidco PLC is wholly owned, for which further detail is given below. 3T Training Services Limited is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of 3t Global Bidco PLC, and we consider that the group going concern assessment covers the 
subsidiary. 
 
At the balance sheet date 3t Global Bidco PLC has net liabilities of £73.4m including £79.9m ($100m) relating to its 
$150m Nordic Bond facility, repayable May 2028 and £99.2m of intercompany debt owed to 3t Global Holdco Limited 
with maturity of May 2028, but repayable in the event of a business sale, whereby repayment would be covered by the 
sale proceeds. 
 
Other than liabilities arising through normal trading the only other material liabilities falling due in the subsequent 12 
months are the semi-annual bond interest payments of $5.6m due in May 2025 and November 2025.  
 
 



 
 
 Page 4 

         3T TRAINING SERVICES LIMITED 
 

STRATEGIC REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

 
 
GOING CONCERN  continued 
The projections prepared by the Directors show that 3t Global Bidco PLC will generate sufficient cash from trading to 
meet the payment of these liabilities.  
 
The going concern stress test prepared by management considers a declining market scenario in which revenue is 
significantly reduced and limited mitigation is undertaken to protect margin and preserve cash flows. 
 
The conclusion of this stress test is that the Group could sustain the loss of more than 30% of projected EBITDA over the 
course of the 12 months following the date of the financial statements, without breaching committed borrowing facilities 
limits or covenants related to the bond facility held by 3t Global Bidco PLC (the parent company).  
 
Nonetheless the Directors consider the stress test scenario to be highly unlikely, specifically noting: 
 

The amount of revenue in the forecast period for which purchase orders have already been received 
 

The quality of the sales pipeline in terms of value and likelihood of prospects 
 

halting capital expenditure, cost reduction measures)  
 
The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position during the 
forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being able to trade for a 
period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore concluded that it is 
appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis. 
 
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 
Our objective is to remain the preferred service provider to the global offshore, renewable energy and industrial sectors. 
 

HEALTH & SAFETY 
The Directors ensure safety is ingrained in every area of our business and adopted by all of our employees as a key 
component of our day-to-day activities recognising that successful health, safety, quality and environmental management 
is fundamental to our business and we are committed to continual improvement in all areas of our business activities. 
 

The Directors recognise that its employees represent its greatest asset and ensuring the balance between the business 
needs with a full commitment to ensuring that the health, safety and welfare of its employees are met. 
 
QUALITY 
Customer satisfaction can only be achieved by supplying a service and product that totally meets, or wherever possible 
exceeds, the customers' requirements and expectations. 
 

To ensure this, the Group has successfully implemented a fully integrated management system (IMS) which is certified 
by BSI to ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015, ISO 45001:2018, ISO 27001:2023 standards. 
 

 
Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director  
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The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. 
 
DIRECTORS 
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2024 to the date of this report. 
 
K N Franklin 
P Knowles 
 
Other changes in directors holding office are as follows: 
 
Martin Somerville ceased to be a director on 16 March 2024 and Patrick Sinclair ceased to be a director on 31 January 
2024. Martin Boden was appointed as a director on 1 June 2024. 
 
POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
The Company made no political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the year (2023: £Nil). 
 
DIVIDENDS 
No dividend was declared or paid during the year (2023: £Nil). 
 
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
There are no reportable balance sheet events. 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS 
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the 
applicant concerned. In the event of employees becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment 
with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group that the training, career 
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees. 
 
QUALIFYING THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS 
The company has put in place qualifying third party indemnity provisions for all directors of 3T Training Services Limited. 
 
OTHER MATTERS 
In accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, information regarding financial instruments, going 
concern and future developments has been disclosed in the Strategic Report. 
 
Approved by the board on 24 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director  
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have 
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland. 
 
Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In 
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: 
 
-  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
-  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
-  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements;  
 

-  assess the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern; and 

 

-  use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and the 
group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also 
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements 
which are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility  for taking 
such steps as are reasonable open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and 
other irregularities. 
 



 
 
 Page 7 

3T TRAINING SERVICES LIMITED 
 
 REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF 

3T TRAINING SERVICES LIMITED
 
 

Opinion on the financial statements 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 
 

 
year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

December 2024 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).  
 
Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 
 

statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that t
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report. 

Other information 

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Other Companies Act 2006 reporting 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 
 

 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

 
requirements. 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, 
 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion: 
 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

  

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of Directors 

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line 
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The 
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 
 
Non-compliance with laws and regulations 
 
Based on: 

 Our understanding of the Company and the industry in which it operates; 
 Discussion with management and those charged with governance; 
 

regulations; and 
 

We considered the significant laws and regulations to be the Companies Act 2006 the applicable accounting framework 
and tax legislation.  
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The Company is also subject to laws and regulations where the consequence of non-compliance could have a material 
effect on the amount or disclosures in the financial statements, for example through the imposition of fines or litigations. 
We identified such laws and regulations to be the health and safety legislation, GDPR and tax legislation. 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 

 Discussions with Management and those charged with governance regarding known or suspected instances of 
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.  

 Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance for any evidence of non-compliance with laws 
and regulations and fraud and a review of legal expense accounts. 

 
the relevant tax legislation and applicable accounting frameworks respectively. 

 
Fraud 
We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including fraud. Our risk assessment 
procedures included: 

 Enquiry with management and those charged with governance regarding any known or suspected instances of 
fraud; 

  
o Detecting and responding to the risks of fraud; and  
o Internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud.  

 Review of minutes of meetings of those charged with governance for any known or suspected instances of 
fraud; 

 Discussion amongst the engagement team as to how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements; 
 Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of 

material misstatement due to fraud;  
 Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets and the related financial statement 

areas impacted by these; and 
 

controls and fraud in revenue recognition. 
 
Our procedures in respect of the above included: 

 Testing a sample of journal entries throughout the year, which met a defined risk criteria, by agreeing to 
supporting documentation; 

 Evaluation of management incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements 
including management override and considering that the principal risks were related to the posting of 
inappropriate journal entries to improve the result before tax for the year. 

 Challenging assumptions made by management in their significant accounting estimates and assessing 
whether the judgements made in accounting entries are indicative of potential bias. 

 
We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 
members who were all deemed to have appropriate competence and capabilities and remained alert to any indications of 
fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.   
 
Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising 
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through 
collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with 
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to 
become aware of it. 
 

 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities  
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Use of our report 
 

body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
James Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)  
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Southampton, UK 
 
Date: 24 April 2025 
 
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127). 
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 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ 
 
TURNOVER 3 47,943,132 27,708,047 
 
Cost of sales 26,596,127 20,157,722 
    
GROSS PROFIT 21,347,005 7,550,325 
 
Administrative expenses 13,746,646 6,329,090 
    
Adjusted EBITDA (before non-recurring items) 10,960,959 3,353,170 
 
Depreciation  11  (640,652) (621,246) 
 
Unrealised foreign exchange (losses) / gains   (23,328) 1,445 
 
Amortisation 10 (747,379) (160,102) 
 
Non-recurring items 7 (749,241) (1,332,032) 
 
Management charges  (1,200,000) - 
 
Other operating income - 20,000 
    
OPERATING PROFIT 5 7,600,359 1,241,235 
 
Interest receivable  8 39,232 - 
    
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  7,639,591 1,241,235 
 
Tax on profit 9 397,263 (522,358) 
    
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  8,036,854 718,877 
 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 
    
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 
THE YEAR  

 
8,036,854 

 
718,877 
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 2024 2023 
 Notes £ £ £ £ 
FIXED ASSETS 
Intangible assets 10 3,104,300 1,666,073 
Tangible assets 11 4,610,359 4,430,034 
Investments 12 2,802,627 2,685,723 
    
 10,517,286 8,781,830 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Stocks 13 13,994 4,885 
Debtors 14 24,889,710 12,659,597 
Cash at bank 1,999,403 461,266 
    
 26,903,107 13,125,748 
CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year  15 (19,983,980) (12,083,428) 
    
NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,919,127 1,042,320 
    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
LIABILITIES  

 
17,436,413 

 
9,824,150 

 
 
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 17 (835,770) (1,260,361) 
    
NET ASSETS 16,600,643 8,563,789 

    
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Called up share capital 18 133 133 
Share premium 19 3,575,967 3,575,967 
Retained earnings 20 13,024,543 4,987,689 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 16,600,643 8,563,789 

    
 
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on 24 April 
2025.  
 
 
 
........................................................................ 
Kevin Franklin, Director  
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 Called up 
 share Retained Share Total 
 capital earnings premium equity 
 £ £ £ £ 
Balance at 1 January 2023 133 4,268,812 3,575,967 7,844,912 
 
Changes in equity 
Total comprehensive income - 718,877 - 718,877 

        
Balance at 31 December 2023 133 4,987,689      3,575,967   8,563,789 

        
 
Changes in equity 
Total comprehensive income - 8,036,854 - 8,036,854 

        
Balance at 31 December 2024 133 13,024,543 3,575,967 16,600,643 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

3T Training Services Limited (the "company") is a private company limited by share capital and incorporated and 
domiciled in UK. 

 
The address of its registered office is: 
Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West 
Bournemouth International Airport 
Christchurch 
Dorset 
BH23 6EW 

 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated below. 

 
Statement of compliance 
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' ("FRS 102"). The presentation currency of 
these financial statements is Sterling. 

 
Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except that as disclosed in 
the accounting policies certain items are shown at fair value. 

 
 Financial Reporting Standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions 

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these financial 
statements, as permitted by FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland":  

 
  the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;  
  the requirements of paragraphs 11.42, 11.44, 11.45, 11.47, 11.48(a)(iii), 11.48(a)(iv), 11.48(b) and 

11.48(c); 
  the requirements of paragraphs 12.26, 12.27, 12.29(a), 12.29(b) and 12.29A;  
  the requirements of paragraphs 26.18(b), 26.19 to 26.21 and 26.23;  
  the requirement of paragraph 33.7.  
 
 Name of parent of group 

These financial statements are consolidated in the financial statements of Transforming with Training Technology 
Limited. 

 
The financial statements of Transforming Training with Technology Limited may be obtained from Hurn View 
House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Hurn, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 

 
Accounting estimates and judgements 
Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements and estimates. The 
items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates have been made are noted below: 

 
Amortisation and depreciation - The Company establishes a reliable estimate of the useful lives of tangible and 
intangible fixed assets. 

 
Revenue recognition - Where additional costs are expected to be incurred, a proportion of the revenue and costs 
of sale are recognised in the profit or loss account based on the level of costs to date compared to estimated total 
costs. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Development costs - Development costs are capitalised in line with the Company's accounting policy. 
Management assess the recoverability of these costs throughout the financial year with reference to the 
associated products to ensure economic benefit is still being generated from these products. 

 
Bad debt provision - The directors have completed a review of the trade debtor balances to determine which 
balances are unlikely to be received and a provision has been accounted for where necessary. 

 
 Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises, the provision of training courses and the manufacture and maintenance of training 
simulators.  Revenue is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and 
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities. Revenue is shown net of sales/value 
added tax, and rebates. 
 
Training services  
For training   services, revenue from the sales of training courses is recognised when the Group has transferred 
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer and it is probable that the Group will receive the 
previously agreed upon payment. These criteria are considered to be met when the training course has been 
delivered to the buyer and completion certificates issued.  
 
Training services  Managed services 
Managed services revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract determined by 
the value of the services provided at the balance sheet date as a proportion of the total value of the engagement. 
Where the amount of revenue is contingent on future events, this is only recognised where the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits will be received. When this 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised to the value of the expenses that it is considered 

-
a reliable estimate can be made. Managed services provided to the client which at the balance sheet date have 
not been billed have been recognised as revenue and are included in debtors as accrued income. 
 
Rebates 
3t Training Services may grant some customers rebates if the volume of training courses purchased by that 
customer exceed a contractually defined threshold within a specific period. Rebates are deducted from revenue 
and periodically netted from the amounts payable by the customer. 
 

the value to be recognised in the financial statements. 
 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the closing rates at the 
balance sheet date. All exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are retranslation using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 
 Intangible assets 

Expenditure on research and development is recognised in the profit or loss account as an expense as incurred. 
 

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and 
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete 
development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the expenditure 
attributable to the intangible asset during its development. 

 
The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of 
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other related expenditure which doesn't qualify for capitalisation are 
recognised in the profit or loss account as an expense when incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is 
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value. 

 
Trade debtors 
Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary 
course of business. Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price less attributable transaction 
costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for 
impairment. A provision for the impairment of trade debtors is established when there is objective evidence that 
the group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. 
 
Amortisation 
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over 
their useful life as follows: 

 
Asset class  Amortisation method and rate  
Goodwill  over its estimated economic life of 5 years  
Software development  over its estimated economic life of 10 years  
Product development  over its estimated economic life of 5 years  

 
Amortisation on intangible assets commences at the point the asset is available for use, i.e. when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 
 Tangible assets 

Tangible assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost, less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses arising from an annual review. 

 
The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and 
installation. 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction 
over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 
Asset class  Depreciation method and rate  
Short leasehold  15 years straight line  
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment  10 years straight line  
Motor vehicles  4 years straight line  
Plant and machinery  10 years straight line  

 
 Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment in value arising from an 
annual review. 

 
 Taxation 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that 
a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also 
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. The current corporation tax charge is calculated on the basis 
of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries 
where the company operates and generates taxable income. 

 
The current corporation tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable 
income. 
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Deferred corporation tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax credits in the 
Company. Deferred corporation tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by a reporting date. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set 
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amounts equals the highest amount that is more likely 
than not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit. 

 
 Going concern 

The Group, and the companies which are wholly owned, is expected to remain in a strong financial position 
during the forecast period from the date of signing the financial statements. The Directors are confident of being 
able to trade for a period of at least 12 months from the approval of the financial statements and have therefore 
concluded that it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on the going concern basis. 
 
Stocks 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is 
based on the weighted average principle and includes all costs incurred in bringing each product to its present 
location and condition. In the case of manufactured stocks and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate 
share of overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

 
At the end of each reporting period inventories are assessed for impairment, based on condition, aging and 
usage in the period. When a reversal of impairment is recognised the impairment charge is reversed, up to the 
original loss and recognised as a credit in the profit and loss. 

 
Trade creditors 
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if the company does not have an 
unconditional right, at the end of the reporting year, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve months 
after the reporting date. If there is an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 

 
Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price plus attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 
Borrowings 
Interest-bearing borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing 
borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of 
transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the Profit and Loss 
Account over the period / period of the relevant borrowing. 

 
Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable 
and similar charges. 

 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. 

Leases 
Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the period of the lease. 

 
Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other 
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred 
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

Defined contribution pension obligation 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a pension fund and the 
group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold sufficient 
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

 
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If 
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment. 

 
Impairment 

 
Financial assets (including trade and other debtors) 

 
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

 
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment an impairment is 
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company 
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to 
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a 
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through profit or loss. 

 
Non-financial assets 

 
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of 
impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or "CGU" that are expected to benefit from the synergies 
of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be allocated to individual 
CGUs or groups of CGUs on a non-arbitrary basis, the impairment of goodwill is determined using the 
recoverable amount of the acquired entity in its entirety, or if it has been integrated then the entire entity into 
which it has been integrated. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the 
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

 
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses recognised for other assets is 
reversed only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply. Impairment losses recognised in prior 
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 
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 3T TRAINING SERVICES LIMITED 
 
 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
3. TURNOVER 
 

The turnover and profit before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the company.  
 

An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below:  
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Rendering of services 47,943,132 27,708,047 
    
 47,943,132 27,708,047 

    
 

An analysis of turnover by geographical market is given below:  
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 United Kingdom 47,943,132 27,708,047 
    
 47,943,132 27,708,047 

    
4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Wages and salaries 11,102,589 4,459,588 
 Social security costs 1,081,865 436,165 
 Other pension costs 283,759 81,196 

   
 12,468,213 4,976,949 

   
 

The average number of employees during the year was as follows:  
 2024 2023 
 
 Admin and Support 25 15 
 Production and Software Development 5 5 
 Training 250 97 

   
 280 117 

   
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Directors' remuneration 167,997 - 
 Directors' pension contributions to money purchase schemes   20,769 - 

   
 
Pension contributions for the current year were paid by Drilling Systems Group Limited. Directors' remuneration 
for the current year for K N Franklin, P M M Sinclair and M B Boden was paid by Transforming Training with 
Technology Limited. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
5. OPERATING PROFIT 
 
 The operating profit is stated after charging: 
 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Depreciation expense 640,652 621,246 
 Amortisation 747,379 160,102 

   
  Refer to note 4 for pension contributions. 
 
6.    
 

year and previous year so there is no charge to this company. Fees payable to the group auditors and its 
associates for other services to the group are disclosed within 3T Global Holdco Limited consolidated financial 
statements.  

7. NON-RECURRING ITEMS 
 

 2024  2023 
£   £  

Non-recurring costs  749,241  1,332,032 

     
 

Non-recurring costs predominantly relate to one off redundancy and recruitment costs, non-recurring legal and 
professional costs, and one-off debtor related expenses. 

 
8. INTEREST RECEIVABLE  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
                            
 Bank interest receivable 39,232 - 

   
 39,232 - 

   
 
9. TAXATION 
 
 Analysis of the tax charge 

The tax charge on the profit for the year was as follows:  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Current tax: 
 UK corporation tax - 9,889
 Over/under provision in prior 
 year - - 

   
 Total current tax - 9,889 
 
 Deferred tax (current and adjustments in respect of prior periods)  (397,263) 512,469 

   
 Tax on profit (397,263) 522,358 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
9. TAXATION - continued 
 

UK corporation tax has been charged at 25% (year ended 31 December 2023 - 23.5%). 
 
 Reconciliation of total tax charge included in profit and loss 

The tax assessed for the year is lower (2023: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The 
difference is explained below:  

 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Profit before tax 7,639,591 1,241,235 

   
 Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25% 

(2023 - 23.5%)  
 

1,909,898 
 

291,690 
 
 Effects of: 
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 130,735 882 
 Fixed asset differences    79,407 31,506 
 Group relief (claimed) / surrendered     (2,141,863) 163,998 
 Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates   - 31,367 
 Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods   (375,440) 2,915 

   
 Total tax charge (397,263) 522,358 

   
 
 
 
10. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 Product Software 
 Goodwill development development Totals 
 £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024 432,579 711,310 1,401,381 2,545,270 
 Additions - 1,351,402 834,204 2,185,606 
 Disposals - - - - 

        
 At 31 December 2024 432,579 2,062,712 2,235,585 4,730,876 

        
 AMORTISATION 
 At 1 January 2024 422,679 198,516 258,002 879,197 
 Amortisation for year  9,900 445,065 292,414 747,379 

        
 At 31 December 2024 432,579 643,581 550,416 1,626,576 

        
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024 - 1,419,131 1,685,169 3,104,300 

        
 At 31 December 2023 9,900 512,794 1,143,379 1,666,073 

        
 

Capitalised development costs are not treated as a realised loss for the purpose of determining the Company's 
distributable profits as the costs meet the condition requiring them to be treated as an asset in accordance with 
FRS 102 Section 18. 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 Fixtures, 
 fittings & 
 Freehold Plant and office Motor 
 property machinery equipment vehicles Totals 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024  3,103,368 5,209,053 670,758 57,327 9,040,506 
 Additions 183,204 757,263 92,063 - 1,032,529 
 Disposals - (260,607) - - (260,607) 

          
 At 31 December 2024  3,286,572 5,705,709 762,821 57,327 9,812,428 

          
 DEPRECIATION 
 At 1 January 2024  1,550,507 2,634,117 372,385 53,463 4,610,472 
 Charge for year  

Eliminated on disposal 
191,071 

- 
384,001 
(49,540) 

62,201 
- 

3,864 
- 

641,137 
(49,540) 

          
 At 31 December 2024  1,741,578 2,968,578 434,586 57,327 5,202,069 

          
 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024  1,544,993 2,737,131 328,235 - 4,610,359 

          
 At 31 December 2023  1,552,861 2,574,936 298,373 3,864 4,430,034 

          
 
12. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 
 Shares in 
 group 
 undertakings 
 £ 
 COST 
 At 1 January 2024                                                                                  2,685,723 

 Additions                                                                                             116,904 
  

  At 31 December 2024  2,802,627 
  

 NET BOOK VALUE 
 At 31 December 2024 2,802,627 

  
 At 31 December 2023 2,685,723 

  
 

Details of undertakings 
 

Details of the investments (including principal place of business of unincorporated entities) in which the company 
holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows: 

 
 
Undertaking 

  
Registered office 

  
 

 
Holding 

  
 

Proportion of voting 
rights and shares held 

 

Subsidiary undertakings   2024   2023  
 
Speciality Welds Limited   UK (1)   Ordinary   100%   100%  
Utility & Construction 
Training Limited 

  
 

 
UK (2) 

  
 

 
Ordinary 

  
 

 
100% 

  
 

 
100% 

 

UCT Electrical Limited   UK (2)   Ordinary   100%   100%  
 

The registered address for the subsidiary undertakings are as follows: 
 

1. Kirkhill Commercial Park, Dyce Avenue, Dyce, Aberdeen, AB21 0LQ 
2. Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6EW 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
13. STOCKS 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Work in progress 13,994 4,885 

   
 
14. DEBTORS 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Amounts falling due within one year: 
 Trade debtors 9,271,957 4,777,100 
 Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,483,543 871,805 
 Other debtors 221,211 405,358 
 Prepayments and accrued income 4,797,158 2,969,228 
    
 15,773,869 9,023,491 

    
 
 Amounts falling due after more than one year: 
 Amounts owed by group undertakings 9,115,841 3,636,106 

   
 
 Aggregate amounts 24,889,710 12,659,597 

    
 
15. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Payments on account - 3,218 
 Trade creditors 3,766,289 4,035,485 
 Amounts owed to group undertakings 13,522,442 7,509,311 
 Corporation tax 20,000 - 
 Social security and other taxes  1,519,019 307,952 
 Other creditors 151,960 24,173 
 Accruals 1,004,270 203,289 
    
 19,983,980 12,083,428 

    
 
16. LEASING AGREEMENTS 
 

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:  
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Within one year 743,421 782,358 
 Between one and five years 1,769,640 1,937,055 
 In more than five years 1,043,563 1,102,193 

   
 3,556,624 3,821,606 

   
 

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year was 
£881,411 (2023: £812,458). 
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
17. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 
 2024 2023 
 £ £ 
 Deferred tax 707,279 1,030,658 
 Dilapidations and onerous lease provision 128,491 229,703 

   
 835,770 1,260,361 

   

 Deferred Dilapidations 
 tax and onerous  
                                                                                                 lease provision 
 £ £ 
 Balance at 1 January 2024 1,030,658 229,703 
 Utilised during year (323,379) (101,212) 

    
 Balance at 31 December 2024 707,279 128,491 

    
 
18. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 
 Number: Class: Nominal 2024 2023 
 value:  £ £ 
 133 Ordinary 1 133 133 

   
 

Rights, preferences and restrictions 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to 
one vote per share at meetings of the company. 

 
19. RESERVES 
 Retained Share 
 earnings premium Totals 
 £ £ £ 
 
 At 1 January 2024 4,987,689 3,575,967 8,563,656 
 Total Comprehensive Income  8,036,854 - 8,036,854 

      
 At 31 December 2024 13,024,543 3,575,967 16,600,510 

      
 
20. PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents 
contributions payable by the company to scheme and amounted to £283,759 (2023: £53,329). 

 
21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The company has taken advantage of the exemptions in FRS 102 from disclosing transactions with other 
members of the group. 
 
Key management personnel include all directors of the company, who together have authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company. The total compensation paid to key 
management personnel for services provided to the company are disclosed in note 4. There were no amounts 
outstanding at the year end.  
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
 
 
 
22. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 
 

The Company's controlling shareholder is Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. The registered address for Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar 
Court, Les Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 
Drilling Systems Guernsey Limited is owned by Blue Water Energy Fund I L.P and Blue Water Energy Fund I-A 
L.P. These funds are ultimately controlled by BWE General Partner Limited, incorporated in Guernsey, Channel 
Islands. The registered address for BWE General Partner Limited is PO Box 656, East Wing, Trafalgar Court, Les 
Banques, St Peter Port, Guernsey. 

 
The Company's immediate parent is Transforming Training with Technology Limited, incorporated in England and 
Wales. The registered address for Transforming Training for Technology Limited is Hurn View House, 5 Aviation 
Park West, Bournemouth International Airport, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 

 
The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is 3T Global Holdco Limited. The 
registered address for 3T Global Holdco Limited is Hurn View House, 5 Aviation Park West, Bournemouth 
International Airport, Dorset, BH23 6EW. 
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